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Power fechnology.
Reinvented,
PR BREEHR

\IVe see a bright future which embraces the use of
green and sustainable energy solutions.

Our Recyko Charge 10 is the fastest Nickel Metal
Hydride rechargeable battery system in the world
with a 10-minute charge time. \IVe are committed
to helping consumers switch to more sustainable
use of green energy.

By way of partnership with alternative green
energy tech companies such as ZincFive Inc.,,
we are investing in rechargeable energy storage
systems and affiliated technologies. Endless
applications await us.

\We are thrilled in our competency to transform
power from single dimensional attributes such as
product strengths, benefits and features, into
multi-dimensional empowerment through product
transparency, simplicity, customization and
responsibility.
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Sound Technology.
Reinvented,
237 BERI .
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KEF believes in the Power of Great Sound. KEF®EEE s SUNBZTEEBRENIE - f
Celebrating its 60 anniversary, the launch of KEF 7+ @458t LS60 Wireless » st MEHi-Fi - Z
LS60 Wireless marks our vision for the future of Uni-Q® » MAT 1 B30 45 = 25 2 4 S R L A '- : = ¢
Hi-Fi and key technological innovations such as B35 15k SRR o _ S PSS

\\\. "

AR,

AAEEREEEEEELRRRAN

Uni-Q®, MAT and active wireless music systems.

Representing the unified world of makers of sound
and systems that allow our community to “Listen”
with intent and “Believe” with confidence, we
deliver the most compelling experience for sound
lovers and explorers.

The breadth of sound spectrum goes beyond
music into our everyday life and the realm of
metaverse. \We are proud to be a game-changing
acoustic innovation group offering consumers
intuitive, high-fidelity and user-friendly audio and
music systems of the highest quality.
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Co-creating a
Sustainable Future.
I [E] 4 A 548 R 2R

Gold Peak Technology Group recognises ESG as
part of our strategic deployment beyond
compliance to prime a work and partnership

- . culture to épearhead innovation and sustainable
development.

\We see sustainability as a responsibility for
business continuity and regenérati\/e growth.

QOur enterprise now has a strong and diverse team
complement to deliver positive i'mpacts to our
customers, community and the planet.

Green energy is becoming a driving force for
future prosperity; we are part of it in‘both reducing
and avoiding carbon emissions.

Being resource-conscious and people- and
wellbeing-centric, we foster equal opportunity
and collaborative creativity through continuous
renewal and innovation.

TR EREGERE - HEMER (ESG) RugiEit
BMAXKEE RTEEERN  ERBEE—EFD
RIFT R AT A R A TAFERB A 3L -

TR AR RS SR EE N E GRS ILRHERA
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFER

Board of Directors EE
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Michael LAM Hin Lap

Brian WONG Tze Hang

Victor CHONG Toong Ying (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)
Waltery LAW \Wang Chak (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)
Non-Executive

Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive

LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

Audit Committee B ZEEE
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CHAN Kei Biu

Karen NG Ka Fai

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung
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GROUP PROFILE
EE/EN

Gold Peak Technology Group is a global battery and electronics company
with an aspiration to become one of the leaders in providing energy and sound
solutions that enlighten and empouwver lives, and with sustainability as a focus.

The parent company, Gold Peak Technology Group Limited, was established
in 1964 and has been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since
1984. Gold Peak holds a majority stake at 85.59%" in the Singapore-listed
GP Industries Limited as its major industrial investment vehicle.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited will focus on R&D of new rechargeable
battery technology and B2B battery business, whilst GP Industries will continue
its consumer batteries, and electronics and acoustics businesses in consumer
products. The Group has built renowned brand names for its major product
categories, including GP batteries, Recyko batteries, KEF premium acoustic
products and CELESTION professional speakers.

Including all divisions, the Group's turnover for the financial year 2021-2022
amounted to HK$7.1 billion and its total assets exceeded HK$9.0 billion.
Including the major operations of its various divisions, the Group currently

employs a staff force of 7,050 worldwide.

*As at 29 June 2022

SUMBREBRR—REUREFEREE HE
RARRHERE RS ENRNREEZ— WIAFTH
BRAREREN SANBLRERE BEHN-

SESRARISIURIRTERBR AR 1964 F5K
MW B1984FEEE Lo & IIRHIR KR
B GP TXHERAR85.59% i fEREF
BIRET A GP TEEFME e

SRR T EARAR BT E AT E R
NEH 3 (B2B) SR M GP TR
BRREEBERSL SFEMRBERER-
SEz T 2EMBHIW (GP BFH| Bt [45]
FEM - [KEF] & 435 2 25 7 [CELESTION]
HEBHBR CRAERNERMIE

EER2021 - 2022F 2 EHEBERTIES T

BEEBOOERT RNEAZMHAERE LA
7050 A

* 1202246 A29H

The Group’s international manufacturing and distribution network

SEzEREER D HAE

Sweden ¥ ———— @

® Russia BEHT
UK ZHE A
Netherlands 7 ——@ — @————— Poland J&l
Germany & —— @ B &
{ J France 2B ——@ Chlniqﬂﬁ
UsAZE aly AR — @ JSaci)uatrf: Ejﬁea M
o Bl
® ® Taiwan &/
UAE P 2§ ] .'7 ~Hong Kong &7
Thailand Z=E
A Vietham #if
A Malaysia H&fa
®  Singapore ¥
GP Batteries
RECYK
BMKEF A Manufacturing and sales EZL K iHE
CELESTION ® Marketing and sales $HEHEE

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SERE

GOLD PEAK TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
TR I ERARAT

Hong Kong-listed &#& £

85.59%"

GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
GP IEARAH

Singapore-listed #7103

GP BATTERIES ELECTRONICS & OTHER INDUSTRIAL
INTERNATIONAL ACOUSTICS INVESTMENTS
LIMITED ETEMRBES Hitb T¥ERE
LB HBERER AR
* Primary specialty
—IRMEREE M,
* Primary cylindrical
—RIHEREt
* Rechargeable & others
FEE M S A

* Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding held by Gold Peak as at 29 June 2022
BRRASILEHER 2022 4 6 A 29 B A2 Bt

SRR TEEARAT —O——E_O__—F4# 06



FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS
I RATRE

2022 2021

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss* meBEER"
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) HEIAILALFE (BBET)
Revenue e 7,145.6 6,706.2
Total profit for the year 2F BRI 133.4 121.9
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) BRREF (B 16.9 15.5
Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents) SRS (B - -
*including continuing and discontinued operations R BISE R RO R E R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position mEMBMRRE
At 31 March (HK$ million) W3A31A (BEHT)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KATER A FE(EHEZS 1,916.3 1,598.8
Total assets BEE 9,048.1 8,764.2
Capital expenditure BEARMS 302.7 458.2
Ratios o 2
At 31 March MW3A31H
Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio) MBEE  R#EE (thX) 0.9 0.9
Inventory turnover period (months) FERmE (A) 3.4 2.9
Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio) SBITIEEFE  BHE (bR)
- The Group —&H 0.91 0.98
- The Company — A 0.50 0.57
Other Information HiaER
At 31 March MW3A31H
The Company & its subsidiaries: AATIMH B AR
Number of employees EEAH
- China —h 4,500 5,100
- Hong Kong —BE 440 420
- Other countries — HihEx 2,110 1,990
7,050 7,510
Total area (sq m) REE (FTK)
- China — E 498,000 273,900
- Hong Kong — & 10,700 11,100
- Other countries — HihEx 136,100 136,200
644,800 421,200

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022 06



Revenue by Business®
Year ended 31 March 2022

Batteries &

Electronics &

*including continuing and discontinued operations

TEXRBERE

#BE2022F3 A31HILFE

CEERESEEBERERIEEE

76.0%
24.0%

Revenue by Location®
Year ended 31 March 2022

=— Asia Tl

=—— Europe EUM
Americas )M
Others EAfth

*including continuing and discontinued operations

BHE 2 &R

HZE202243 A31HILFE

TEERSESE BRI R

46.4%

0.8%
0,
23.7% 29.1%

>>

Total Assets by Location
As at 31 March 2022

=—— Hong Kong & China & &+ E
=—— Rest of Asia B
Americas )M
Europe BUM

BHECREED M

7202243 A31H

77.9%

2.9%
4.6%

14.

Profit before Taxation by

Business Attributable to Gold Peak®
Year ended 31 March 2022

Electronics &

Batteries & it*

*including continuing and discontinued operations

*excluding impairment loss on interest in a 40%-owned
associate, AZ Limited.

SIBHETEERAR —O=——E-O==—FFH

EERK 2 BRBATER

BZE202243 A31HIFE

TERERESE R R BRI SRR

T BFERE 40% ExH S AR
AZ Limited i 2 BER IR

85.7%

0/



FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS conro)

B RGTRHE @

Revenue* o
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) 9,000
* 2000 7,146
& %gﬁ 7000 6,768 6,706 !
BE3ASIELEE (HEAT) 6,316 6,052
6,000 —] I
5,000 —| -
4,000 —| -
3,000 —| -
2,000 —| -
1,000 —| -
*including continuing and discontinued operations 0
CEARHB SRS R B R RS 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
10,000
Total Assets ., 9,048
At 31 March (HK$ million) 9,000 . —
%EE 8000 7,104 7,311 7,238
" 7,000 — S
MW3A3LA (BEBT)
6,000 —| -
5,000 —| -
4,000 —| -
3,000 —| —
2,000 —| -
1,000 —| —
0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Profit before Taxation by Business* o
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) 350
S A0 T
BE3ASLALSFE (BEHT) S
i Batteries &5 20 7
[T Electronics & 150 — —
100 —| I
*including continuing and discontinued operations and
excluding impairment loss on interest in a 40%-owned 50 —| —
associate, AZ Limited.
TEEREREEBRERILEEED  TREMIT40% EakE 0
AR AZ Limited 1EH 2 BB B 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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Market Capitalization
At 31 March (HK$ million)

miE

MW3A3LE (B&%ET)

1111111 Gold Peak & 1LEH:
[ GP Industries GPI%

2,400

2,200
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
. . 140 1334
Profit Attributable to 0
121.9
Owners of the Company 120 _—
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) 110 —
100 F——
AATHEE AELEF % -
BESASIALEE (FEBT) 80 —
0 61.4 —
60 L
50 —
40 -
o 204 20.9 —
20 L
- I -
[0]
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Earnings Per Share and 17 o
L. 16 155
Dividends Per Share 15
Year ended 31 March (Hong Kong Cents) 1
13
12
BRENRSERRE 1
BE3ABLALFE (BL) 10
: 7.8
7
6
5 4.2
4
1 l— : .
[ Earnings per share &A% &7 0 :‘Hmm”” ||||| il il
[1I1111111] Dividends per share &R S 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

SWRBEIEARAT —O-—E-O==—FF#H
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

THEPBHRE

2022

2021

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (ote 1)
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

HEBER ma
BE3ASLALFE (BB

Turnover e 7,145.6 6,706.2
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRELATRF (B1E) 237.4 287.5
Taxation A (39.1) (79.4)
Profit (Loss) for the year 2ERF (EE) 198.3 208.1
Attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE SN 133.4 121.9
Non-controlling interests JEIEAR RS 64.9 86.2
198.3 208.1
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBMRRE
At 31 March (HK$ million) MW3IA31A (BE&EET)
Investment properties "B - -
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENRE 2,386.2 2,234.6
Right-of-use assets AL E 291.6 282.4
Interests in associates FriGHt & A el 1,756.8 1,784.1
Equity instruments at fair value through other A EFAEMEEK 2
comprehensive income fEAR TR 90.4 60.1
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - -
Investment in convertible note AR RERE - -
Non-current receivables IER BRI ARIE 18.7 86.2
Intangible assets B EE 1.1 1.2
Goodwill HE 70.4 79.1
Deferred taxation assets RIEFTBEE 34.4 27.8
Deposits and prepayments &e MIEFRIE 29.8 38.7
Current assets mENEE 4,325.8 4,127.8
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFHEEE 42.9 42.2
Total assets s E 9,048.1 8,764.2
Bank and other loans RITRHMER 740.8 1,047.9
Notes =i - -
Deferred taxation liabilities EEFIERE 64.4 59.9
Lease liabilities HEAE 243.9 215.6
Obligation under finance leases MEMEET - -
Derivative Financial Instruments PTESmITA - -
Provision for restructuring EHEKAEE - 99.8
Current liabilities mEaE 5,107.0 4,856.8
Liabilities classified as held for sale NEAFHEZEE - -
Total liabilities waEE 6,156.1 6,280.0
2,892.0 2,484.2
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAREE AE(IEER 1,916.3 1,598.8
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 975.7 885.4
2,892.0 2,484.2

Notes: 1. The consolidated profit or loss included results of continuing and discontinued operations.
2.The financial information of 2013 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2014 resulting
from adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards effective in that year.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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(restated E5T#75))

(note 2 FizE2)

6,051.5 6,767.7 6,316.3 5,822.6 5,795.5 5,855.7 5,849.3 6,020.6
217.8 265.0 197.3 210.2 204.8 300.1 (196.0) 109.2
(126.5) (81.0 87.3) (103.2) (86.5) (114.3 (75.6) 42.8)
91.3 184.0 110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4
20.9 61.4 20.4 20.1 18.7 51.5 (127.9) 40.3
70.4 122.6 89.6 86.9 99.6 134.3 (143.7) 26.1
91.3 184.0 110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4

- - - 9.9 9.6 9.9 41.1 58.4
1,833.3 1,594.7 1,7556.1 1,400.8 1,393.4 1,409.2 1,495.5 1,601.5
177.2 - - - - - - -
1,501.6 1,484.3 1,489.8 1,403.7 1,333.5 1,318.9 1,346.0 1,298.7
58.4 77.4 ; - ; - - -

- - 87.5 64.0 62.3 61.1 75.8 69.9

- - - - - - - 40.8

83.4 . . - ; ; - ]
1.2 1.3 1.4 3.6 6.4 10.6 15.0 19.7
79.1 79.1 102.1 102.1 102.1 118.5 127.2 158.8
20.9 22.5 21.9 19.7 21.5 20.6 36.1 28.9
26.1 13.0 14.3 37.4 24.7 8.6 1.0 2.8
3,413.6 3,842.5 3,576.5 3,097.9 2,929.4 2,703.7 2,878.6 2,997.4
43.4 196.5 55.8 5.9 - 0.4 22.7 330.4
7,238.2 7,311.3 7,104.4 6,145.0 5,882.9 5,661.5 6,038.0 6,607.3
349.7 1,167.6 1,037.5 882.2 832.6 524.9 503.7 708.0

- : 119.0 - - . - :

41.1 241 22.4 23.2 18.7 26.8 39.0 38.7
94.6 - - - - - - -

- 3.3 0.6 1.0 0.5 0.7 0.7 2.7

_ 21 - _ _ - _ -

99.8 - - - - - - -
4,537.3 3,883.9 3,672.1 2,784.8 2,471.3 2,371.3 2,667.9 2,749.1
- - - - - - - 7.8
5,122.5 5,081.0 4,751.6 3,691.2 3,323.1 2,923.7 3,211.3 3,506.3
2,115.7 2,230.3 2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0
1,300.9 1,412.5 1,519.9 1,268.3 1,323.5 1,406.0 1,380.9 1,505.5
814.8 817.8 832.9 1,185.5 1,236.3 1,331.8 1,445.8 1,595.5
2,115.7 2,230.3 2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0

BiF: L SARGEEERECEESRDR LEEEBEE-

2. 20135 U BEAM R ENRY  ARRER AR 2014 F AR B BU B RERLBNEE 2 SEBCRED) -

SIEHETEFRAA]

ZO=—E-O=—4 4%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITR|ES

From the pandemic to trade anomalies and geopolitical
conflicts, the financial year that ended 31 March 2022

(“FY2022") has met with almost insurmountable challenges.

Our businesses are quite dependent on raw materials and
electronic components. The high commodity prices and
unstable supplies alongside high inflation, exchange rate
fluctuations and global logistical disruptions have resulted
in unfavorable market conditions for our businesses.

PIRBHEEREIESEFAZEBRNF - 2022 RFELE
BE%E - EENEFEAEERM A NEFEE - ALt
EXatRHEENE  NEEBREE - ERES) IR R E
TERMNEBE SRR TISRER

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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Results

Our cautious optimism for the year ahead is backed by what we have been
able to achieve, despite the hurdles we faced. Our revenue from continuing
operations for the year has increased by 8.4% to HK$7,062 million. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company increased from HK$121.9
million for FY2021 to HK$133.4 million for FY2022.

Basic earnings per share for FY2022 was 16.9 HK cents, compared to 15.5
HK cents reported in FY2021.

A Change of Company Name

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, the Hong Kong-listed company
that holds the majority stake of GP Industries Limited (“GP Industries”),
has recently changed its name to Gold Peak Technology Group Limited to
reflect its increased focus on the R&D of new rechargeable battery systems
and technically advanced B2B battery business. GP Industries will focus
on consumer batteries, consumer acoustics and electronics businesses,
and consumer brands development. This strategy will enable both listed
companies to better focus their respective resources and expertise.

Our Brands and Subsidiaries

Navigating the past year has been challenging. Our unique business model —
with ‘innovation’, ‘agility’ and ‘sustainability’ being the keywords in every
aspect — has enabled the Group to stay resilient in times of uncertainty.

The rechargeable battery business under GP Energy Tech Ltd. (“GP Energy
Tech”) will soon become a 100%-owned subsidiary of Gold Peak Technology
Group. GP Energy Tech will focus on manufacturing and development of
rechargeable batteries and sustainable energy storage system. Through
the investment and partnership with ZincFive Inc., the Group will produce
rechargeable Nickel Zinc (“NiZn”) batteries and parts, leveraging on safe and
sustainable NiZn chemistry to provide high-power density and performance
simultaneous with superior safety and environmental advantages. The
Group will increase its investment in expanding products and services in
the sustainable energy storage segment and continue to invest in battery

innovation technology.

Our Singapore-listed subsidiary, GP Industries Limited, will continue to focus
on consumer battery products and consumer brands. The launch of Recyko
Charge 10 — the world’s fastest Nickel Metal Hydride rechargeable battery
system with a 10-minute charge time — demonstrates our prowess in R&D,
engineering and green product innovations, contributing to sustainable
energy development.

SRR TEARAR] —O-—E-O-—FF®H

NP
II‘E

BERTEE ARERMBZERNITEER

BPERFNEREE - AP RFEHELE
¥IBLETIEIMNB.4% £70.62BH T ARE
BAEANRIEENHEFEL2I9EBT LR
1.334188 7T

REFZERERBNF16.981 LFERE
P 15.5 Hfll o

NCIE

BB LMAFE GP TEERAR (IGPIT%])
TERENSUTE (RE) BRARIES R R
SIRHE TR AR AT OB R BN
FEMRGRENDEL P (B2B) B
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT conro

Our premium acoustic brand, KEF, is gaining strong recognition in the
Hi-Fi and acoustic engineering arena as a pioneer in reproducing very
high-fidelity sound. Our digital and wireless technology has transformed
traditional speakers into user-friendly, “future-fi” wireless music systems.
Together with the use of other innovations and technologies, such as MAT
and building of KEF’s online communities, we are turning more music lovers
into modern audiophiles.

To cater for music performances in a more versatile or even makeshift format,
we have plan to advance CELESTION (our famed guitar speaker driver brand)
with new premium prosumer sound products, such as C-Music — a high
performance portable busking system.

Sustainability and ESG

The world’s crises have heightened our commitment to sustainability —
from the need to be more resource-conscious to increased demand
for green solutions and practices, efficient production, sustainable
packaging design, and productive partnerships. Cultural shifts take time
to effect lasting change and we have made strategic sustainability-
minded hires to expedite development. \We are determined to embrace
ESG in our organizational cultures to become value drivers for
purposeful business growth.

We value how we take part in shaping consumer behaviors to use
less single-use batteries. The Recyko Charge 10 rechargeable battery
system is not just about speed; it is about bringing convenience to users.
Sustainability is inseparable from business practices and should be part of
people’s lives. We are grateful to partners like CLP Power who appreciates
our green endeavors and helps to raise the awareness of our Recyko
Charge 10 to their customers.

Through manufacturing capacity rebalancing and “Zero Waste To Landfill”
scheme of our manufacturing facilities, we are committed to optimizing the
use of resources and minimizing waste generation. Through working with our
stakeholders, we will switch more consumers to sustainable use of green energy,
hence avoiding carbon emissions and helping to combat the climate crisis.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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The Strength of Our People

Expertise in our specialized businesses takes years to hone. None of
our business performance and achievements would have been possible
without the exceptional dedication, passion and collaborative creativity
of our diverse team. \We are a people-oriented company and we have
implemented new wellbeing-centric work practices during the COVID-19
pandemic. \We have not met many key team members face-to-face for
two vears, yet strong teamwork and trust have enabled us to persevere
and make good progress. | look forward to reconnecting with our team

and partners in person.

Looking Ahead

The global economy remains very challenging, yvet through our
resourcefulness, continuous re-appraisal of the market environment and re-
prioritization, we have responded quickly and decisively. | have confidence in
our teams, our vision for a better and more sustainable future, and our ability
to sustain growth. Ours is a large and complex global operation; mutual trust
and devotion across every aspect of the group is crucial as it empowers us
to grow, adapt, and achieve. On behalf of the Board, | extend my sincere
gratitude to our leadership team and employees for their hard work and
commitment. | thank my fellow Board members for their stewardship, and
the staunch support of all our customers, shareholders, business partners
and suppliers in co-creating a bright and sustainable future.

Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman and Chief Executive

29 June 2022
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
£ 3 CI]

Overview

The financial year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022") was a most challenging
year. Global supply shortages brought sharp and record high commodities
and electronic components price increases. Disruptions in global shipping and
logistics also raised shipping costs to levels not seen previously. To maintain
product supply to customers while containing cost increases under such a
business environment posed acute operational challenges.

GP Industries

(85.59% owned by Gold Peak as of 31 March 2022)

When compared with FY2021, the revenue of GP Industries increased by
6.5% to S$1,223 million, mainly driven by the remarkable 38.9% revenue
growth of the Electronics and Acoustics Business.

Other operating income increased to S$48.7 million for FY2022 was mainly
contributed by write-back of excess provision for relocation of a factory in
the Electronics and Acoustics Business, together with disposal gain and
compensation income reported by the Batteries Business.

Other operating expenses also increased to S$37.1 million for the financial
year, mainly from impairment charges made for the Group’s batteries
business in Russia and additional cost for relocation of battery factories from
Huizhou to Dongguan, China.

On 31 August 2021, GP Industries divested the Automotive Wire Harness
Business. This divestment resulted in a loss of $$3.21 million, including a
S$$2.07 million exchange translation deficit charged to profit and loss, and
goodwiill written off amounting to $$0.27 million.

Batteries Business

Revenue of the Batteries Business was S$940.9 million in FY2022, a slight
drop of 0.5% when compared to FY2021. Sales of battery products in
Europe and Asia increased by 3.4% and 2.5% respectively while sales in the
Americas declined by 10.1%.

Soaring raw material costs, especially Zinc and Nickel, added price pressure
to the Batteries Business. While the management worked closely with
customers on price increases, the time needed to negotiate for price rises
unfortunately lagged behind the material cost increases, leading to reduced
gross profit margin for FY2022.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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The unstable business environment in Russia has caused the management to
make a S$14.1 million impairment charge on the investment in the Russia-based
business and allowance for credit loss against receivables, which represents a
full provision against the investment and a part of the unsettled receivables.

FY2022 saw the Group making strong progress on rebalancing manufacturing
facilities across Southeast Asia. The Carbon Zinc 9-volt battery plant in
Huizhou, China was moved to Xiegang, Dongguan. The Nickel Metal Hydride
rechargeable battery plant in Huizhou is on track to be completely relocated to
Xiegang in the first half of FY2023. These relocation projects incurred a cost
of approximately S$12.7 million, mainly for severance payments to employees,
while a S$8.2 million disposal gain was also reported.

The 70%-owned Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co Ltd (“ZYNB”) is being moved to
a new campus also in Ningbo. Due to the large scale of this factory, relocation is
expected to complete by end of FY2023. ZYNB reported a compensation income
of S$6.7 million for a portion of the factory buildings in the existing campus
returned to the government, while costs incurred in moving the factory including a
write-back of an over-provision of relocation costs amounted to S$4.2 million.

The Batteries Business reported a drop in profit contribution for FY2022,
mainly due to reduced contributions, higher impairment charges and
relocation costs, and reduced share of profit from associates.

Electronics and Acoustics Business

During the COVID-19 lockdown in major markets for most of FY2022,
consumers were active in buying home entertainment and music practice
equipment. As a result, the revenue of the professional audio manufacturing
business, which saw a significant decline in FY2021, has rebounded.
Revenue of the Electronics and Acoustics Business increased by 38.9%
when compared with the last financial year.

Revenue of the branded acoustics business saw vigorous growth, driven
mainly by KEF's innovative wireless music systems and sales channel
expansion. Sales of KEF products increased by 37.1% in FY2022, with
increases across all major geographical markets. KEF reported 49.4%, 23.8%
and 37.6% revenue growth in the Americas, Europe and Asia, respectively.
Sales of the CELESTION brand professional speaker driver business also
recovered with a 51.6% revenue growth and sales to the Americas and Asia
increased by 66.3% and 58.1%, respectively.
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REVIEVWW OF OPERATIONS conro)
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The professional audio manufacturing business reported a 37.9% increase in
revenue in FY2022 with increased sales to all major geographical markets,
including a 52.8% increase to the Americas. Productivity increase at the
51%-owned subsidiary factory in Thailand helped to satisfy increased
demand for made-in-Thailand professional audio products. This factory is
developing a competitive edge against global competitors especially during

the lingering US tariff on China-made products.

Higher revenue from subsidiaries, write-back of excess restructuring
provision, and an increase in the aggregate share of profit from associated
companies all contributed to the business’ impressive increase in profit
contribution during the very difficult business environment.

During the year, GP Industries maintained a high level of inventory to
safeguard the supply of critical electronic components and to maintain
supply flexibility during the global shipping capacity squeeze. Though
this strategy helped to sustain revenue growth, it also put pressure on the
Group’s working capital requirement in financing the business.

Other Industrial Investments

This business segment includes GP Industries’ investments in Meiloon
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Meiloon”) and XIC Innovation Limited (“XIC Innovation”,
formerly known as Linkz Industries Limited). During FY2022, Meiloon
reported an increase in revenue but contributed less profit, as the FY2021
results included a S$13.7 million property disposal gain. In March 2022, XIC
Innovation completed the disposal of its 63.58%-owned subsidiary, Time
Interconnect Technology Limited, and reported a disposal gain. Overall,
profit contribution from XIC Innovation increased.

Financial Review

During the year, the Group’s net bank borrowings increased by HK$197 million
to HK$2,637 million. As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate of the Group’s
shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests was HK$2,892 million and
the Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio of consolidated net bank borrowings to
shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests) was 0.91 (31 March 2021:
0.98). The gearing ratios of the Company and GP Industries were 0.50 (31
March 2021: 0.57) and 0.66 (31 March 2021: 0.66) respectively.

At 31 March 2022, 81% (31 March 2021: 72%) of the Group’s bank
borrowings was revolving or repayable within one year whereas 19%
(31 March 2021: 28%) was repayable from one to five years. Most of
these bank borrowings are in US dollars, Singapore dollars and Hong
Kong dollars.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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The Group’s strategy to consolidate some of the Group’s older factories
into new highly automated mega factories and to rebalance the Group'’s
manufacturing capacity in Asia led to a period of higher investments in
property, plant and equipment (“CAPEX”") in the past few years. From 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2022, the Group’s CAPEX amounted to approximately
HK$2,069 million in aggregate. These investments were funded primarily by
the Group’s internal resources, including cash, short-term banking facilities
and disposal of non-core assets. The manufacturing capacity rebalancing
project will be mostly completed in FY2023 and the Group’s CAPEX is
expected to significantly reduce.

Taking into consideration the Group’s internally generated funds and
available banking facilities, the management is confident that the Group has
sufficient resources to settle its current liabilities as they fall due.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currencies arises mainly from the net cash
flow and the translation of net monetary assets or liabilities of its overseas
subsidiaries. It has continued to manage foreign-exchange risks prudently.
Forward forex contracts, borrowings in local currencies, and local sourcing
have been arranged to minimize the impact of currency risk.
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EVENTS & ACHIEVEMENTS
SE B

On 28 December 2021, GP Industries announced the proposed distribution
in-specie of the rechargeable batteries manufacturing business (the
“Proposed Distribution”). The Proposed Distribution is conditional, inter
alia, on the completion of the restructuring of the rechargeable batteries
manufacturing business, which is still in progress.

In February 2022, the Company proposed a rights issue at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.62 per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every
six existing Shares. In March 2022, the Rights Issue was completed with an
over-subscription of close to 50% and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$77.6 million.

The Company has been renamed as Gold Peak Technology Group Limited
effective 23 March 2022 to better project the Company’s new strategy
and future direction as a progressive group in advanced technologies
and manufacturing of batteries and electronics, as well as the Group’s

investment strategies in R&D, innovation, design and brands.

Batteries

In late 2021, the Company came into an agreement with ZincFive, Inc. to
produce rechargeable batteries and parts with Nickel Zinc which is a safe
and sustainable chemical for energy solution.

GP Batteries and Southern University of Science & Technology, Shenzhen,
China, established a joint laboratory in September 2021 to develop
advanced materials for upgrading the GP Lithium-lon battery products.

GP Batteries and three factories in China were named “EcoPartner”,
“5 Years+ EcoPioneer” or “EcoChallenger” of the BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards by Federation of Hong Kong Industries
to recognize their contribution and effort in environmental protection and
minimizing pollution in the Pan Pearl River Delta region.

Four plants in Malaysia and Vietnam received UL Zero \Waste to Landfill Gold
Validation and one plant in China obtained Silver Validation to acknowledge
their efforts and achievements in maximizing production waste diversion
and energy recovery as well as their ongoing commitment to sustainable
development.

GP M2 series powerbank was presented the “Red Dot Award: Product
Design 2022” by Red Dot Design Museum, Germany.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

fE2021F12 A28 H GP IXEMEREE
KRB LR  MERE n?)f%xe“ﬁ_ﬂx#'
WA ETHN B EEEEHE -

2022F 2 B RRIZFEAGSEIRBRMEC—K
HER RO ASEE RERHRAE D REEO0.62
ETTHETTHLAR - HARPA 2022 F S ATERK - 811530

50% FBRERREE - FTIS SIRRRERY 7760 BB T o

M2022F3A230 ARIBASZIUREETESR
RAR] - BB R B AR R ES A AR R TT
[ MEERRAERTEEEMNEFERN
EIEE - WIRRR AR - 8137 AT MR o

EmER

20215 K ' A F 8 ZincFive, Inc. 28] A 1EWH
FH AR R ERIRI LB RAERITSE
pyNEI L

2021495 - DI RE RFERYI D RS
BEARRIBAERE HRANL GP &2
BT BRERHII

BHE=EURPENEERETELE
Wgﬁﬁ% [PIRBBLERFRALKNE] 2[R
REELINFE] - [DF+RIREER] X [RREF L
% URGEEZR=AMERNETRRRE
WATBR BRI AR

PO T o3 Bl 7 5 SR 78 55 % L T ) BB Ot R R
UL EEYTHERZ | 8 mBE—HLRF
B E R UL B THEIBRE | SRR A
KRB BB NRFRER YL R MBE R U -
ARAEATFHE2E E— B ARPIEL VR B

GP M2 Z7 |t EE L EEBIAT 2%
B [2022 4T BhEE R ETHE | ©

SHEYEER

20



Electronics and Acoustics

GP Electronics (HK) Limited was presented the “2021 Collaboration Award”
by Fender Musical Instruments Corporation to recognize its initiative and
swift action made to redesign the products to maintain product supply under
the worldwide material shortages.

KEF LS50 Wireless Il was named “Product of the year 2021 - Best All-
in-One System over £1,000” and “Best Product 2021-2022: Wireless
Standmount Loudspeakers” by \What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision, UK and EISA,
UK respectively. It was also presented a number of awards in Europe, US
and Japan.

KEF LS50 Meta loudspeaker was named “Product of the year 2021 -
Best Standmount Speaker £750-£1,500" and “Best Product 2021-2022:
Standmount Loudspeakers” by \What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision, UK and EISA,
UK respectively.

KEF KC62 subwoofer was named “Best Product 2021-2022: Hi-Fi
Subwoofer” by EISA, UK. It was presented a number of awards in Europe
throughout the vear.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBEN

Executive Directors

Victor LO Chung Wing GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 72, joined Gold Peak
Technology Group in 1972 and has been appointed the Chairman and Chief
Executive since 1990. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
GP Industries Limited and GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Lo is a member
of the board of directors of Hong Kong Design Centre and a director of PMQ
Management Company Limited. Mr Lo graduated from Institute of Design of
lllinois Institute of Technology, US with a Bachelor of Science degree in Product
Design. He also holds an Honorary Doctorate in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is the father of Ms Grace Lo Kit Yee.

Brian LI Yiu Cheung DBA, aged 69, has been appointed an Executive Director
since 2015. Dr Li joined Gold Peak Technology Group in 1981 and is currently
the Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President of the Company. He is also an
Executive Director and the Executive Vice President of GP Industries Limited.
He has been engaging in the electronic engineering and manufacturing industry
internationally and in China for over 35 years. He is the vice chairman of The Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association and a council member of the Hong Kong
Electronics Industry Council of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is a
member of the Co-operative Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong,
a member of the Industrial Advisory Committee for the Department of Industrial
Engineering and Decision Analytics of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, a member of the Advisory Committee for the Department of
Electronic Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a member
of the Electronic and Information Engineering Programme Board of Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education. Dr Li is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from The
University of British Columbia, Canada, a Master’s degree in Global Business
with Dean’s Honour from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Doctor of
Business Administration degree from City University of Hong Kong.

Michael LAM Hin Lap aged 61, joined Gold Peak Technology Group in 2014
and has been appointed an Executive Director since 2019. He is currently
the Managing Director of the Company. He is also an Executive Director,
Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President of GP Industries Limited, and
a Director of GP Batteries International Limited. He first joined the Group in
2001 and was transferred to a global energy management group following
the disposal of the Group’s electrical business in 2007. He has been in senior
management positions for over 20 years. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from The University of New South WWales, Australia.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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Brian WONG Tze Hang aged 59, joined Gold Peak Technology Group in
1993 and has been appointed an Executive Director since 2019. Mr Wong
is currently Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also a Director of
GP Batteries International Limited. Mr \Wong has over 35 years’ experience
in the finance and accounting field and is a fellow of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the UK. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the University of London, UK.

Victor CHONG Toong Ying aged 57, joined Gold Peak Technology Group
in 2016 and has been appointed an Executive Director since 1 July 2021.
He is currently Director, Co-Vice Chairman and President of GP Batteries
International Limited. He has over 30 years’ working experience in electrical
energy management, and has held senior management positions in strategic
leadership and international operation and business development covering
China, Asia Pacific, Europe and the Middle East. Mr Chong is a member
of Australian Institute of Company Directors and The Singapore Chamber
of Commerce (Hong Kong). He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Engineering from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology, Australia.

Waltery LAW \Wang Chak aged 59, joined Gold Peak Technology Group in
2018 and has been appointed an Executive Director since 1 July 2021. Mr Law is
currently Senior Vice President, Group Finance Management of the Company. He
is also Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer and Senior
Vice President, Finance and Corporate Development of GP Industries Limited. Mr
Law has over 35 years’ experience in global fund raising and floatation exercises,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate financial advisory, corporate restructuring,
investors relations, financial due diligence, and financial audit. Mr Law is a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He is currently registered as a certified public accountant
with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a certified
internal auditor with the Institute of Internal Auditors. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics and a Master’s degree in Financial Economics, both from the

London School of Economics and Political Science, University of London, UK.

Non-Executive Directors

Karen NG Ka Fai CFA, aged 41, has been appointed a Non-Executive
Director since 2015. Ms Ng managed transactions in Asia for global
financial institutions, and possesses more than 10 years of experience in
investment in the region. She graduated from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, US with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science. Ms Ng is the daughter of the late Mr Andrew Ng, an
Executive Director of the Company from 1984 to 2014.
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LUI Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 84, has been appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is currently an honorary chairman
of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, an honorary president
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an honorary
Chairman of The Federation of HK Shandong Community Organizations
and an Advisor Professor of Shandong University, China. He is also a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr Lui is currently the managing
director of Keystone Electronics Co. Ltd. He is also an independent non-
executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited and L.K. Technology
Holdings Limited, both are listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained his
Master’'s and Doctoral degrees from the University of New South Wales,
Australia and the University of Saskatchewan, Canada respectively.

Frank CHAN Chi Chung FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 68, has been appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 2004. He is currently a group
executive director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic Industries Company
Limited. Mr Chan is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and \Wales. He is qualified to
practise as a certified public accountantin Hong Kong.

CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 75, has been appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director since 2005. Prof Chan is an honorary chairman of The Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association and honorary presidents of the Hong Kong
Association for the Advancement of Science and Technology and the Hong Kong
Mould and Product Technology Association. In addition, he is the professional
advisor and committee member of the Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries. Prof Chan is currently the chairman
and senior managing director of Surface Mount Technology Limited.

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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Timothy TONG Wai Cheung PhD, FASME, FHKENng, JP, aged 69, has been
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director since 2019. Prof Tong is also
Non-Executive Independent Director of GP Industries Limited. He has over 30
years of teaching, research and administrative experience in universities in the
US and Hong Kong. Prior to serving as president of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University from 2009 to 2018, he was the dean of the School of Engineering and
Applied Science at The George \Washington University, US. Being an expert in
the field of heat transfer, Prof Tong is dedicated to addressing issues concerning
energy use and sustainable development. He is a fellow of the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences and the
International Thermal Conductivity Conference. Prof Tong’s public engagement
includes being chairman of the Council of Hong Kong Laureate Forum, members
of the InnoHK Steering Committee and Global STEM Professorship Scheme
Assessment Panel for the Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau of the
HKSAR. Additionally, he has been appointed member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also the chief executive
officer of AMTD Foundation and chairman of AMTD Digital Inc. The former is a
charity organization set up to assist AMTD Group in fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility. Prof Tong is currently a non-executive director of Freetech Road
Recycling Technology (Holdings) Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Xiaomi Corporation, Gravitation Fintech HK Limited and Airstar Bank
Limited. Prof Tong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from Oregon State University, US, and holds a Master’s and a Doctoral degrees in
the same discipline from the University of California, Berkeley, US.

Senior Mlanagement

Grace LO Kit Yee aged 51, joined Gold Peak Technology Group in 2002 and
is currently Deputy Managing Director of the Company. She is also Executive
Director of GP Industries Limited and President of KEF Audio Group under GP
Acoustics International Limited. She graduated from Northwestern University,
US and holds a Master of Design degree from lllinois Institute of Technology,
US as well as an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. She is the daughter of Mr Victor Lo Chung Wing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) in Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the
deviations from A.2.1 of the Code, details of which are set out below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board of directors (the “Board”) is on the overall
strategic development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2022, the Board comprised five executive directors (one of
whom is the Chairman), one non-executive director and four independent
non-executive directors. The biographical details of all directors of the
Company are set out on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Richard KU Yuk Hing (retired with effect from 1 July 2021)

Brian LI Yiu Cheung (Vice Chairman (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021) &
Executive Vice President)

Michael LAM Hin Lap

Brian WONG Tze Hang

Victor CHONG Toong Ying (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Waltery LAW Wang Chak (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Non-Executive Director:
Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice of at
least 14 days has been given to all directors for all regular board meetings and
the directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular board
meetings are sent in full to all directors within reasonable time prior to the
meeting.
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The Board’s primary function is to assume responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company. The directors are collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Other duties of the directors
include but not limited to maintaining effective control of the Company,
giving specific strategic direction to the Company, reviewing, approving and
monitoring the fundamental financial and business strategies, plans and major
corporate actions, ensuring that the Company complies with the relevant
laws, regulations and codes of business practice, ensuring that the Company
communicates with shareholders and the relevant stakeholders transparently
and promptly and monitoring the overall corporate governance functions of
the Company.

Although the Board may and has delegated some of its responsibilities and
functions to various committees and principal divisions, it acknowledges
that it remains ultimately accountable for the performance and affairs of the
Company.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the company secretary and copies of minutes are sent to the directors for
their records. Each Board member is entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary and, upon reasonable request and
in appropriate circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, nine board meetings and three general
meetings were held and the attendance of each director was set out as
follows:

HEBITEER HEBTRE
E PN BRE
Number of board Number of general
EEHE Name of director meetings attended/held  meetings attended/held
RIS Victor LO Chung Wing 9/9 3/3
EEE (A202146 78 1A ) Richard KU Yuk Hing (retired on 1 July 2021) 4/4¢ 0/0*
TR Brian LI Yiu Cheung 9/9 3/3
HRE Michael LAM Hin Lap 9/9 3/3
HTE Brian WONG Tze Hang 9/9 3/3
SRE{ (R202157A 18 £ V/ictor CHONG Toong Ying (appointed on 5/5* 3/3"
1July 2021)
BIE (P 2021F7A 18 £T) Waltery LAW Wang Chak (appointed on 5/5* 2/3*
1July 2021)
RKE Karen NG Ka Fai 9/9 3/3
= AR LUI Ming Wah 8/9 3/3
PRI Frank CHAN Chi Chung 9/9 3/3
PRE iR CHAN Kei Biu 9/9 2/3
ERE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 8/9 3/3

* O EEREITERRE
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Total number of meetings held during tenure
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

In respect of continuing professional development, the Company will provide
an induction package including necessary information and briefings for
newly appointed directors and directors are encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to ensure that they are
aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. Ongoing professional training had been and will be offered to
all directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as directors of
a listed company.

During the vear, all the directors have participated in continuing professional
development relevant to the Company’s business and corporate governance
in the following manner:

BESERRTE2ER
(&)

Type of continuous
professional
development

#E Name of directors programmes (Note)

HITES Executive Directors:

il Victor LO Chung Wing AC

BT E (R20214 78 1HEMF) Richard KU Yuk Hing (retired with effect Not Applicable
from 1 July 2021) T

TR Brian LI Yiu Cheung A B,C

MEESL Michael LAM Hin Lap AC

Eal =l Brian WWONG Tze Hang AB,C

FRE(C (20219478 18 £) Victor CHONG Toong Ying (appointed with effect AB,C
from 1 July 2021)

FEE (2021978 18 £) Waltery LAW Wang Chak (appointed with effect AB,C
from 1 July 2021)

FEHITES ! Non-Executive Director:

REKIE Karen NG Ka Fai AC

BYFHITES ! Independent Non-executive Directors:

SRR LUI Ming Wah ABC

PR TR Frank CHAN Chi Chung AB,C

PR HL g CHAN Kei Biu AC

EBEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung AC

it Notes:

A 2R -

B: 2 E &%  wIER/EAERE -

C: UHRE CEMRA) FEAEE EFUA R E FH AR
B EMERZBEEEH -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

A: Attending training provided by lawyers.

Attending seminars, meetings, forums and/or briefings.

C: Receiving reading materials in relation to update on the Listing Rules and other
statutory requirement and other relevant topics relating to listed companies.

@
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The corporate governance function of the Group is collectively performed by
the Board. The Board acknowledges overseeing the corporate governance
function of the Group collectively and agreed to comply with a specific
written terms of reference. During the year under review, the Board has
performed the following corporate governance functions:

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made recommendations;

- reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

- monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company. Although A2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, the Board considers that the present structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group as the Group’s principal businesses are separately
listed and run by different boards of directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
needs of the business of the Company.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with each of the non-
executive directors and the independent non-executive directors pursuant to
which they are appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The main duties and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review
the composition of the Board at least annually, to make recommendations
to the Board on the changes of the Board, including the appointment or
re-appointment of directors, to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, provided that no directors being involved in fixing his own terms of
appointment and no independent non-executive directors being involved in
assessing his own independence. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have been posted on
the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee
comprised:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

During the year ended 31 March 2022, one Nomination Committee meeting

—IREHE c UK EZHREEREINNAT ¢ was held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as
follows:

HEBIEBRHE

Number of meeting

MEHA Name of member attended/held
Pl Victor LO Chung Wing 1/1
ERFEE LUI Ming Wah 1/1
PR R Frank CHAN Chi Chung 1/1
BeR L 4 CHAN Kei Biu 1/1
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
March 2022 included (i) reviewing the board diversity policy, the nomination
policy, procedures and criteria for nomination of Directors and the structure,
size and composition of the Board, (ii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors, (iii) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and (iv) considering
the Board succession plan.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The nomination policy sets out the criteria and procedures for the selection,
appointment/re-appointment of directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee reviews the composition of the Board at least annually and makes
recommendations to the Board on the changes of the Board. Proposed
candidate(s) will be asked to submit the necessary information in order for the
Board to assess their suitability. The Board shall ensure that the procedures
of nomination, selection and appointment/re-appointment are in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee reviews the nomination policy on
a regular basis so as to ensure its effectiveness.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to diversity of members of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit, and candidates will be considered by objective criteria, including
but not limited to skills, knowledge, professional experience, cultural and
educational background, gender, age and length of service, for their potential
contribution to the Board and the Company as a whole in order to achieve
board efficiency. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives
and its sustainable development.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee comprised:

LUI Ming Wah (Chairman)
Frank CHAN Chi Chung
CHAN Kei Biu

Karen NG Ka Fai

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in technicality,
business and accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have been posted on the
Company’s website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Audit Committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HEBITEERE

Number of meetings

REHA Name of member attended/held
m ARz LUI Ming Wah 2/2
PR TR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 2/2
PRELEE CHAN Kei Biu 2/2
RRME Karen NG Ka Fai 2/2
s Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 2/2
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The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March
2022 included reviewing the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six
months ended 30 September 2021, with recommendations to the Board for
approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
endorse the remuneration policy of the directors and senior management, to
approve the directors’ service contracts and to make recommendations to
the Board for the remuneration of the directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has taken sufficient measures to ensure that no
director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on
the Company’s website.

32



FMEEE

MEBE202263A3IRILFER - HEMEE 8T
—REH - BUKB ZHEFREHINMT -

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held and the attendance of each committee member was set
out as follows:

HEBITERRE

Number of meeting

REHE Name of member attended/held
PRETR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 1/1
=R LUI Ming Wah 1/1
PR EL 47 CHAN Kei Biu 1/1
S Victor LO Chung Wing 1/1
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2022 included reviewing the remuneration policy and the
remuneration of the directors and senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
announcements, financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to the regulators as well as information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT conro)

TEERBE @

REREER AR

BEEROAAEE 2 RERETE XA EPEE G E M ER
BT - 2B - AREENEREEESTEIAR
HETEFR - RRAZFREEE MR ES -
ﬁ$%§&7}7§€ﬁxﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬂ BER R AR
CREBERRNERAEEZEE

A
REBEZINEZHENEE - BERD SFEITREE

20224 3A31A L FEMRH IR EN RENSZ
BRAMT :

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of risk management
and internal control of the Group and its effectiveness covering the
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management functions
and considered them effective and adequate. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound risk management and internal control
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group'’s assets.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external

auditor of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31 March
2022 were as follows:

e ERER

BR A5 12 fit Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FIT

HK$'000

HETARTS Audit services 10,141
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A&t Total 10,613
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Note: Non-audit services were mainly tax management and consultation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Louis WONG NMan Kon is the
company secretary of the Company and he has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules by obtaining no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy (the “Policy”)
which aims at promoting and facilitating effective communication with its
shareholders. The objective is to ensure that the Company provides timely,
clear, reliable and relevant information for its shareholders in exercising
their rights. The Policy includes how shareholders can convene a general
meeting, the procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board and the
procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting. Sufficient
contact details for the above can also be found in the Policy. A procedure
for election of directors was also adopted to provide guidelines on how
shareholders can nominate an individual as director of the Company. The
Policy and the procedures for nomination of directors are published on the
Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no change to the articles of

association of the Company. The articles of association of the Company has
been posted on the Company’s website.
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The Group is committed to reducing the impact on the environment and being
socially responsible to its employees, customers and the communities. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group complied with all relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental, social and governance issues. The
2021-2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be published
separately on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL

To effectively monitor and minimize waste and emissions, task forces have
been set up. Policies are in place to cut down hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes as well as to properly handle industrial waste water and hazardous
wastes. There are also recycling guidelines and programs to reduce wastes
and for more efficient use of resources.

The Group strives to reduce energy consumption to alleviate effects on
global warming. Green building concept has been employed to reduce
energy consumption in its factories. Air-conditioning, electricity and water
conservation have been closely tracked and reviewed to maintain a lean and
an efficient operation. Product packaging is constantly reviewed in order to
reduce material usage and minimise the impact on the environment.

The Group maintains a well-established supply chain management policy
to monitor the quality of suppliers. Random audits at suppliers’ production
sites are conducted to ensure their continual compliance with the technical
requirements and quality of products, health, safety and environment
standards as well as business ethics.

The production of safe and quality products has always been the top priority
of the Group. The Group strives to comply with all regulatory requirements
pertaining to the health and safety of its products and services. Appropriate
channels have been set up to receive customer feedback for continuous
improvement.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 7,050
people worldwide. The Group strives to provide its employees with a safe
and healthy workplace and offer them fair and competitive remuneration
packages. Remuneration policies and packages are reviewed regularly to
ensure that compensation and benefits are in line with the market of each
territory.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (continued)

The Group invests in employees through development programs to enhance
their soft and hard skills as well as work competence in preparation for their
career development. Employees participated in various workshops and
training sessions on laws and regulations, management and leadership skills,
as well as language and communication during the year.

The Group is committed to compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws
and regulations. It prohibits its employees from offering, making or receiving
any bribes or kickbacks for the purpose of securing an improper business
advantage, or otherwise engaging in corrupt activities or practices.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing policy that allows anyone
to report misconduct or malpractice without fear of reprisal through a
confidential channel.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group nurtures a caring culture
among employees in the workplace and reciprocates to the community
through participation in various community events during the year. The Group
has joined the Community Chest’'s Corporate and Employee Contribution
Program for decades. It is also an active supporter of many community events
throughout the year. In recognition of its continuous commitment in good
corporate citizenship, the Group has been awarded the Caring Company
Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for 20 consecutive years.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES ANID BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are investment holding and
development, manufacturing, marketing and trading of batteries, electronics
and acoustics products, which are set out in notes 46 and 47 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities, including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties the Group is facing and an indication of likely future
developments of the Group’s business, can be found in the Review of
Operations set out on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 53 and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements. No interim dividend (2021: nil) was paid to the shareholders
during the year. To preserve the Company’s financial resources, the board of
directors does not propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: nil).

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$302,667,000 to expand its business. Details of
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2022 (2021: nil).
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DONATIONS

During the vear, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$ 194,000 (2021: HK$154,000).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Richard KU Yuk Hing (retired with effect from 1 July 2021)

Brian LI Yiu Cheung (Vice Chairman (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)
& Executive Vice President)

Michael LAM Hin Lap

Brian WONG Tze Hang

Victor CHONG Toong Ying (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Waltery LAW Wang Chak (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021)

Non-Executive Director:
Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Messrs. Victor LO Chung Wing, CHAN Kei Biu, Timothy TONG Wai Cheung
and Ms. Karen Ng Ka Fai are due to retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS (continuec)

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive director and independent non-executive directors have
been appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the vear.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss
or damages which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the
execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto. The Company had
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and other officers of the Group for the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part X\/ of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were
as follows:

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2022, the interests of the directors and the chief executive
in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

BELBERDEE
Number of _
ordina:j\/ slt)sar:s FATCRT
Ry Z2BE D

held
Percentage of
BAER issued share
Personal capital of
-4 Name of director interests the Company
%
FrallE S Victor LO Chung Wing 238,441,685 26.05
£/ ¥ Brian LI Yiu Cheung 350,000 0.04
MRERSL Michael LAM Hin Lap - -
=1 Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
KRR Victor CHONG Toong Ying - -
BRZ Waltery LAW \Wang Chak 1,995,132 0.22
REHE Karen NG Ka Fai 48,868,573 5.34
=Rz LUI Ming Wah - -
PRI Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
PR L4 CHAN Kei Biu - -
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

40



ESRABNEADAREBELNRES 2ERE @) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuec)

(b) AT ZBELTARGER FR) (b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations (long
positions)
M2022463A31H - FEFRBENK QAL As at 31 March 2022, the direct beneficial interests of the directors and
85.59% w2 B ARIGPITEABR AR ([GP the chief executive in the shares of GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind”), an
T EREE 2RO ERAT 85.59%-owned subsidiary of the Company, were as follows:
BREEERVHERECRT
RGBZBEDE

Number of ordinary shares
and percentage of their
issued share capital held

GPI %
BE Name of director GP Ind
B

Number %
PSS Victor LO Chung Wing 300,000 0.06
ESres Brian LI Yiu Cheung 1,465,000 0.30
MERSL Michael LAM Hin Lap - -
HTE Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
SRR Victor CHONG Toong Ying - -
N = Waltery LAW Wang Chak 116,400 0.02
RKHE Karen NG Ka Fai 94,603 0.02
=R LUI Ming Wah - -
PR TR Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
PR EL 4 CHAN Kei Biu - -
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -

BrUA AT EESN - 2022 3A31H - EE K4EE,  Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors, the chief
S EHEBEALTRARASBIEESRPEEHERZ Y executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the Company
BN E 2 BHFRB TR - or any of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K 41



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (onro

EEREEE-

ESRARBERORES ZEF

BAESE  BE HRBREIBRUATFR - A
RBEARRBZES  IRAFEITRUFER

PRUA EFTHEERSN - 202246 3A 31H » KRR Z&E
ERBFORARARRAREEMMERT (EERE
MR G EXVED 2k - RO RESS -
BERBEES FBEGRPIBEXVES 715 87 #i /A 10
HMARRAREBBR R (REREES B ENE
BIESOREERRREE 2 BATAR) - HIREE
7 BB 5D 5 352(R B AZ G DIFT B 2L i - 3%
BRI EMETAERETESRXSRETRZRER
BARNE R BB R PTZ ERIOAR -

BRIA_EFTIRERSN - EREEEMBRE - ARFAHEE
AMBRRRASREMZHASEARR ZEEHA
B AERNBEALTEBBEARRHERMEAER
Bz IR EF MEISHE

HE AT ES
EFRANBAARKEFONARS A

AEMBARKEESTNSEEE FHR
www.goldpeak.com [1& & & FIR] —1 o

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the directors, chief executive, their spouses or children under the
age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the vyear.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV/ of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or
the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are in the opinion that due to the excessive number of
subsidiaries and their directors, disclosure of the names of all subsidiaries and
their directors in this Directors’ Report would be made by way of reference
to the information on the names of subsidiaries and their directors under
“Investor Relations” at www.goldpeak.com.
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W20229E3A318 © MHIAL QfEARFzEES  As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (not being a director or chief

AE) HAREES N EEIENE33GIEEMBMAL  executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or

RIZ RATRMAERERGD 2048 - EHESHK  underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

BB TR AR BIREAS HIMIER T#17%  Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,

SRR 2 AR RIAR AR D%k A L interested in 5% or more of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

ARATEBITRA

pA=Ei4

Percentage of

BEZEREE issued share

BR 514 Number of capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held the Company

RER ZamA 98,432,150 (note 1) 10.75%
TO May Mee Beneficial owner (F5ELD)

RIEME ZamA 48,868,573 (note 1) 5.34%
Jessica NG Sheen Fai Beneficial owner (F5ED)

Ring Lotus Investment Limited SYEHIA AR 70,569,500 (note 2) 7.71%
(“Ring Lotus”) Interests of controlled corporation (Ff5E2)

HSBC International Trustee Limited ZEEA 70,569,500 (note 2) 7.71%
(“HSBC Trustee”) Trustee (Ff5E2)

BIE Notes:

1 BREBLTRREELEDRARRRIZIEHNITESESR 1. Madam TO May Mee and Ms. Jessica NG Sheen Fai are the mother and sister,
RIE L4 2 3R IR IR © respectively, of Ms. Karen NG Ka Fai, a non-executive director of the Company.

2. WMEMEREEZRERING LotusFHSBC Trustee?» 2. According to the two corporate substantial shareholder notices filed by Ring Lotus

BIVEH AIE AN - HSBC Trustee ARR D ZFEAM F D3 and HSBC Trustee respectively, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be interested in
RIEREE # A 70,569,50008 (8 15 2 % « EERD B 70,569,500 shares in its capacity as the trustee of these shares, which were in turn
HSBC Trusteez 2 & %A A AIRIng Lotus AR #2612 owned by Ring Lotus, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee, as interests of
AliEmS A - controlled corporation.

FrIA EFTHFEAN - IR202263A31H  AAFE=E  Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the directors and the chief

MBRERAEREBMEMAL MEARR ZESRRBEHK  executive of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a director

N BEEBIEES RS GO EXVEEBMARRZ  or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or short position

AR AP DSBS 2 gk R - SERALTE  in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

el a f A AR RIRE AT FEMAER T#  disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or who

TR ERER 2 BRI B BT TAR AN D% IA L » was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any class of the issued
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of the Company.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
other similar rights as at 31 March 2022 and there had been no exercise of
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the vear.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a stable dividend payment to its shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s future growth. The
Board of Directors of the Company determines the interim dividend and
recommends the final dividend which requires the approval of shareholders
of the Company. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles
of Association. In deciding whether to declare any dividend, the Board will
take into account a number of factors, including the financial results, the
distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity requirements, and the
current and future development plans of the Company. The Board will review
the dividend policy of the Company as appropriate from time to time.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

A brief discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
during the year under review is set out on page 35 of this annual report which
forms part of the Directors’ Report. The 2021-2022 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report will be published separately at the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the applicable laws and
regulations.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 6.57% and 22.66% (2021: 7.17% and
22.66%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the vear.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers accounted for 1.85% and 5.39% (2021: 1.45% and 4.99%)
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE, AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 May 2021, the Company and Light Engine Technologies Limited (“Light
Engine”, and together with its subsidiaries, “Light Engine Group”) entered into
the Master Supply Agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and
purchase certain products to and from Light Engine Group for a term from the
date of the Master Supply Agreement (ie. 20 May 2021) to 31 March 2024.
Light Engine is a company ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Paul LO Chung
\Wai, who is a brother of Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing, the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive of the Company. Accordingly, Light Engine is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under
the Master Supply Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20 May 2021 (the “CCT
Announcement”).

The continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group stated
below, as confirmed by Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; on normal commercial terms or on terms not less favourable
to the terms offered by independent third parties; and in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing such transactions, which were fair
and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group below in accordance with
14A56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company has disclosed the continuing connected transactions in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements in compliance with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

List of continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2022
are as follows:

FiET

HK$'000

MITENXEEBELE Sales to Light Engine Group 1,167
MITEXEEEEE Purchases from Light Engine Group 794
BEREX BRI 5 Aggregate amount of continuing connected transactions 1,961
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The aggregate of the above continuing connected transactions has not
exceeded the annual cap of HK$23,000,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022 as set out in the CCT Announcement.
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are set out in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive
29 June 2022
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BED

TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLD PEAK TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED)

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
OPINION

\We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak
Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 177, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

\We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. \We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.\IVe believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

BMHNERNTEEREERSEE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment assessment on interest in an associate and ECL on
trade and other receivables from the associate
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\We have identified the impairment assessment on interest in
an associate which is engaged in trading of battery related
products in Russia (the “Associate”) and expected credit loss
(“ECL") on trade and other receivables from the Associate as a
key audit matter due to the significant estimation exercised by
the management of the Group for the assessments.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying amounts
of the Group’s interest in the Associate and the trade and
other receivables from the Associate was HK$59.9 million and
HK$62.6 million, respectively. The management of the Group
considers that as at 31 March 2022, there was an indication
of impairment of the Group’s interest in the Associate and that
there was a significant increase in credit risk in respect of the
trade and other receivables from the Associate. Accordingly,
the management of the Group conducted an impairment
assessment on the interest in the Associate based on the
estimated financial performance of the Associate with a
general decline in revenue and, had appointed an independent
qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) individually assessed the ECL on
the trade and other receivables from the Associate.

Based on management’s assessment, the Group recognised
full impairment loss on its interest in the Associate of HK$59.9
million and made ECL provision on the trade and other
receivables from the Associate of HK$21.6 million. Details of
the above assessments are disclosed in notes 16 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment on
the interest in the Associate and the ECL on the trade and other
receivables due from the Associate included:

Understanding and evaluating the management’s
assessment on the sanction risks in respect of the Group’s
relationship with the Associate with reference to the external
lawyer’s opinion;

Understanding and evaluating the Group’s impairment
and ECL assessment process with the involvement of the
Valuer, including the valuation model adopted and the key
assumptions used,;

Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
\aluer;

Understanding and assessing the impact of the current
geopolitical situation, capital control measures and sanctions
on Russia to the interest in the Associate and evaluating
the overall reasonableness of management’s impairment
assessment on the interest in the Associate; and

In respect of the ECL on trade and others receivables
from the Associate, assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions adopted by the Valuer, including expected
probability of default rate, forward looking adjustments
and the estimated loss given default rate, based on market
available information.
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We identified ECL of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the significance of trade receivables to the
Group’s consolidated financial position and the involvement
of subjective judgement and management estimates in
evaluating the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounted to HK$1,096 million and represented
approximately 12.1% of the Group’s total assets.

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables excluding trade
receivables from the Associate based on collective basis
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns, after considering internal credit ratings of trade
debtors, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of
the trade receivables is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of expected future
credit losses.

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised a net amount of HK$2.9
million of loss allowance of trade receivables excluding trade
receivable from the Associate in the profit or loss for the
current year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables
excluding trade receivable from the Associate as at 31 March
2022 amounted to HK$29.8 million.
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Our procedures in relation to ECL of trade receivables included:

Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the collective basis including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 31 March 2022, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the relevant
sales agreements, sales invoices and other supporting
documents;

Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables as at 31
March 2022, including their identification of credit-impaired
trade receivables, the reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the remaining trade debtors into different
categories in the collective basis, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the collective basis
(with reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information); and

Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of the
disclosures regarding the ECL of trade receivables in notes
23 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. \IVe have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
\We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. \\We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT conro)

BNZBENREE =

REMREAREMBRRNEE @

A B (RRERKE) MBI -
BELAR  UREAFBRESEEA TR
R N 5 HARRZ B A -

B EREERAXBEBHNNMEENERR
o BENEINEE  NHGAVBRRERE
R-RMBERE BZERUTEEMNEFT
- HMEBABRAEZHBEE -

BMEEREEE (Hh el EXTENEHE R
BREZEREREZER - BREMREZAREZS
H R EREZ R Y (AT B KRG ©

BAIMAERERRER - FHRRMETEAEEL
MRRRERER - YRMFIBEBMA S EBRRS
SRERMNBLENREENREMEER - AR (E

SR

) REB BB IR Z 1T B SRR i o

MREEREEBNERMS - RMEEMLREREA
HRGA M BBRRNETRAER - AMBKERE
FTEIE - HAINERBE RS TG Z SRR - BIPE
RICERIAFER M FRENAFRE - HER%R
FROBAT  BREAEERRHMRESTBBEEE
HMEKHBEEREEEBEELNARME » &
BT EELEER TERSTBBZESR

BB RENETARSBARKEE -

=% . BERTEMT
HEETED
B8

202246 291

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONISOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. \We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. \We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

\We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

\We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. \We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meEER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &, &= 20224 3A 31H It F &

2022 2021
g3 FET FHAT
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$'000
(EFHR)
(Restated)
BHEREER Continuing operations
| Revenue 5 7,061,620 6,515,602
SHERAR Cost of sales (5,229,351) (4,754,932
EA Gross profit 1,832,269 1,760,670
E A YA R B A Other income and other gains 6 280,888 108,706
HE R H Selling and distribution expenses (916,658) (821,298)
TR H Administrative expenses (885,317) (755,587)
Hh R E A Es1E Other expenses and other losses 6 (204,551) (118,096)
EUE I %N Finance costs 7 (137,918) (136,841)
Fikha NS Share of results of associates 286,141 240,960
FRE AT & A Profit before taxation 8 254,854 278,514
TRE] Taxation 10 (38,919) (77,537)
FHEISEETS 2 2 Fim A Profit for the year from continuing
operations 215,935 200,977
BRI ER Discontinued operations
BRI 2 2F (B18) %F)  (Loss) profit for the year from discontinued
operations 12 (17,614) 7,079
2 F @A) Profit for the year 198,321 208,056
2FRT (B18) BN Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
RATHEBA : owners of the Company:
— RIS ET - from continuing operations 148,474 115,806
— B TS - from discontinued operations (15,074) 6,056
133,400 121,862
2FRT (518 HBR Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
FEIE R non-controlling interests:
— B ET - from continuing operations 67,461 85,171
— B TS - from discontinued operations (2,540) 1,023
64,921 86,194
198,321 208,056

FREF —EAK (B
—FHERERE R EER

—FHERE X

SRR IEERDF —O——E-O=—FFR

Earnings per share - Basic

- From continuing and discontinued

operations

- From continuing operations

13 16.9 HK cents

15.5 HK cents

18.8 HK cents

14.7 HK cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEakAEMEZEWEER

For the year ended 31 March 2022  # % 20224 37 31H L F &

2022 2021
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZEHF| Profit for the year 198,321 208,056
Hit2mEWE RH) ¢ Other comprehensive income (expense):
FETE RI LB P E 1B [tems that may be reclassified subsequently to
EA - profit or loss:
BMEBINEIFEE 2 Exchange differences arising from translation of
EH =58 foreign operations 91,343 120,957
i HEN B A R E e Net translation deficit (surplus) reclassified to
(Bth) EFH ‘“:l:TE\ﬁn profit or loss upon deregistration/disposal
of subsidiaries 27,719 (21)
WEREIPRAFEZFE Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges - 4,136
Gt ARz EMEm| Share of other comprehensive (expense) income
(ZH) Wz of associates (11,076) 73,902
107,986 198,974
BRI B EF R Bl Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to
A - profit or loss:
AAFEFAEMEERZEZ Fair value gain on equity instruments at
BATEZ A ERE fair value through other comprehensive income 30,319 8,090
2EHM I Other comprehensive income for the year 138,305 207,064
2E2ERSBTE Total comprehensive income for the year 336,626 415,120
2HEHRGBEEBER Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AR A Owners of the Company 237,541 264,944
eI AR Non-controlling interests 99,085 150,176
336,626 415,120

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
an (=] ,\jﬁ%;‘iﬁ;ﬂv%‘%

At 31 March 2022 20224 3H 31H

2022 2021
B 5 FExT FAT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
LEN ST Property, plant and equipment 14 2,386,178 2,234,627
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15 291,653 282,447
PGB A Bl e Interests in associates 16 1,756,840 1,784,099
NAFEFAREMEERE Equity instruments at fair value through
fEART A other comprehensive income 17 90,384 60,065
B AE Intangible assets 18 1,093 1,170
[EES Gooduwill 19 70,399 79,066
FEMENFEULARTE Non-current receivables 21 18,674 86,179
ETBIES Non-current deposits 23 29,852 38,749
REIERIR A E Deferred tax assets 32 34,365 27,787
4,679,438 4,594,189
RENEE Current assets
A= Inventories 22 1,473,046 1,192,082
FEUUE 51 I H A FE UL BRI Trade and other receivables and
NI FRIE prepayments 23 1,610,902 1,557,618
FEUAR B Dividend receivable 28,117 24,826
BIEEE Taxation recoverable 22,206 27,308
AFEFABRZ Equity instruments at fair value through
g AT A profit or loss 24 4,220 7,465
PTHEemIA Derivative financial instruments 25 955 -
RITHETF - FREERS Bank balances, deposits and cash 26 1,186,326 1,318,468
4,325,772 4,127,757
DEAGHERE Assets classified as held for sale 27 42,905 42,214
4,368,677 4,169,971
REEE Current liabilities
ENMERERERA Creditors and accrued charges 28 1,764,823 1,953,572
EHBE Contract liabilities 28 109,293 51,451
FERTIIR Taxation payable 46,708 61,579
PTESBMT A Derivative financial instruments 25 111 7,122
HEBE Lease liabilities 29 78,471 72,339
IRITER BELFERHEMER Bank loans, import and other loans 30 3,082,962 2,710,704
AR Provision for restructuring 33 24,600
5,106,968 4,856,767
REBAETFE Net current liabilities (738,291) (686,796)
BEERERBES Total assets less current liabilities 3,941,147 3,907,393
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION conro)
e TR R

At 31 March 2022 20224 37 31H

2022 2021
bz FET FAT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
kRBAE Non-current liabilities
HEamE Lease liabilities 29 243,938 215,585
RITREMERK Bank and other loans 31 740,846 1,047,933
REREEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 64,400 59,898
HHEEE Provision for restructuring 33 - 99,810
1,049,184 1,423,226
EERE Net assets 2,891,963 2,484,167
EXRFEE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 34 998,666 921,014
i) Reserves 917,646 677,760
RATGE AEMN 2 s Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 1,916,312 1,598,774
IR A Non-controlling interests 975,651 885,393
ERAE Total equity 2,891,963 2,484,167

EO3EEF V/7TEMTR 2 REaMEHRE - 21X2022  The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 177 were approved
FOA2HMEERABE WAHNTESKREKESR - and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Efhe TR Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung
E7E Ea Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘/-ﬁ

"")i&%ib;lfz

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &, &= 20224 3A 31H It F &

SEREDAREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
% RE R
BRE T o]
R EERBR  Popety  HEEE KRR Inestoent  HREE  REE Non- &S
Share legal  revaluation  Translation Capital ~ revaluation ~ Hedging ~ Retained 15t controling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-totel  interests equity
Thn Thn T Thn T T Fin Thn Tin T TR
HK§000  HKFO0O  HKSO00  HKS0OD  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HK$O00  HK$0O0  HK$O000  HKBOOD  HK$000
(H3h) ()
(note) (note)
R2020%4R 18 At 1April 2020 91,014 13,601 3804 (38427) 285,826 1,906 (3545 48564 1300898 814847 2,115,745
2EET Profit for the year - - - - - - - 182 121862 86,194 208,056
RER SR/ ZE Exchange differences arising from translation of
foreign operations - - - 68,850 - - - - 68,850 107 1209%7
ENAFEARRENAEE  Nettranslation surplus reclassified to profitor loss
Upon deregistration of subsidiaries - - - (18 - - - - (18 Kl vail
mﬂ DTEZRRS Net change in fai value of cash flow hedges - - - - - - 3,545 - 3,545 501 4136
:HEJ/\M%E%ZMIQZ Fair value gain on equity instruments at fair value
LFEhE through other comprefensive income - - - 3,784 - 3,698 . - 7482 608 8,090
FEBE R 2 ENE (it Share of other comprehensive income (expense)
of assoclates - - 2,309 60,956 - - - @) 63,223 10,679 73,902
FRENGEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2309 133572 - 3,698 3546 12180 6494 15016 415,120
FIEREATERTERS Share of change in net asset value of an associate - - - - 080 - - n 3,01 6,64 39,585
)Gk Transfer of reserves - - - - 406 - - (408) - - -
BEERHENBATZEMES  Acquisition of additionalinterests n a subsidiary
(5E46(0)) through capitalisation (note 46(0) - - - - 19 - - - 19 (367) (348
HEBAR (kde) Deregistration of subsidiaries (note 46(b) - - - - 2453 - - 2453 - - -
HENATERAZ 2 ENEL Transfer of reserves upon disposal of equity
RATERE\GE instruments at air value through other
comprehensive income - - - - - 6,893 - (6,893 - - -
HTHBATERRRRE Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (85,93 (85,939
FAERE Unclaimed dividend - - - - - - - 2 2 1 3
. . . SR 6B SW R® (P80 (4669
221535318 At 31 March 2021 91,014 13,601 40,113 (20,699 316,638 124% - bl 1598774 885,393 2484167
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY conro)

2\ mom

y= A

*—u— A A

FBR=

For the year ended 31 March 2022 # £ 20226 3A31R It FE

SRRADAREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
ng R& FER
EfifiR B B
B5  EEE&  Popety  BEEE  RABE  lvestment  REEA Non-  E&EE
Share Legal  revaluation  Translation Capital ~ revaluation ~ Retained it controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
ThR ThR ThR TR TR TR T ThR TR ThR
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
() ()
(note) (note)
RA021E4F 1R At 1 April 2021 921,014 13,601 40,113 (250,699 316,638 12496 545611 1598774 885,393 2,484,167
255 Profitfor the year - - - - - - 133400 133400 64921 198,321
HEBFHEL ELE Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign
operations - - - 63,564 - - - 63,564 21719 91,343
i/ LENBR AR R BEER Net translation deficit reclassified to proft orloss upon
HEEBR deregistration/disposal of subsidiaries - - - 28,722 - - - 2,722 3,997 21,7119
WATES AL 2ENEZRETAZATE  Fairvalue gain on equity instruments at fai value through
Wi other comprehensive income - - - 2,013 - %31 - 26,33 3,985 30,319
FitseR T L2 EdE (R Share of other comprehensive income (expense)
of associates - - (580) (8,961) - - 62 (9,479 (1,897 (11,076)
PERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - (580) 80,338 - X3 13462 23754 99,085 336,626
FitBERTEETERD Share of change n net asset value of an associate - - - - 1,806 - 125 1,03 (2,728 (799)
N Transfer of reserves - - - - 4,015 - (4,015) - - -
BAENENRLAZ B R Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary through
(x46(0) capitalisation (note 46(0)) - - - - 444 - - 444 (1,067) (653)
ﬁﬁ HELR (Hik460) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46(b) - (845) - - (2153%) - 2830 - - -
[ FHBATERRRRRE
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of subsiclaries - - - - - - - - (5,036) (5,036)
HRET R (H3E34) Issue of shares upon rights issue (note 34) 81,085 - - - - - - 81,085 - 81,080
IRRBORBHE Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares (343 - - - - - - (343 - (343
) (845) - - @30 - MA0 MY B8] LD
2022537318 At 31 March 2022 998,666 12,756 39,533 (170,361) 295,338 36,817 703563 1916312 975,651 2,891,963
Mt BEAREEZAEMEREEIEZ ISR TRE L Note: Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between the amount of non-

&M A R RN R R R AR AH R 2 SRR AR A e R A
HAREIRE 2 AFER 2D BRI FEARKME

(FRE) P B BB
WEMOENFREEETREERERE

7BC °

EE BB BEAEEMERTERIZHER

EBERRE

PR DR HENMEEN - ZF
ERETT

RZ%
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controlling interest adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid/received
on partial acquisition/disposal of a subsidiary without losing control and the
capitalisation of profits of subsidiaries and associates established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) that were available for appropriation after the
approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group’s share of statutory reserves of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-ﬁ Eﬁaﬁ/)lbiﬁj—%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &, &= 20224 3A 31H It F &

2022 2021
k3 FExT FAT
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
BT Operating activities
2EREF Profit for the year 198,321 208,056
FEE Adjustments for:
BiE Taxation 40,952 79,409
ISR —YNCIE 3| Share of results of associates (286,141) (240,960)
FEHA Interest income (13,328) (14,343)
RITREME R ZFE Interest on bank and other loans 122,428 125,482
HEBEMNS Interest on lease liabilities 15,836 11,500
TR RS R E A FE AR TE 2 Impairment loss recognised on
DERIEY St trade and other receivables 25,849 2,635
TERE A AT 2 BB Impairment loss recognised on
an associate 59,947 611
HRYE MELEREZ Impairment loss recognised on
REEE property, plant and equipment - 13,400
WREAREE 2 RERBE Impairment loss recognised on
right-of-use assets - 7,600
GFEsE Allowance for inventories 2,587 5,505
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
W BMEREEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 178,149 153,532
FREEEITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 99,215 91,511
S AT 2 F s Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries (30,445) -
HEWME - BB REREZ W Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (241) (14,022)
EHYE - BE KRR Property, plant and equipment
written off 16,701 14,084
FEE HE M E QR Was Gain on deemed partial disposal of
an associate (307) (165)
Gl =PNCIET 3T Net translation deficit (surplus)
BB (B EMoEEEa reclassified to profit or loss upon
deregistration of subsidiaries 982 (21)
SRR Reversal of provision for
restructuring (75,210) -
oy A D RNEIE Reversal of relocation cost (24,285) -
?xﬁ%% EPEAFHEERE) 2 Fair value gain on investment
A EKE property, classified as held for sale - (21,464)
HEARTEFABRZZBRATAY Realised gain from disposal of equity
[mE=Sil e instruments at fair value through
profit or loss - 43
$TE*+)\}§EZHX$IEZ Unrealised fair value loss on equity
ﬂi NHERE instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 3,271 3,428
PTESMI A BRI Realised gain on derivative financial
instruments - (4,441)
PTEERMI Az ATFERER Unrealised fair value (gain) loss on
(W) 518 derivative financial instruments (7,123) 5,241
i im AR 2 R R Rent concession related to
COVID-19 (521) (4,406)
HEESsz Em Gain on lease modification (884) -
Gish=C Sl & Gain on lease termination (46) -
W REE ZRITER Bank loan waived 30(b) (7,594) -
REMINEH MR FE) 2 2 Effect of unrealised foreign
exchange rate changes 6,074 (19,861)

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS conro)

AEREMER.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &= 20224 3A31H It F &
2022 2021
LiE=d FET FAT
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
FTELEBESEER g Operating cash flows before movements
REamne in working capital 324,264 402,345
TFEZEM Increase in inventories (317,549) (270,539)
FENE TR e EAth JE i AR T K Increase in trade and other receivables
TERT IR Z 3G 00 and prepayments (83,499) (407,015)
FERTBRTE R B A 2 3E 0 Increase in creditors and accrued
charges 19,525 530,813
BHBEZIZN Increase in contract liabilities 57,842 7,878
REEBEEAZRE Cash generated from operations 583 263,482
BT EAB AN M= FTE Taxation paid in other jurisdictions (42,345) (61,380)
BEREBFER Taxation paid in Hong Kong (24,503) (476)
BUE S AINE b b @ TR IE R 5K Taxation refunded in other jurisdictions 7,477 17,031
BB ETIRR N Tax refunded in Hong Kong 1,422 1,177
RS (R EA 2 REFHE Net cash (used in) from operating
activities (57,366) 219,834
REEK Investing activities
B E A B2 RE Dividends received from associates 238,123 81,999
HEYE - BERSBEKE 2 Proceeds and deposits received from
FIERE® disposal of property, plant and
equipment 8,871 132,510
HENBAREL RS FE Net cash inflow arising from disposal of
subsidiaries 35 13,863 -
BUAILE Interest received 5,968 8,199
BAME - BRE REEF Deposits paid for acquisition of
ZE® property, plant and equipment (2,697) (12,152
BAME - BEREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (299,778) (434,035)
B —RERBEMEARMERBHEN Compensation received for relocation
HENEAGTHEEE of property of a PRC subsidiary and
disposal of assets classified as held
for sale - 81,840
HELATFEFARMERRE Proceeds from disposal of equity
RART A2 5 aIE instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 6,439
HEARTFEEABEEZ Proceeds from disposal of equity
AT A 2 FrisskIE instruments at fair value through
profit or loss - 820
BA—ENE AR 2B MER=S Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary - (348)
AR E AR 2 RBIMER Acquisition of additional interests
in associates - (1,637)
BERT—HEE AT Loan to an associate - (6,996)
BALAFETAERZ Purchase of equity instruments at fair
RATE value through profit or loss - (11,628)
REEBER RS FE Net cash used in investing activities (35,650) (154,989)

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &, &= 20224 3A 31H It F &

2022 2021
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
S Financing activities
FIRITER New borrowings raised 663,844 1,295,745
HARBEIT 2 RtD Issue of shares upon rights issue 81,085 -
BRRE Dividends paid (488) (830)
BA—HEMB AR 2 EIMER Acquisition of additional interests in
a subsidiary (653) -
BRI A Transactions costs attributable to
issue of shares (3,433) -
EATHIE A B iR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
2B shareholders of subsidiaries (5,036) (85,938)
HEBEME Interest on lease liabilities (15,836) (11,500
BEHAERE Repayment of lease liabilities (75,642) (70,298)
EARITREMER 2 FE Interest on bank and other loans paid (116,425) (129,189
EBRITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (630,205) (1,075,215)
RABER B Unclaimed dividend - 3
BEMER RS FE Net cash used in financing activities (102,789) (77,222
ReREERSRDFE Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (195,805) (12,377)
FYzRe REER T Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 1,318,468 1,250,672
INEHREEB s B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 63,663 80,173
FRzBEaREERS - Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
RITETT  FRERE year, bank balances, deposits and cash 1,186,326 1,318,468

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

1. —REHR 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

SR TEERAR EIHESILTEGE) ER
AR ([ARTD) T—REFBEMKILZ EHA
RAF > ERONEEHEZXSMERIF ([&
BEEAPR]) BT o ARREMPEEER 2 ik K =
REEWHBCFHNAERZAFENA -

RiF M BHRARNRBINEEEETHT -

ARBT—HREERRR  EXTEMBLR

B N R 2 D RIEA M L4065 47 BA2021
F8AZIR  ARBEHEERERREYR  E
A i@&igﬂﬁ‘%éﬂai%ﬁ%ﬁu PNt
BEBEMRTACKRIRERY  HEHENE
AIRAME12.

ERKEBAIEBHBEREER (FBUBEREE
Al

RAFERFEREBPHHREER ZBTAR

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Gold Peak
Industries (Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 46 and 47,
respectively. On 31 August 2021, the Group disposed of its automotive
wire harness operation accordingly the prior year financial information
has been restated to re-present the automotive wire harness operation
as a discontinued operation, further details are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

REAFE AR REMBAR @BA RE In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
B EEXREAUNTHEESHMASRH 2B to as the “Group”) have applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
B EME LR ZASETA - M REARE M E® issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
EME - BEEIATIF2021F48 1Hk 2% (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
4R 2 G 2 BB 98 i AR 23 ¢ annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

BERMBRELRESE - B A T% EE — Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -

GETER|E 395 - BAEME —PEER HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Phase 2

WEERE 75 - BAEME and HKFRS 16

AR B A MBS

HEAERIE 1655 2 18R] A

UEoh - AEEERER S HERIE =S BRI
wEEAREZRE ([RB8)) N202146A M

IR E EI%/%E%H’:\%ET? 5 R B3 %

ERFFERT A [ E AR (AT A B -

BTSN - AR S R LA
AL AR RMAT RBETE 2 HHRARM
R/ SRR AN RSB 2 BB EAL R E
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In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs
an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase
o

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments relate to changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, specific
hedge accounting requirements and the related disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

As at 1 April 2021, the Group has bank loans and interest rate swap, the
interests of which are indexed to benchmark rates that will or may be
subject to interest rate benchmark reform.

During the vear, certain of the Group’s LIBOR bank loans have been
transferred to the relevant alternative benchmark rates. Such transition
have had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements as
the Group has applied the practical expedient in relation to the changes in
contractual cash flows resulting from the interest rate benchmark reform
for bank loans measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures as
required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note 37

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the Committee - Cost
necessary to sell inventories (HKAS 2 “Inventories” “HKAS 2”)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda decision, clarified the
costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.
In particular, whether such costs should be limited to those that are
incremental to the sale. The Committee concluded that the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale should not be limited to those that are
incremental but should also include costs that an entity must incur to sell
its inventories including those that are not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda
decision was to determine the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only. Upon application of the
Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed its accounting policy to
determine the net realisable value of inventories taking into consideration
both incremental costs and other cost necessary to sell inventories. The
new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

2 ERKBITEBVKREER (E8HKEHREE 2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

Al @ REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
EEMENRERZHITEBUBRELENRSE New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
B R R 2 B RT A
REEWEIZFEATHIEEME M REBZHT The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
A AR REER R BB SRS ER 2 BR] HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
g
BEAVBRELENELSE REEHOR HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
@B A2 Amendments?
BAVBRELREIR R aESR! Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
ZABETAR
EAVIEHRELRE 105 REFHEEBE Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
RBEBGFH4ERIE 2855 HEEDEZ and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
BRI AR MR EELE \enture?
FEES
BEAGITEAFE 5 BREDEAER Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
EHEN B IERBIA K Non-current and related amendments to
BEREBELSR Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
(2020%F) Z 1HE
15312
BAGHENZE 1R R BETHCR R Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
BRMBIRELERER and HKFRS Practice
WMEF 2R ZAEFT AR Statement 2
BEAGEUESTR AR 2 EE? Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
ERTA
ARG EAFE 12972 B-RHEAN Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
CHEN BEREED Liabilities arising from a Single
HERARER T2 Transaction?
BEAGIEAFE 1692 M - BERE Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
BRI A & —#E Bl before Intended Use?
Z g skt
BAGITEAEI BEAEN-EIT— Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
EEIEN MDER A Contract?
BRI ELER 2 BB R E LR Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 -
BRI AR 2018F &= 2020 2020t
FREBAZFER
igl
L PA20224 1 A 1A A& R A 2 2 HRRE A R 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
2 R2023F 1A 1A E &G 2 FE BB AR 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
3 RETERZB ARG FEBRBER 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
AARIEETERERAMAE M BBV E®mE The directors of Company anticipate that the application of all new and
R R BB IERE LR ZEFT AR A TR AR amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
BT EEERE S MEERERTE financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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3. RHUGEHBRR2EERTESTHEE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31 RBEGREMBHRRZEE 3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered as material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group in light of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$738 million as at 31 March
2022. The Group's current liabilities as at 31 March 2022 included
bank loans, import and other loans of approximately HK$3,083 million
that are repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Taking into account of the internally generated funds and the
available banking facilities of approximately HK$2,213 million as
at 31 March 2022, the directors of the Company are confident that
the Group will be able to meet their financial obligations when they
fall due in the foreseeable future and be able to operate on a going
concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” (“HKFRS 2”), leasing transactions
that are accounted for accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

3. RERGEMBRRZEERFESHEE @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

31 REREUMBRBRZEE @
FERMEEZAFEFERTISLEE N

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account

SEFXEREE - RAGUBEHXEM
BEZAMTSLEELEAMEE  UE
EEREZ BT o

HRBEATERSZERTARKREDE -
AR B AR ERR R T B A P ER(E A T—Jéﬁﬂ

a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable

%u?\%’(?ﬁZﬁ@&mﬁﬁ 5 iEERTE inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the

7foE BE R BIRHERRR - (R E R T4 %*ﬁ valuation technique is calibrated so that an initial recognition the
ENR B - results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

AN - BB BHREmM S - AFEHNERER In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements

FEEEOBABET BRI RAFE
ENHARBHHERNEBEH AAEL

are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

FEOoMMESR - BT ¢ significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:
F1URMABIERERNETE A B LA Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
SHEREESBENERT S 2 WE for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
CRECFAE) measurement date;

FE2RBABBERNEERABEEERME
?%imT&sﬁﬁZﬁA%ﬂ% (F1RABRED
WERSIN)

EIBARBEREELABNTAER
BARE -

32 FEEFHEE

3.2

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1,that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

HERE Basis of consolidation
ZJ»%?’SW?T’%?&% BEARAT RBERARRE The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
)EEPN %‘JZE‘%‘%ZEH%?&EE o EVAF statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
BERIERAT] and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
HIREHRITEREN has power over the investee;
DEBEHREH MBS GREE is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

7=l
g

pu]

e &

BRENTTEEENAFEZZEER -
BT RGN R Ay =BT H A= E
R—IEs S IENE - BIAEEEEGHIEN
RIRBIIRE 7 o
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with the investee; and
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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3. GRHUGEMBBRRZEERFESHER @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

32 FEEHBEX ® 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continuec)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income (“OClI”)
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

\When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3. RERGEMBRRZEERFESHEE @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

32 FEEFHHE ® 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group'’s interests in existing subsidiaries (continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in OCl in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.

Business combinations or assets acquisition

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 April 2020, the Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to investment properties which are
subsequently measured under fair value model and financial assets/
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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3. RHUGEHBBRR2EERFTESHER @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

32 FEEHBEX ® 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as
if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured at the
same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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32 FEETHER &= 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinations,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs).

/0



3. GRHUGEMBBRRZEERFESHER @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

32 FEEHBEX ® 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

BE @
PEFRRCESEMNNIBCELENAS
WEMBREEEBME - AIREEESER
EERITABTERZSME - WAEELE
ReEESN GREELEBEMAEAN—E
REEEBN HEE  HENFELELE
PEEE IR ELEN) MBLEERR
BESELSMN GQHSELSEMNESR) 13
IDVEEREETE -

AEBEREB-HBERATMELZEHE
PSRBT -

RBERRINKRE
BERRAREERHETEEAZE NN
g - IBEARE N  RESEREHR
IR ZERFAORE S B IFEE B BT
EBIZERE

BENRNES  BEMABUEEGIHE
REZEEAMEMRARERE - plim g5
EM S ANEE QB B®RE - HEAE
SEEEUBARBURZ REHRAN—

BB T AR - RIFERE - R
RAZRE IR (IR IS B ARER AR
SEEEBHEARBRELEM2EKE) B
RAMBRRARER - BERARRBERRE
EERE NI FEELB T AR © IR
FREHHEUARERENMARERE
o MAKERGB 2R FNBEEBEBAS
BTSN E 2 s (BRER EERA
SERZEE R TREFE- B2 EFE
Hifgn)  AIAKEELEREREZE—S
18 - MINERERARE DAL ZEER
HEBERT RRZEE R A RIBN R
RAMERR o

REERBZRERERGTDEAR %
RELUZR A —HB2ABRSG - ERE—
2 QR - EARERANB L AN EEE
HEREDABIEERBEZAFFEZE
HRAARE  YCDEBREREMEKEE
e AREREARIEERABEFAFE
BHKBRAZEMZEE - EEFFHEZE
RHERN IR BB FE 2185 -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the group
of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. \When the
Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwiill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate.
Changes in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and OCI are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. \When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwiill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. \When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9 the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in OCI by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

\When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, ie. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of electronics and
batteries products is recognised at a point in time. Under the transfer-
of-control approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from these sales is
recognised when customer acceptance has been obtained, which is
the point of time when the goods are delivered based on the agreed
shipping terms and the location specified by the customers, and when
the customer has the ability to direct the use of these products and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of these products.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component and are accounted
for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of leasehold building, machinery and equipment and others that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received,;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied that practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

/4



3. GRHUGEMBBRRZEERFESHER @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

32 FEEHBEX ® 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

HE @

REFEAFAA @)

HEBE

REERBAS  AEEERZBERINZ
HENFCRERARGTEHERE - 518
HENHZRER - MESRNE 2 FEEE
KowEr  ASESERANEERKA
B2 SR SR AR -

HENRERE

ElE R (BEEERENF RAEAE
WeiH B 2 -

IR R 2 AT E R (AR
15 A EZ SR B L RAAA B ¢

TEHASREREFNGEEERENZS
B

RARESEMETEBERRNBE
REFTIEME © ]

REEHRRAEESITEBRER L
HER - RI-HEREER -

PRIEBRRLE R I ZBE MR ARER
BREREEE - MEREER LR R
B FRLAGFRIRER A HER -

REMAHRE  BEABEREBNSERLE
ENRIEHAE -

FEHBETIERR  AEESEHAER
Ea A WHRREAEEEFL AR -

HEFHOER - BBERT - 18EH
%E%EﬁLﬂ%#E%ﬁﬁH%ZW
ERTRAIR RIS RT A G RE T

Hﬂ\ﬂl \\

R misHRmH5ESEAEM S
BAHERNRES - FUIBERT - 1BEHE
EaEEBTAYRAERERIRLE
FIHENRENTE ©

FEERGAMBRRERNS I HEEEA
B—HIE .

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, and are recognised as expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentive
receivables, based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
assets. \When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting
the revised lease payments using the unchanged discount rate and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark reform if,
and only if, both of these conditions are met:

the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of interest
rate benchmark reform; and

the new basis for determining the lease payments is economically

equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the modification).
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Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

COV/ID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the
practical expedient not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are met:

the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022; and

there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in
lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it
would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. \Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

\When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-
lease components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether
sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the Group
as a seller-lessee measures the right-of-use assets arising from
the leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of
the asset and recognises any gain or loss that relates to the rights
transferred to the buyer-lessor only.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9 and investment properties, which continue to be measured
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in respective
sections.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
that asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than asset under construction and freehold land
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS
16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to make
regular revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and
accordingly no further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out.
Prior to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of these assets was credited to the property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if any,
on the property revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. \When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of
assets other than asset under construction and freehold land less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method or reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately - Trademarks and Technical
know-how
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which are estimated to be twenty years.

The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the
production of new products is amortised on a straight-line
method, over a period of three to five years from the date of
acquisition or over the licence period, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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(c)

development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date
when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
above. \Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. The resultant asset
is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
live, not exceeding ten years, commencing in the year when the
product is put into commercial use.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination - Customer
relationship

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, which is regarded as their
cost.

The customer relationship is amortised using straight-line method,
over a period of five years. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the customer relationship is recorded at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually. \When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the
relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of
CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
standard.
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)

\Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that standard.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. \When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has
developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has
raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring
provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at F\V/TPL, except
that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired.
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued))

(i) Equity instruments designated as at F\V/TOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income and other gains” line item in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at F\V/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

(iii

=

Financial assets at FVVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income and other gains” or
“other expenses and other losses” line item.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including non-current
receivables, non-current deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, dividend receivable, bank deposits, bank balances and
amounts due from associates) and financial guarantee contracts
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually and/or
collectively using a collective basis with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (ie. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but
only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.

\Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in

which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.
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Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including creditors and other payables, bank loans,
import and other loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the amortised
cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such change
in effective interest rate normally has no significant effect on the
carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these
conditions are met:

the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is

economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis
immediately preceding the change).
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on
the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether
the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which
is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge
effectiveness requirements:

there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument;

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that
result from that economic relationship; and

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that
the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same,
the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e.
rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

For changes made to the hedged risk, hedged item or hedging
instrument required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group
amends the formal designation of a hedging relationship to reflect the
changes by the end of the reporting period during which the relevant
changes were made. Such an amendment to the formal designation
of the hedging relationship constitutes neither the discontinuation
of the hedging relationship nor the designation of a new hedging
relationship.
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Financial instruments (continuec)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and
other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under the
heading of hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative change in fair
value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, and is included in the “other income and other gains” or “other
expenses and other losses” line item.

Amounts previously recognised in OCIl and accumulated in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss
accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in
the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only
when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes
instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting can either affect
a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part of it (in which
case hedge accounting continues for the remainder of the hedging
relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in profit or loss. \When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

3. RERGEMBRRZEERFESHEE @ 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

32 FEETHE @ 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continuec)

B @)

R EFARFERRGFECREMEZER
EBEME @ REEDBRRBAHEE 2K
E] °

RAKBRACHEEEMEHNEERRL
HEXZFHERENEMNS - AEEExE
ENEMRERREEAEEERHESR

& -

RREHRDREEEEEZHERSM
5 AREBE B ERE 125 [FSH)
BENHEANERAEEERTHERE -
BHRERVIS AR L  REREREEE
LHEABEZEREZRL RN L HERE
HR - eEFTEEE R EMEEERMY
REEREEENEEBEREEZREE
FRIFEAMER R - BTG ERHR
® 0 RRNEHE B SEA R

WA A RBATHERI T I B IROE A s
HRBORE (RIS A BE — BURS I B A Y
PSR R - ALEIER R AR R & (5 A 5 4
#i3H -

BIRA N RE NN R s AR - HEE B E A
EHEHEEERARERNERER AR A
B EUERT - BRI IA TS D
REMEHEEERRER N ERER -

bl

FERHE RIS IR RO (A N REE 1Ry - A%
EEEAEREHEISARARE LEXRE
PEEBRAMSH RIWMEAREAER
M REERISRIE - MRS HBR AR
EL#ES - S HMEHAMEERSH . E
JE BLPT ST FR SRV B 15 R IR — B - W AERE TR
BB TR RS T HEERIGEIE - Al
A&z & Rk R HE R R IR ST T i E
MR -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement
or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in OCl or
directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the tax
treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely amount or
the expected value.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in OCI.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific bank and other loans pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Government grants relating to
compensation of expenses are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented under “other income and other
gains”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is
treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plans, including
state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when
the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination
benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as

wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the management of the Company is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate which is engaged in
trading of battery related products in Russia (the “Associate”) and ECL
on trade and other receivables from the Associate

The management of the Group considers that as at 31 March 2022, there
was an indication of impairment of the Group’s interest in the Associate
and that there was a significant increase in credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables from the Associate. Accordingly, the
management of the Group conducted an impairment assessment on the
interest in the Associate based on the estimated financial performance
of the Associate with a general decline in revenue and had appointed an
independent qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) to individually assess the ECL
on the trade and other receivables from the Associate.

As at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying amounts of the Group’s
interest in the Associate and the trade and other receivables due
from the Associate was HK$59,947,000 (2021: HK$58,996,000) and
HK$62,571,000 (2021: HK$61,269,000), respectively.

Based on management’'s assessment, the Group recognised full
impairment loss on the interest in the Associate of HK$59,947,000 (2021:
nil) and made ECL provision on the trade and other receivables from the
Associate of HK$21,637,000 (2021: nil). Details of the above assessments
are disclosed in notes 16 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired balances
are assessed for ECL individually. Details on the ECL for trade receivables
due from the Associate is set out in the above paragraphs. For trade
receivables that are not individually assessed, the Group uses collective
basis to determine ECL. The loss rates are determined based on internal
credit ratings for each grouping of debtors that have similar credit risk
characteristics. The collective basis is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable, and available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$1,095,933,000 (net of provision of ECL of HK$49,973,000) (2021:
HK$1,209,361,000 (net of provision of ECL of HK$26,478,000)). The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes 37
and 23.

Allowances for inventories

Inventory is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The
management of the Group reviews regularly the suitability of the Group’s
allowance policy for inventories and carries out review of the inventories
at the end of each reporting period. At the end of each reporting period,
management carries out the assessment of determining allowance for
inventories by comparing the carrying amounts of inventories with their net
realisable values. The net realisable values are primarily determined with
reference to estimated selling prices, less the estimated cost necessary
to make the sale. In addition, the management of the Group identifies
slow-moving inventories with reference to aging analysis and determines
the net realisable value for inventories by considering the saleability of
inventories based on current market demand and future sales plan. \When
the expectation of the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
allowance may arise.

Allowance for inventories of HK$2,537,000 (2021: HK$4,269,000)
from continuing operations was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2022.Asat 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$1,473,046,000 (2021: HK$1,192,082,000).
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AEMEEREZRATARETENSBITA
M RFE B BIERIEL7 27/137) -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU (or a group of CGUs)
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.\IVhere
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill was
HK$70,399,000 (2021: HK$79,066,000). For the year ended 31 March
2022, no impairment loss on goodwiill was recognised (2021: nil). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.

Provisions

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provision
related to restructuring cost. Accordingly, management exercises
considerable judgment in determining whether there is a present
obligation as a result of a past event at the reporting date, whether it
is more likely than not that such restructuring will result an outflow of
resources and whether the amount of the obligation can be reliably
estimated with reference to the relevant correspondences. The
management estimates the cost for restructuring with regard to the
Group’s experience in addressing such matters. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group’s restructuring provisions amounted to HK$24,600,000 (2021:
HK$99,810,000) details of which are set out in note 33.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors have a designated team to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair values of
investment properties, equity instruments at FVTOCI and certain types
of financial instruments of which details are set out in notes 17,27 and 37
respectively.
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4. EFHTFREEZFERR @ 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

e
FAEBEFEFMNZERDEEERNMEN - BE
REBZEAEHEBER SR - §ETRS
qu%;E’\E BEBAETARRKRHACEER
BETETERY - RNEERBEIVIRR T KD
LAEEMﬁEHE%RIEE’J@ 1rﬁtL$IEE’JE*ﬂ%mW
BREVFSHERNESETR - WEZHRNERHE
EZHRA - S EREHRETRIRRN B -

MEE2020F3A31IB IEFE - %R ([R5
B)) BIEAEEET — B R AR 2 &R
# HH 2006/07 & 2013/ 1433 T F & 89 ¥ 25 15

BEtE ((VIFRBED - BB EIHR
BRATmMER  Hit - ERRERERE—
FERAPRER - RETHEN SRR -
ROEBRBE - REBREZE2020F3A 31
BLILFE  piEERBEREEE R GERE
19,000,000/% 7T - & = 20224 3A 31H 1L ¥
JE - BV A ERER RS R IR B R (2021
F:ERT) c BUBRERK  REDIEEM R
TR -

DEER/ EEE

MERDERFETETME - BTEE B [RE
EX2eEARE]) BE0ERR  EREE
BHEETEDMRENERA ~ Htbs REA
B UBRERTESBZER -

ﬁ’igiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ“&i BEMEBREK—ELE &
WMEDHNEELEDEA -

BEf - HERERSTERRBESRLE
MEER o

T2 EEMEEEW R EMIEBER

Hi B - AL L
wE -
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WESEED BB NARAERBNHREDE -
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RAFE  RERHETERGER - BEFE
DENBERECENRY - U2 LFEBEEE
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Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is involved in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes.
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due.\IWhere the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) issued a preliminary profits tax calculation for
the years of assessment 2006/07 to 2013/14 (the “Preliminary
Tax Calculation”) based on the information provided by one of the
subsidiaries of the Group for a preliminary assessment. The Preliminary
Tax Calculation was prepared by the IRD for discussion purpose, thus,
the final tax amount may be subject to change when further information
and explanation are provided to the IRD. Taking into consideration of the
Preliminary Tax Calculation, the Group provided HK$ 19 million of income
tax expense during the year ended 31 March 2020 which represented the
Group’s estimation of the potential tax liabilities and the related penalty.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, no additional provision of income
tax expense (2021: nil) was recognised in respect of the Preliminary Tax
Calculation. The final tax amount may be different after finalisation with
the IRD.

. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the executive directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM"), assess profit or loss of these operating divisions using a
measure of operating profit which exclude: interest income, other
expenses and other losses, finance costs and unallocated expenses.

The three main operating divisions of the Group, each of which constitutes
an operating and reportable segment for financial reporting purpose, are:

Electronics - development, manufacture and distribution of electronics
and acoustic products and other businesses.

Batteries - development, manufacture and distribution of batteries and
battery related products.

Other investments - holding of other investments which are mainly
engaged in selling and distribution business.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s revenue represents sales of electronics and acoustics,
batteries and other products.

In the current year, the Group disposed of the automotive wire harness
business. Prior year segment disclosures have been restated to re-present
the automotive wire harness operation which was included in Electronics
segments in prior year as a discontinued operation to conform with the
current year’s presentation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by these
operating and reportable segments:

BZE2022F3A31ALLFE Year ended 31 March 2022
28
@t
Hitnig g Total
EY Eitr Other  reportable g &t
Electronics Batteries investments  segments Eliminations Total
TER TRER THET TAR FAR FAR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FECEER Continuing operations
e REVENUE
HIMNEE External sales 1,627,681 5,433,939 - 7,061,620 - 7,061,620
EBmHE Inter-segment sales 2,028 456 - 2,484 (2,484) -
¥BEEE Segment revenue 1,629,709 5,434,395 - 7,064,104 (2,484) 7,061,620
ES RESULTS
EBEE Segment results 379,428 231,419 (62) 610,785 - 610,785
FISWA Interest income 13,306
Hth BB R EMEE Other expenses and other losses (204,551)
BB Finance costs (137,918)
T ER Unallocated expenses (26,768)
RS EBRTANER Profit before taxation from continuing
operations 254,854
HZ20215£3831A L EE (EHFHEH) Year ended 31 March 2021 (Restated)
WEDH
st
Hip iR g Total
BT Ei) Other  reportable il A%t
Electronics Batteries investments  segments Eliminations Total
TR FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BECEEY Continuing operations
e REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 1,160,987 5,364,615 - 6,515,602 - 6,515,602
EEHHE Inter-segment sales 18 4 - 59 (59) -
EBEEE Segment revenue 1,151,005 5,364,656 - 6,515,661 (59) 6,515,602
4 RESULTS
Eit 4 Segment results 127,639 407,530 (52 535,117 - 535,117
FEHA Interest income 14,235
Hin B R REMEE Other expenses and other losses (118,096)
BIFSPR AR Finance costs (136,841)
TN ECER Unallocated expenses (15,901)
FECLEBREATER  Profit before taxation from
continuing operations

D EFENEREED HMHOSA -

ERALETE

BERREREAREERD BMERBTE -

BIA - Hitn B R R EMER -
THERNEEHNRED
%MQFH%/%?EZ%WWEE?E&

K/\
2D H

1%& @ﬂﬁééﬁ?a

% Jﬂ%&

EES -
feEZn#pEE ©

TSR~ R
EDHEE -0

R - BB k&

EBREEN2EMIHERMETE -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

278,514

Segment results represents the results from each segment without
allocation of interest income, other expenses and other losses, finance
costs, central administration costs and directors’ emoluments. Impairment
loss recognised and written off on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are not allocated to segment result which the related
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are allocated
to segment assets. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are made by reference to market prices.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

REBREDBIEERBEITWT - The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

HitiRE
E7 Eith Other &t
Electronics Batteries investments Total
FET FHET FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

R2022F 34 31H

ﬁ%‘iﬁéé

REHRERE

At 31 March 2022

Assets

Segment assets 2,608,115 5,049,244 51,379 7,708,738
Unallocated assets 1,339,377
Consolidated total assets 9,048,115

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 522,465 1,666,062 41 2,188,568
Unallocated liabilities 3,967,584
Consolidated total liabilities 6,156,152

HMigE

BT Epiu) Other BET
Electronics Batteries investments Total
FAT FAT AT TFHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

#2021 3H 31H At 31 March 2021
BE Assets
¥BAE Segment assets 2,397,650 4,826,945 48,704 7,273,299
THENEEE Unallocated assets 1,490,861
IREREE Consolidated total assets 8,764,160
afE Liabilities
¥BAaG Segment liabilities 573,259 1,785,861 41 2,369,161
TN EBE Unallocated liabilities 3,920,832
IRERAE Consolidated total liabilities 6,279,993
MEEEBRERER 2 HNERD For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:
BRAE - RERIEAE - AJUREIFIE - ]R1T - all assets are allocated to operating segments other than goodwill,
H1F - FRRRE RS EBHLRERNE deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank balances, deposits and
MEE  FIEEESIEKEHTE & cash and assets used jointly by operating segments; and
BT EMABIE  RITER  BECEREM - all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than taxation
B RITRHEMER BEERBBAEBERE payable, bank loans, import and other loans, bank and other loans,
EEBLARERENEMASE  MEEEDE deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which operating segments are

jointly liable.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continuec)

Hih&Ew Other information
Ef it Pk =E
Electronics Batteries Unallocated  Consolidated
THx FHT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BZE2022F3A31ALFE Year ended 31 March 2022
HEQEER Continuing operations
BREEIDEER Amounts included in measure of segment
HEEFSEEC S8 assets and segment profit or loss
Nl 2 Interests in associates 1,477,300 279,540 - 1,756,840
BAY Capital expenditure 52,729 248,052 1,449 302,230
MmE - BEREEITERER Depreciation of property, plant and
BEHH equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets 20,877 155,118 1,280 177,275
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 45,900 41,003 11,639 98,542
FribEeE ARIEE Share of results of associates 271,148 14,993 - 286,141
FEREE () (Reversal of allowance) allowance for
inventories (737) 3,274 - 2,537
HEWE - BERRE MG Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant
(&%) and equipment 215 (115) 141 241
[EEDEBOEME AT MR Gain on deemed partial disposal of
an associate - 307 - 307
FEMAEB EERE Rental concession related to COVID-19 167 - 354 521
BRENE SRR E YRR Net impairment loss recognised on trade
FRERE and other receivables 49 25,800 - 25,849
mEmHE Compensation for relocation - 38,919 - 38,919
SRR A Reversal of provision for restructuring 75,210 - - 75,210
PRBAK AN B Reversal of relocation cost - 24,285 - 24,285

SRR IEERDF —O——E-O=—FFR
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5. 28R/ E¥E @ 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)
Hith &R Other information (continued)
EF i) ADE e
Electronics Batteries Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FEL FHEL FHET FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2021%3A31ALEE Year ended 31 March 2021
(EHEHT) (Restated)
BESEER Continuing operations
BEEHIBEER Amounts included in measure of segment
HEEFLEE S8 assets and segment profit or loss
BN Bl Interests in associates 1,443,299 340,800 - 1,784,099
AATH Capital expenditure 12,861 442,334 1,898 457,093
W - BERRENEREL Depreciation of property, plant and
BESE equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets 22,676 126,587 1,797 161,060
FREEEITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 32,953 45,842 11,621 90,416
FribEe e R R %R Share of results of associates 193,895 47,065 - 240,960
FEERE Allowance for inventories 1,148 3,121 - 4,269
HEWE - BERRE = Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 129 13,893 - 14,022
EEDEBOHE AT W Gain on deemed partial disposal of
an associate - 165 - 165
FEmAREzAERE Rental concession related to COVID-19 - 2,917 1,489 4,406
HRENESR R EMERRE Net impairment loss recognised on trade
FRERE and other receivables 108 2,511 - 2,619
RE AR HEFREBE Net impairment loss recognised on
investment in an associate - 611 - 611
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continuec)

Geographical information
The Group’s manufacturing and marketing functions are carried out in the
PRC and certain other Asian countries, European and American countries.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations from external customers based on location of
customers and information about its non-current assets other than non-
current receivables, non-current rental deposits, equity instruments at
FV/TOCI and deferred tax assets by geographical locations of assets:

=0 FRBEE
Revenue Non-current assets
2022 2021 2022 2021
FERT FET FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(EFHRT)
(Restated)
HEREER Continuing operations
=8 The PRC
—&% - Hong Kong 317,330 295,529 442,526 424,089
— A - Mainland China 2,437,186 2,289,018 3,110,163 2,900,048
HAbZa MR Other Asian countries 537,319 486,111 936,237 983,942
BUM Europe 2,068,140 1,893,119 23,346 87,018
=M Americas 1,648,825 1,452,467 12,371 13,802
Hith Others 52,820 99,358 - -
7,061,620 6,515,602 4,524,643 4,408,899

REEZIIREFEEBNERDEEZ IHE
B mENERERSE - WERHEEMEME
R BN RMREML 2O BEERSE—
TS EBEHORTBR - DR [EMEM
BR] 2 EXFNERPDEELIERAE - FMN
B SRE - BN W ERMIERB EEE
SRR NIER W M NEXEBNIERSHE
EAEZRIEFEM -

TEEMEXEH
NTRAEE I EEREBHERAZEEED
i

The geographical information of the Group’s revenue from external
customers and non-current assets by individual significant countries in
other Asian countries, Europe, Americas and others is not available and
management considers the cost to obtain the information would be
excessive. The revenue and non-current assets classified as “Other Asian
countries” mainly represents Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia, revenue
and non-current assets classified as “Europe” mainly represents United
Kingdom and Germany and revenue and non-current assets classified as
“Americas” mainly represents North America.

Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised at a point
in time from its major products:

2022 2021
FBT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EH )
(Restated)
BEREER Continuing operations
BFHE - Electronics segment:
BT RIGERER Electronics and acoustics products 1,627,681 1,150,987
B ED ¢ Batteries segment:
MR EMEEER Batteries and battery related products 5,433,939 5,364,615
BRFANELEZEXRE Revenue from contracts with customers 7,061,620 6,515,602

BHEPANELAZRAXEREADHEER
7,064,104,0007&7t (20214 : 6,515,661,000
BT Mz 55l R BB 8 & 2,484,000 7T
(20214 : 59,0008 7T) °

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

The difference between revenue from contracts with customers
and segment revenue amounting to HK$7,064,104,000 (2021:
HK$6,515,661,000) is inter-segment sales of HK$2,484,000 (2021:
HK$59,000).
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5. &R/ EXHE@®» 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)
FTEEREEE @ Revenue from major products (continued)
AEBERRNTFHEMBER - SXBTEY The Group sells all products directly to customers. Revenue is recognised
EHEESRER - NEEYELRNITE,PY when control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
BEMBEYBCAREEPES - REBMEE have been delivered to the customers’ specific location and customer
RN EIHR  IEXFPHEERTREY R acceptance has been obtained. The Group’s revenue is recognised at a
EEERMELRMB RS ZE - —BRRXHERR point in time, which is the point of time when the customer has the ability
BYEtigEEgeE =t RXE—a T RXAXZN - to direct the use of the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the goods. Normal payment of the transaction price is due
ranging from 30 days to 120 days, at the control of goods has transferred.
FIEHEEANHA—FHEERMRE - BBVH® All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HEAE IR ETRERBESIMEZFTREKRSE HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
B B © not disclosed.
FEEFER Information about major customers
REE2022F M2021F3A31HILFE - RA No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue
ERE—F b 10%sk A EANEE 2 B - during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
6. HWAREMKE HibkHREEE 6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/OTHER EXPENSES AND
OTHER LOSSES
2022 2021
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EFHR)
(Restated)
BEKEER Continuing operations
HEME - BFE &&E2 Wa Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 241 14,022
HRITIF R M A o 2 PR W SRR S A Interest income from bank deposits and
balances and loan receivables 13,175 13,093
=N ON Interest income from associates 131 1,142
BRI BN Government grant 32,615 21,132
WEMEDPRFREEEZ AFEWE  Fair value gain on investment property
classified as held for sale - 21,464
PTHESBMTAZEERATEKE Realised fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments 21,066 4,441
PTESRIAZ RERATEKS Unrealised fair value gain on derivative
financials instruments 7,123 -
AR 2 R R Rental concession related to COVID-19 521 4,406
EmAE - IREMEAKRA Product development and tooling income 1,248 8,810
FEE HEBE DT SIS 2 ek Gain on deemed partial disposal of an
associate 307 165
HETH K5 - BERRREISME ZUEE  Gain on sales of parts, samples, scrap and
surplus materials 8,718 6,785
BEE AR ZERERA Management fee income received from
associates 4,196 3,067
TEYZFER WA Rental income from investment properties,
IR 3zt 104,00078 7T less outgoings of HK$ 104,000
(20214 : 136,000/ 7T) (2021: HK$136,000) 718 677
MEFULEIE - BFREFEEEZWA  Recovery of bad debts, overprovision of claims
and compensation income from customers 15 4,326
HE—EHE ARz e FffFE35(b)) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35(b)) 47,141 -
EmE (hita) Compensation for relocation (note a) 38,919 -
SHBEALE (FF33) Reversal of provision for restructuring (note 33) 75,210 -
WA= (ffaEb) Reversal of relocation cost (note b) 24,285 -
Efth Others 5,259 5,176
E A K E AU = Other income and other gains 280,888 108,706
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6. HAWAREAE His R EMEE @

OTHER LOSSES (continued)

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/OTHER EXPENSES AND

2022 2021
FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EF#RI)
(Restated)
BEREER Continuing operations
MEERIEZATERERER Unrealised fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments - 5,241
AT ERFABRZRATAZ Fair value loss on equity instruments at fair
NEEE value through profit or loss 3,271 3,428
M B AR FE L BB EN S Net translation deficit recognised to profit or
E b loss upon deregistration of a subsidiary 982 -
AR K FRBRAN (FitaEc) Closure and relocation costs (note c) 86,232 28,101
BAEEE (Ed) Restructuring charges (note d) 5,950 -
WRYE - BE KRB REEE Impairment loss recognised on property, plant
(F1sE14) and equipment (note 14) - 13,400
ERFRELE ZRERE Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use
(Mi7E15) assets (note 15) - 7,600
RE AN AR 2 R EEE (iEE16) Impairment loss on interest in the Associate
(note 16) 59,947 -
M - BB RE Property, plant and equipment written off 16,701 14,079
HiEia Exchange loss 28,584 46,247
A Others 2,884 -
s i R H A8 Other expenses and other losses 204,551 118,096
B 5T Notes:

(@) 20224 3A31H FFE - AEEEE T
Rl TR - B TRA RS - 2 WEIE bR
FRHIE1E

(b) H202243A31H FFE - AEEE—FHFET
PR AR TR » BRI 2 A L A SR8 B P
B (EBRTIRIRRAEZER)

() WHIERENBZE2022F3A31BILFE ' A&E
AL BN RN T E M 4 E RS < N AR

d) FERREZEVDIRGPRERHRERIRZ
Refn RAKEEE A RZERAIERAT GTF A
BETEBRQR) ZRRBLELBENRARD
BFELRER o

(@)

(©

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
with a local government for relocation of a PRC factory and had received a
compensation from the local government.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group handed a PRC factory over
to the government and accordingly the relocation cost provision that had been
previously made and mainly represented the demolishing and cleaning cost of
the factory was reversed.

The closure and relocation costs included the costs incurred for relocation of
the rechargeable batteries manufacturing factories located in Huizhou and
Dongguan for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Restructuring charges represented the costs incurred for the proposed
distribution in specie of shares in GP Energy Tech Limited and the proposed
acquisition of Light Engine Technologies Limited by XIC Innovation Limited
(formerly known as Linkz Industries Limited), an associate of the Group.

7. BIESERA 7. FINANCE COSTS

2022 2021
FHxT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EFHmT))
(Restated)

BEREER Continuing operations
RITREMERFEER Interest on bank and other loans 122,245 125,363
HEABNSER Interest on lease liabilities 15,673 11,478
137,918 136,841

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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8. KRBLAEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2022 2021
FHET FET
HKS$’000 HK$'000
(EFH )
(Restated)
BEREER Continuing operations
FRAT AT A ERERA T IER - Profit before taxation has been arrived at after
charging:
EEMWE (FIE 9 Directors’ emoluments (note 9) 37,943 27,441
HEt 8 TH - FREEF Other staff’s salaries, allowances and welfare 1,182,877 1,137,715
ETEMNEREF (M) Total employee benefits expenses (note) 1,220,820 1,165,156
M BERZE2ITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 177,198 150,983
EREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 98,542 90,416
GFEsE Allowance for inventories 2,537 4,269
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
IZEEDEN & Auditor’s remuneration
KEE Current year 12,478 12,640
FEBEINTRZBE (Over) underprovision in prior years (549) 39
RAZH 2 FERAR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 5,226,814 4,750,663
HRERE RS EMEREEFEMERE  Netimpairment loss recognised on trade and
other receivables 25,849 2,619
TEETERAEEETETHEEH Expenses in relating to short-term leases,
HE  REEEEHAEMAISHEENK leases of low-value assets and variable lease
EHlzBA payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities recognised in respect of
HEYH Rental premises 9,972 8,545
Efth Others 208 1,893
WREAS L (BEETBEEA) Research expenditure incurred (included in
administrative expenses) 89,597 75,632

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recognised the
COVID-19-related government subsidies amounting to HK$823,000 (2021:
HK$46,569,000) which was deducted from staff salaries.

izt : 20229 3A31H IEFE - ANEE MR EAM
TR AR 2 BUF#RE /823,000 7T (20214
46,569,000/ 7T) * EHLE THEHHER o
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90 ESKABFHRISBRSHMESR 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

EERERTHRESTH Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments
EBRE#R Directors and chief executive
ORSEMNFT -2 (2021F : +—R) EER The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2021: eleven)
BRI directors and the chief executive are as follows:
2022
HAhEm

Other emoluments
*EIER BKEF
FeR RES SR
H{h#ER Performance Retirement

Salaries and related benefit
we other incentive scheme &%
Fees benefits payments contributions Total
THER FiEr THEr FRT FaET
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
()
(note i)
HITES Executive directors:
FIPEE (B3 Victor LO Chung Wing (note ii) 10 8,651 2,014 613 11,288
BEE (V) Richard KU Yuk Hing (note iv) 3 471 - 44 518
R Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 4,852 1,742 394 6,998
MEL Michael LAM Hin Lap 10 3,730 870 242 4,852
#T11E Brian WWONG Tze Hang 10 3,344 504 272 4,130
SRR FTEEv) Victor CHONG Toong Ying (note v) 8 3,614 717 14 4,353
g (V) Waltery LAW Wang Chak (note v) 8 3,397 960 199 4,564
FHTES Non-executive director:
RKE Karen NG Ka Fai 230 - - - 230
BYFHITES Independent non-executive directors:
EEEES LUI Ming Wah 280 - - - 280
R Frank CHAN Chi Chung 270 - - - 270
PRE R CHAN Kei Biu 230 - - - 230
ERE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 230 - - - 230
1,299 28,059 6,807 1,778 37,943
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

O EERMARBFHNRLERSFHNES @ 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMIPLOYEES (continued)
EERARTHRESESTH @ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)
EEREHR Directors and chief executive (continued)
2021
H A
Other emoluments
*IIEHE RIRAER)
ek HET FHEIER
HihigH| Performance  Retirement
Salaries and related benefit
we other incentive scheme B&f
Fees benefits payments contributions Total
FAT FHT FHT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(PF=ED
(note i)
HITEE Executive directors:
LS (BIsEi) Victor LO Chung Wing (note ii) 10 7,551 1,583 518 9,662
BEEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 1,855 b44 157 2,566
TR Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 4,070 1,101 335 5,616
MEL Michael LAM Hin Lap 10 2,985 1,173 205 4,373
=TIE Brian WONG Tze Hang 10 2,933 860 232 4,035
*HTES Non-executive directors:
21a% (HiEii) LEUNG Pak Chuen (note iii) 104 - - - 104
RKE Karen NG Ka Fai 219 - - - 219
BIYFHTES Independent non-executive directors:
=R LUI Ming Wah 269 - - - 269
fREIR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 259 - - - 259
PR EL i CHAN Kei Biu 219 - - - 219
ERE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 219 - - - 219
1,339 19,394 5,261 1,447 27,441
BEE Notes:
() RIBBEERSHDBRERZEELELEE - @ARX (i) The performance related incentive payments were determined with reference

B R A BT S R HIFEE - to the operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics for both years.

(i) BPREERFTRARRLE - N LB RE 25 M (ii)
EBIEEREEPTRILZ RS o

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

Z2{AZEEN2020F 108 1R B EFEHITES - (i) Mr. LEUNG Pak Chuen was retired as non-executive director on 1 October
2020.

(iii

(iv) BEEHEEER2021F 78 1HBRENITES - (iv) Mr. Richard KU Yuk Hing was retired as executive director on 1 July 2021.

(vi)

RRECEERBERZRER2021F7A 1IARRE
RPTER

EFRBATERHH  TERRERBARTR
AEEER 2 ERER o N LPAEBIIFRMITES
FOFITERHH - TZRWEERRRAEFEZR
& o
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(vi)

Mr. Victor CHONG Toong Ying and Mr.\Waltery LAW Wang Chak are appointed
as executive director on 1 July 2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The independent non-executive directors’ and non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

112



O BEERANFHEEZRRETFMES @

EENBBFHRESHM 0

ES
AEERAFERRFHZIRREREREDLS
(2021F : M%) REAE=HEH EME 2715
A EPrED) o R2021F3A 1R FFRHBR=H
(2022% : T) AEERSHFM AR RES
BEZHHIT

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included five
(2021: two) directors or the chief executive of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2022: nil) highest paid employees of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021, not being a director of the Company, are as follows:

2022 2021
FBT FiEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e REMER Salaries and other benefits - 8,874
FIA AR SEE S Performance related incentive payments - 6,759
RIRERIET B Retirement benefit scheme contributions - 241
- 15,874

M FTENEEE T - Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EE#A
No. of employees

2022 2021
4,500,001/% 7t — 5,000,000/ 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
5,000,001% 7t — 5,500,000/ 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 - 1
5,500,001% 7t — 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1

RMEFER  THRETEEHMZORER
(BREEE  BINER MSEREBIARE
AR E R 2 BE SR BB 2 18 - RE
FERN  BEESREHNEEMHE -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

No emoluments was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors, chief executive and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
both years. None of the directors or the chief executive has waived any
emoluments during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

10. Bi1E 10. TAXATION
2022 2021
FERT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EF R
(Restated)
BEKEER Continuing operations
(ki The charge comprises:
BEBFIER Hong Kong Profits Tax
—RFERIE - charge for the year 10,747 10,453
—AFEz FEIN TREE - (over) underprovision in previous years (119) 2,945
10,628 13,398
BB AINE 3= B TE Taxation in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong
—REEBIA - charge for the year 43,885 56,239
—EFE 2 BEINEE - overprovision in previous years (13,303) (4,164)
30,582 52,075
41,210 65,473
RAER A ST ) (F15E32) Deferred taxation charge (note 32)
—REE - current year (2,291) 12,064
38,919 77,537
R2022F R 2021FMEAFE - BEFEHIEE Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
BFEF R 16.5%1E - assessable profit for both years.
BEBLAIM T ESTRAE 2 g8 - FERFEH Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong mainly arose
EMEH ([REMBHIE]D) MEEARME from PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and United Kingdom
B D RIATI R 25%F1 19%:1E - corporate income tax was calculated at a rate of 25% and 19%,
respectively.
AEBME TEFBRLENNEBRRRFE IR Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible as
LEEERARAIDNERMEHRE  sTE8ZSE High and New Technology Enterprise and are entitled to preferential
Ml A F) R B I SEFTS R B R B 5T A S LTS income tax rate of 15%. Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC of those
BE- subsidiaries has been provided for after taking these tax incentives into

account.
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10. HiE @) 10. TAXATION (continued)

MIB HREROT - A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2022 2021
FERT FiEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EHR5)
(Restated)
FRE AT & A Profit before taxation 254,854 278,514
EEBFIERE16.5%(20214F : 16.5%) Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
FTEZRIER Y 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 42,051 45,955
Frt B & AR 2 RIS & Tax effect of share of results of associates (47,213) (39,758)
TERIER S T2 M E Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 45,835 36,757
RRMA 2 TG R E Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes (17,333) (11,764)
RERBH BB MIETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 37,313 35,782
ERAFRERTIAEEZ R E Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (22,399) (9,5206)
BEAIMBETRBIE 22 Effect of different tax rates in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong 1,338 (4,467)
B RARDIE 2 BHER Withholding tax on distributed and
undistributed profits 12,749 25,777
AFEz G TREE (Over) underprovision in previous years (13,422) (1,219
REERIE Taxation charge for the year 38,919 77,537
11 B2 11. DIVIDENDS
HE2022F3A31H LFE - AR R EBIRALER No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
REREREZRBIARE - AREHEER Company during the year ended 31 March 2022, nor has any dividend
BINEEFRE RIS (20214 : &) - been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: nil).

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K 1 16



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

12 BRI TS 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

M2021F5A31A - ARETTEEWHHE - A
HEARRZEMNBARZIUTIEESERAR
(IZIITEEZ]) NEHEBHITHRAN - EATS
TRSDRIGHN 20214 9F 30R 2z AER ([%715
HED - EREBHENKRN 2 L TER S8
ARBE—2EMBAREMNSILRREHER
NA] ([EM2IARR]) BETER - EEME L
BREKBUASILTEE SN2 ENBRF -
SITEESREMNSILRRBRAEENE
TR - EBHEE R 20215 8A31A K -

BEIEAERREBHFENEBRIINT - 54
BERAMRERERSD O L BRRTEENE
5 S ERREGEN R R ADK ISR
7 o

On 31 May 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to sell the entire issued share capital of GP Industries Marketing
Limited (“GPIM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, inter alia,
conditional upon the satisfaction of various conditions precedent on
or before 30 September 2021 (the “Business Disposal”). As a condition
of the Business Disposal, GPIM and Huizhou GP \Wiring Technology
Ltd. (“"GPWT"), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall
undergo a reorganisation such that GPWT shall become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GPIM at completion. GPIM and GPWT comprised the
Group’s automotive wire harness business. The Business Disposal was
completed on 31 August 2021.

The loss for the year from the discontinued automotive wire harness
operation is set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been
restated to re-present the automotive wire harness operation as a
discontinued operation.

BZE2022F HZ= 20214
3A31ALLEE 3A31HIEFE
Year ended Year ended
31.3.2022 31.3.2021
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

RNEFETERLARFES 5 A Profit of automotive wire harness operation for
the year 930 7,079
Loss on disposal of automotive wire harness

HETERAEBER ([15E35())

operation (see note 35(a)) (16,696) -
HERIE Tax expense on the disposal (1,848) -
(17,614) 7,079

Bt AR R LA M2 KRR TERRE
B 2021548 10 £202148H 31 AR %

The results of the automotive wire harness operations for the period
from 1 April 2021 to 31 August 2021, which have been included in the

BT consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

were as follows:

BZE2021F HZE2021F

8H 31H LI 3A31IHIEFE

Period ended Year ended

31.8.2021 31.3.2021

FET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

=E Revenue 83,937 190,575
SHER A Cost of sales (70,143) (157,082)
E A A R E M 5 Other income and other gains 795 3,092
HERDHZ Selling and distribution expenses 6,371) (15,249)
B Administrative expenses (6,685) (12,839
Hthsz i R H At 518 Other expenses and other losses (72 595
BA SRR AR Finance costs (346) (141)
FR A5 A1 g A Profit before tax 1,115 8,951
THIE Income tax expense (185) (1,872
RNEAR, B F T Profit for the period/year 930 7,079

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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12 BERIEREER 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

RIFE SRS, FEABRENTARR Profit for the period/year from discontinued operations includes the
following:
HZE2021F HZE 20214
8A 31H ILHiMf 3A31RIEFE
Period ended Year ended
31.8.2021 31.3.2021
FBT FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
IZ RN & Auditor’s remuneration 273 465
HBEIH< 2R REF Other staff’s salaries, allowances and welfare 21,200 45,583
W - BEREEITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 951 2,549
FREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 673 1,095
FEEE Allowance for inventories 50 1,236
REZHZTFERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 70,093 155,846
EREWE R R B FREREE  Netimpairment loss recognised on trade and
other receivables - 16
PEEPNE and after crediting:
RITIE R REMEET 2 FBIA Interest income from bank deposits and
balances 22 108
HE20223A31HIEFE r @IUTEESM During the year ended 31 March 2022, GPIM and GPWT contributed
EMSIUBRRRAEBENLCERESTFEERT cash outflow approximately HK$7,577,000 (2021: cash outflow
&ML 7,577,000 7T (20214 : WE HK$5,934,000) to the Group’s net operating cash flows, paid
5,934,000%7T) -+ BIEEEE L {J£1433,000 approximately HK$433,000 (2021: HK$1,152,000) in respect of investing
AT (20214 ¢ 1,152,000 7T) » WA E & activities and paid approximately HK$358,000 (2021: HK$1,072,000) in
#)32 (749358,000%8 7T (20214 : 1,072,000/ respect of financing activities.
TT) °
SIUTEZEFREMEILERN T EBHNEE The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of GPIM and GPWT at
L& ERmERHE35)HE - the date of disposal are disclosed in note 35(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

13. BRER 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

FERERE
BRARBDREEAZBEEEXEERERRT
TR IO BT E

From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2022 2021
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(EFHRT)
(Restated)
BRI Earnings
BRARBIES A2 FLER Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 133,400 121,862
BRIEEER 2 2F (B18) @7 (Loss) profit for the year from discontinued
operations (15,074) 6,056
FHERFECE X RERER] 2 T Profit for the purpose of basic earnings per
share from continuing operations 148,474 115,806
¥ +
'000 ‘000
BRHEE Number of shares
FTESREREN FRBEITERER Weighted average number of ordinary shares
A& 17 #9 hnte 19 21 in issue during the year for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share 791,698 788,212

SESREARMN 2 B BT EBERARD M IEF
HEE 5 2022F 21 148 AR E L 9% -

FEKEROKILREER
ERARAFEABERBELLERERILERE
¥ 82 55 5 133,400,000 7T (20214 :
121,862,000 7T) 1 Lt M i & AL E A 2 A8
DR BEKERDRIERERBNERELRR
FMAEK16.9%81l (20215 : R 15.57584l)

EESIS G-
ERARREAABHERIEREEBNZFE
815,074,000/ 7T (20214 : 276,056,000
B 7T) M bt SR EA (B BN
ERIEREERBNERERNEIER 198
(2021F : EREAREMNO.GE) -

RELZE 20224 3A 31 M 20214 3A 31H [EM4F
ERIEEEEEBRY  ANERRESRES
BMZETE -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share has been adjusted for rights issue on 14 February
2022,

From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the continuing and discontinued operations is
HK16.9 cents (2021: HK15.5 cents), based on the profit for the year from
the continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company of profit of HK$ 133,400,000 (2021: HK$121,862,000) and
the denominators detailed above for both basic earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK1.9 cents
(2021: basic earnings per share of HKO.8 cents), based on the loss for
the year from the discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$ 15,074,000 (2021: profit of HK$6,056,000) and the
denominators detailed above for basic earnings per share.

No computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is disclosed as there are no potential
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021.
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14. % - BERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAER

THREE B BERRE IERIA

Freehold 2L E S EE£E  Machinery Moulds HREE

land and Owned  Leasehold and and  Assetunder Aty a4
buildings  properties improvements  equipment tools  construction Others Total

T T FEx Thn T Thn T Fin
HK$'000  HK$O00  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HK§O00  HKPO0O  HK$'000

()
(note)
BASE COST OR VALUATION
12020648 18 At 1 April 2020 74,573 664,79 149,036 2,106,932 305,021 532,240 182122 4,014,719
ELs Currency realignment 4,012 53,008 4,339 97871 17,831 40,709 7,195 224,965
bl Additions - 19,949 18,897 68,868 6,978 337,662 5,901 458,245
e Disposals - (261) - (45,049 (946) - (3,283 (49,539
i Written off - (5,526) (10,851) (62,145) (3,959 - (16,500) (98,987)
E Transfer 3,082 1,239 1,975 101,020 85,363 (202,267) 9,588 -
1 2021%3A 31H At 31 March 2021 81,667 733,204 163,396 2,267,497 410,288 708,334 185,017 4,649,403
ELs Currency realignment (950) 28,659 2,108 38,337 10,693 25,326 1,648 105,821
bl Additions - 404 11,133 33,697 42,763 210,376 4,204 302,667
e Disposals - (3,240) - (49,616) (5,809 (30) (6,796) (65,491)
i Written off - (34,796) - (54,636) (4,765) - (281) (94,478)
HENBAR Disposal of subsidliaries - - (1577 (27,812 (4,825) - (1,22)  (45,439)
ZF Transfer - 554,856 10,795 54,768 16,983 (640,461) 3,059 -
2022537318 At 31 March 2022 80,717 1,279,087 175,855 2,262,235 465,328 303,545 185,717 4,752,484
B Comprising:
A At cost 48,551 1,279,087 175,855 2,262,235 465,328 303,545 185,717 4,720,318
fbE- 19045 At valuation - 1994 32,166 - - - - - - 32,166
80,717 1,279,087 175,855 2,262,235 465,328 303,545 185,717 4,752,484

FERWE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
20205 4R 18 At 1 April 2020 18,617 138,285 116,172 1,588,906 189,986 - 129,450 2,181,415
BHRR Currency realignment 1,100 12,786 3,398 67,848 10,018 - 4,086 99,236
REEER Provided for the year 986 17,848 13,981 85,798 23,644 - 11,375 163,532
HE Impairment - - - 13,400 - - - 13,400
HERHR Eliminated on disposals - (191) - (43,575) (900) - (2,822) (47,488)
TR Eliminated on written off - (b15) (10,831) (57,067) (3,242) - (13,664) (85,319
#2021% 3R 31R At 31 March 2021 20,703 168,213 122,720 1,605,309 219,406 - 128,426 2,314,776
EHian Currency realignment (295) 7,217 1,501 27,538 4,319 - 1,239 41,609
REEERE Provided for the year 1,039 24,505 14,506 97,079 29,856 - 11,164 178,149
HERRR Eliminated on disposals - (445) - (45,302 (4,388 - (6,714) (56,849)
HHERHR Eliminated on written off - (26,707) - (47,040) (3,665) - (265 (77,677)
HENBARRRR Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries - - (11,577) (16,855 (4,169 - (1,100 (33,702
12022837317 At 31 March 2022 21,447 172,783 127,240 1,670,729 241,359 - 132,748 2,366,306
RAG CARRYING VALUE
12022437317 At 31 March 2022 59,270 1,106,304 48,615 591,506 223,969 303,545 52,969 2,386,178
1 2021%3A 31H At 31 March 2021 60,964 H64,991 40,676 612,188 190,882 708,334 56,092 2,234,627
M HumeaiERAMER  EEED A Note: Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying values of

41,584,000 7T, (20214 : 44,146,000/% 7T) HK$41,584,000 (2021: HK$44,146,000) and HK$11,385,000 (2021:

11,385,000/ 7T (20214F : 12,446,000/% HK$12,446,000), respectively.

JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

14. Y% - BERRE @) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuec)

ME - BERRE (EREENMKAHRE Ltk
S Z ARSI (E A B A AT AT R A HR e AL A AR
HREERATNEXRUEREABBRREEF
FERE

B

FE 2% 4%

TS 2% E 5% SRR 8
MEEH EEEE)

ROEEEE 10% 25 33Y, % R IZ @S]
T
(EEE)

TR K2 52 AR 10%=33,%

THEETH 10%%=50%

Eih (BRE - KB 5%E33/%

RAE)

MR20226F 3A31H k20216 3A31HILFE &
SEH—MEERF R EMRBMRE 2 L
ME - BERREREAEEENREEETT
BE  ZBER LFEELEE - MEMNAUKRED
SRIRECHRERHE  CREEREBEEERE
2 B RE S ZBARSRE - RBA
BEIRE 13% (20214 : 13%) E5F - At - &%
2021 3A31A LFE - stk - BFE Rtk R
b AR ERERIRER KD B /4 13,400,000/
T.5% 7,600,000/ 7T » # % 202249 34 31H (E4F
B R BRERBINRERRIRERD -
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment, except for asset under construction
and freehold land, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method or
the reducing balance method, at the following rates per annum:

Straight-line method:

2% to 4%

2% to 5% or over the remaining period
of respective leases where shorter

10% to 33'/,% or over the remaining
period of respective leases where
shorter

10% to 33/, %

10% to 50%

5% to 33'/,%

Buildings
Owned properties

Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Moulds and tools

Others (representing furniture,
fixtures and motor vehicles)

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group
carried out a review of the carrying amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of a plant engaged in
the manufacturing of a particular type of battery product which had
incurred losses in previous years. The recoverable amount of the plant
was determined based on a value in use calculation using the cash flow
projection from latest financial budgets approved by management with
a pre-tax discount rate of 13% (2021: 13%) and, as a result during the
vear ended 31 March 2021, impairment losses of HK$ 13,400,000 and
HK$ 7,600,000 were recognised on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets respectively. No additional impairment loss or reversal
of impairment was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022,
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16 EREEE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

BRRRE
HERE Machinery
Leasehold and Hith )
building equipment Others Total
FHEL FHEL FAEL FHEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#W2022F3A 31H As at 31 March 2022
FEE Carrying amount 276,532 13,337 1,784 291,653
#2021 34 31A As at 31 March 2021
RmEE Carrying amount 264,319 14,581 3,647 282,447
HZ202243A31A 1 For the year ended 31 March 2022
2ENE Depreciation for the year 94,086 2,964 2,165 99,215
RHREER Expense relating to short-term leases 2,115
KEBEEREER Expense relating to leases of low-value
TREREEEECREESE) assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 167
AERENRER Expense relating to variable lease
TRERNREREHEZN) payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 7,898
HERS TR AR Total cash outflow for leases 101,658
FREEEEN Additions to right-of-use assets 120,511
HZ202143A310 L For the year ended 31 March 2021
2EME Depreciation for the year 86,501 2,946 2,064 91,511
RHREER Expense relating to short-term leases 3,404
KEBEEREER Expense relating to leases of low-value
TREREEEECREES) assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 187
AEHENTER Expense relating to variable lease
TEERREREHEZN) payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 6,847
FREEERERE R Impairment loss recognised on right-of-
use assets 7,600
HERS T BE Total cash outflow for leases 92,236
RREEELN Additions to right-of-use assets 194,535
AEEHESBHERE 98 « B LERERN The Group leases various leasehold building, motor vehicles, machinery
MAERBEAREES - HESRNETER A and equipment and office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts
152 155 - HEKRAEZBREEBIER BT are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 15 years. Lease terms are
# - EF B E SR TRARRAES - REBT negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
e A B HARR AR A AT REE R HARR B - SR A terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
B &= I HEE & [B 7] 58 BB TRO ERRR o length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a

contract and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

15. FAEEE @ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

UESh - REERE — LB TR LB R EEE
RiEEBFMEATE - AEBERZEMEES
EVEMER A - EEMEE LA P M RIA
BRI SED IR - BEEMEMEE LB A A
@I -

AEBEHREERT  BELEMREITLE
HATEE - 20229 3A 31 - EEHER S R
M REa e HE S ERAREASALL -

ETABASEARTRRENR - (IRERE
BMAREEREN LAY - ARG REAEE
BEMHR -

HERM %

BHZE2022F3A31RILFE - AT EEHN
AR A BEIRUE A 5 BER (T BT b & R 15
BRGNS - ELE R R A
RIEMBERER TENABBHERSLE
16.46BH P& it - I B AR E BRI {7
HIERHEE LB C R R BRI EE SN - BH
HAGRBEEENRERSIHA M HETAES)
B% & /3521,000/ 7T (20215 : 4,406,000/%
L) R BB R EHEENIR -

HERSHZY

gEoh - 2022 3A31H - BREEEE
322,409,000 % 7t ( 20214 : 287,924,000
7 7T) KRRz (& B #E A & 291,653,000/ 7T
(20214 :282,447,000%7T) < Br 7 HEERS
MAEBEED R ERI  BEBFLEER
Hib#5E - MEBENMSRAEERER -

HEREHERS -EH -EBA
RTEFWEEREENENEENRES R -
AEBERSR TR FEERET HEREHE
R - BLAFERN BB BRSLERE
15 ESR - ABRBTHEEENHE -
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In addition, the Group owns some office buildings and several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests. The leasehold
land components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for leasehold building,
machinery and other equipment. As at 31 March 2022, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense was related as disclosed in this note above.

Leases of certain warehouses only contain variable lease payments that
are based on the percentage of usage on certain warehouse over the
lease term. All other leases are with only fixed lease payments.

Rent Concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2022, lessors of the relevant retail
stores provided rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic to the Group through rent reductions. These
rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of COVID-19
pandemic and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS 16.46B, and the
Group applied the practical expedient not to assess whether the changes
constitute lease modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant leases of
HK$521,000 (2021: HK$4,406,000) were recognised as negative
variable lease payments.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$322,409,000 (2021: HK$287,924,000)
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$291,653,000
(2021: HK$282,447,000) as at 31 March 2022. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Sale and leaseback transactions - seller-lessee

To better manage the Group’s capital structure and financing needs,
the Group sometimes enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
in relation to land and building leases. As these legal transfer satisfies
the requirements of HKFRS 15, it is accounted for as a sale of land and
building.
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16. P& A Rl

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022 2021
Fix FiEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
/NS EC S I DN Cost of investments in associates
il Listed 230,962 230,841
JEE™ Unlisted 319,632 319,632
TG s & a7 R E 2 S Share of post-acquisition profit and other
AR E WAL S comprehensive income, net of dividends
received 1,250,475 1,217,956
1,801,069 1,768,429
i NI Amounts due from associates 16,927 16,879
B ERE Allowance for impairment loss (61,156) (1,209
1,756,840 1,784,099
WS HA3A31H 2 AFE (H:E) Fair value of listed shares at 31 March (Note) 492,917 516,855

MiE . ERENATERETSREFRANEERF
R BB RETE ©

BE QR R EEM LB ROLHE BEER
H-gBZER  ARESISERSHEER
B+ —EARRRERER - Hit - HSBINE
FERBEE -

Pt i 2 R Rl #E B F5 752 120,429,000 7T
(20214 : 120,308,000 7T)

EZE 20224 3A31A - AEEEREEDERE &
SEHEEMER) BAINEBUATEE » BEA
B RS AR AT BIE B ER B T ELAE R
BRRINEIRRER LA mAEES - B
ERA  ARERBEARNERTERAER
59,947,000/ 7T 2 AR

REEEBEMATRELFHNBEARAMBE
M TRt R ERERN SRR R EFR
BRAEBAGEE T - FtRsHERBEER
FFE LW - UL REHSEEHEBERNGE
RN BT ZHEAEHER - 2R HISNE
REEHERBENRE REIABIIZHTE
BIFE S HMER 2 INE - Fit - NEEEIRE
RRETAS - EEAFHRENAERFE

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

Note: The fair value of the listed investments is determined based on the quoted
market bid price multiplied by the quantity of shares held by the Group.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free and
have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
would not demand for the repayment within the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the amounts are shown as
non-current assets.

Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$120,429,000
(2021: HK$120,308,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the management of the Group had considered
that the current geopolitical situation, capital control measures and the
sanctions on Russia had significantly restricted its ability to realise any
economic benefit in its capacity as a foreign shareholder of the Associate
with reference to the external lawyer's opinion. Management considers
that there was an indication of impairment of the Group’s interest in the
Associate with a carrying amount of HK$59,947,000.

Based on the financial performance of the Associate estimated by
management covering a five-year period, it was anticipated that due to
the various sanctions on Russia, there will be a general decline in revenue
of the Associate in the next 5 years, hence the value in use was expected
to be nominal. Also, in response to the sanctions imposed on Russia by a
number of countries, Russia has implemented a number of capital control
measures including restrictions on disposal of Russian investments by
foreign investors and restriction of foreign currency transfers to overseas
counterparties for non-trade related debts. As a result, the management of
the Group considered that it is unable to estimate a reasonable fair value
of the investment other than a zero value.
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16. Frb Bt D R iR () 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Hitt - FrEBE ARRRCE2ERE - RERR
@ RO (B & 18 59,947,000/ 7T (20214 -
TETT) - FAMATOAREMEAEM - BX
B T HE B N T R HT B U B R T BE B BUR R B
B EIE -

TEBENE ZFHBRRRA 47

FTERE VR ZMBERRBE
FHAREEZME AR ZMBERBEHIIM
T MATHBERNBZAREBEEEMBREEN
RE I ENT ZBTIEMERPTIRERE

RERBIERAT FIERLETEBRAR) ([Z
) REETEBEMBRAR ([KE]) 248K
EMEABE QR RiFaBRKREERET

ot

Accordingly, the interest in the Associate was fully impaired and the
impairment loss of HK$59,947,000 (2021: nil) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year. Any easing of the current geopolitical situation,
capital control measures and sanctions on Russia may result in a reversal
of impairment losses in the future.

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 47.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

XIC Innovation Limited (formerly known as Linkz Industries Limited) (“XIC”)
and Meiloon Industrial Co, Ltd. (“Meiloon”) are the material associates
to the Group and are accounted for using the equity method in the

B consolidated financial statements.
IR EHE AR XIC and its subsidiaries
2022 2021
FERx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 1,279,067 2,662,777
ERENEE Non-current assets 1,319,855 2,044,813
mEBaE Current liabilities 482,043 1,911,320
EREAE Non-current liabilities 21,367 467,221
IR Non-controlling interests 662 225,957
=R Revenue 4,150,450 3,516,530
2F 5 Profit for the year 461,741 239,449
FEEMEE GZH) K@ Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (39,321) 96,405
2E2ERSBTE Total comprehensive income for the year 422,420 335,854
F R UE 2 iR E Dividend received from XIC during the year 163,451 -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

124



16. Frib B A F iR ) 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuec)
BEREKBAR @

B RS E R AT B B R AR A TS IR R i
R ZBANREREmESRNT

XIC and its subsidiaries (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of XIC

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2022 2021
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BENEEER A2 G FEE Net assets of XIC attributable to
owners of XIC 2,094,850 2,103,092
RNEB T ZIS A ER 2 LB Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in XIC 38.13% 38.13%
PTG 2R FE B Share of net assets of XIC 798,766 801,909
EES Goodwill 28,242 28,242
Hh % Other adjustment (2,536) (2,536)
REBFTL SR 2 REE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in XIC 824,472 827,615
EERENBQE Meiloon and its subsidiaries
2022 2021
FiExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MENVEE Current assets 1,780,987 1,915,451
IERBEE Non-current assets 693,832 688,698
mEAE Current liabilities 635,849 792,905
ERBAE Non-current liabilities 573,033 507,957
e R Non-controlling interests 83,886 80,565
EHERE Revenue 1,050,531 816,156
2 F A Profit for the year 58,123 429,309
2FEHMEE GZH) WA Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (15,832) 43,763
EERMEINEERE Total comprehensive income for the year 42,291 473,072
FRMERUEZ IR S Dividends received from Meiloon
during the year 16,248 17,189

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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16. FT{bEEE AR @) 16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
XEREMBLR @ Meiloon and its subsidiaries (continued)
LI E R E R RN R E M SRR A Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RZBE N REAREEYRAT carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Meiloon

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2022 2021
FExT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEREERAEACEREFEE Net assets of Meiloon attributable to owners of

Vleiloon 1,182,051 1,222,722
NEBEE R R 2 LB Proportion of the Group’s ownership

interest in Meiloon 20.27% 20.27%
FThEERFEE Share of net assets of Meiloon 239,602 247,846
GES Goodwvill 41,252 41,131
Hih R Other adjustment (276) (276)
NEBFTGEE#ERZ Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in

BREE Vleiloon 280,578 288,701

TRHMBFELERABI2A31H - AEER The financial year end date for Meiloon is 31 December. For the purpose
BEBREERIN—ENRIASIALEE BB HRE of applying the equity method of accounting, the consolidated financial
ETMIER - At - AEBFEREREREHBR statements of Meiloon and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
RIEZE2021F 127 318 (20214 : 2020F 127 December 2021 (2021: 31 December 2020) have been used as the Group
318) EFEZHFEMBRRESER S ER considers that it is impracticable for Meiloon to prepare a separate set of
VEZ BB o ¥PA 20214 127 31H 8220224 34 financial statements as of 31 March. Appropriate adjustments have been
BIAZHERRBZFE (I0h) - ELHEEED made accordingly for the effects of significant transactions between that
HERAE - date and 31 March 2022, if any.
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16. TG Bt ARl iER @)

FERERBENANFEEER

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

2022 2021
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AL TSR The Group’s share of profit 98,298 95,039

RS B PG o fth 2T R The Group’s share of other comprehensive
income 7,015 39,548

REBEELEEWGERE The Group’s share of total

comprehensive income 105,313 134,587

REB AR L QAR REEAHE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
interests in these associates 651,790 667,783

M20226F3A31H  FIEEE A RS BIEAT
FHiEE

() B ™ {& 280,578,000 ;
288,701,000 7T ) &9
Y\m/' D VA E

ZHMRMDABERA
fﬁ%ﬁ%*g\*EAZOZZfF
8 18 A& 302,802,000 ;
352,875,000&7T) °

f”ﬁwkr%%@'*

(i) BR ™ 18 74,415,000 /& 7T ( 2021 %
79,214,0005’%7?) MR ERD A
~E ([ F B D PHR ) Bty o 3 e ) P
EZEAS/%EH%EX_L CEBROREEES
RHMBRMAERRAR LT - REEMAME
MNP R ERN2022F 38 31H 2™
% {8 {8 /& 136,944,000 7 st ( 20214 :

122,050,000%7t) °

(i) B ™ & 31,662,000 & v ( 2021 F :
30,793,000 7t ) #) Hanoi Battery Joint
Stock Company ( [ Habaco |) & 5 -
Habacor i sE Ak iz - H B0 7E &
HRZ G LT o AREB TG Habacoigzm »
2022% 3A 31H z mi5{EE £53,171,000
BT (20214 : 41,930,000/ 7T) °

& M Bt = X )
37

FORHRERT b 2 FF B E M A

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

Interest in associates as at 31 March 2022 included the following listed
investments:

U]

(i)

The shares of Meiloon with carrying value of HK$280,578,000
(2021: HK$288,701,000). Meiloon was incorporated in Taiwan and
its shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The
market value of the Group’s interest in Meiloon as at 31 March 2022
amounted to HK$302,802,000 (2021: HK$352,875,000).

The shares of STL Technology Co, Ltd. (“STL”") with carrying value
of HK$74,415,000 (2021: HK$79,214,000). STL was incorporated
in Taiwan and its shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. The market value of the Group’s interest in STL
as at 31 March 2022 amounted to HK$136,944,000 (2021:
HK$122,050,000).

(iii) The shares of Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company (“Habaco”)

with carrying value of HK$31,662,000 (2021: HK$30,793,000).
Habaco was incorporated in VVietham and its shares are listed on the
Hanoi Stock Exchange. The market value of the Group’s interest in
Habaco as at 31 March 2022 amounted to HK$53,171,000 (2021:
HK$41,930,000).

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from associates are set
out in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

17 UAFEFAEMZEKEZRAIA 17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2022 2021
FExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRAFES 2 A FE () Unlisted equity securities, at fair value
(note) 90,384 60,065
MisE -8 #F 3 18 51,378,000 & 7T ( 2021 & Note: Included in the above is an investment of HK$51,378,000 (2021:
48,704,000/ 7T) AN EEE 49%( 20214 - HK$48,704,000) representing 49% (2021: 49%) equity interest in a company
49%) w2z —BRFREKT 2 AR EEEHE established in the PRC, which is engaged in selling and distribution business.
BRIEERDHE AEET2EZARNBEE The Group does not participate in the daily operations and has no voting
BNHEREEERGIRENVEN - EFRA power in the directors’ meetings of the company. In the opinion of the
AEEREHZARIBEITEATE  BRZAR directors, the Group cannot exercise significant influence over the company
WHERBUNAFEFAEMEEKEA/RAT and accordingly, such investment is classified as equity instrument at
B FVTOCI.
18 EREE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ERBEEXE
Product BERE EFBR
& development Technical Customer &t
Trademarks  expenditure know-how relationship Total
FHT FAEL BT FAL FAEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A COST
H202064A 18 - At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and
20215 2 20224 31 March 2022
3A31H 85,205 129,461 103,616 10,026 328,308
Rt B RRE ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
#®2020%4A8 18 At 1 April 2020 83,958 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,061
BEEERE Provided for the year 77 - - - 77
#2021 3A31R At 31 March 2021 84,035 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,138
TEEREE Provided for the year 77 - - - 77
#2022%3A31R At 31 March 2022 84,112 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,215
REE CARRYING VALUES
#202243A31H At 31 March 2022 1,093 - - - 1,093
#2021 3A31R At 31 March 2021 1,170 - - - 1,170
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10. BH&

19. GOODWILL
FET
HK$’000
20208 20214 3A 31H At 31 March 2020 and 2021 79,066
HEWBAR (HF7E35) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) (8,667)
M2022% 34 31H

BERE REAR SRR R A 200

20. BE 2 RERNR

MR 1958 2 A B S B = @R BB AR RS
ELEMERENS - FHIT

At 31 March 2022 70,399

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note
20.

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 19 has
been allocated to each individual or group of CGUs as follows:

2022 2021

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

GPI % GP Ind 33,775 33,775
iR (B)K) BHERAR] Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd 33,319 33,319
Efh Others 3,305 11,972
A&t Total 70,399 79,066

RAFE  AEBRBERSTEEN A EE
TRENS - B REBARERRIELF
(20214 : 1E5%) MENUBEERRLR
FEWREE-1%F4%(20214F  -5.7%ZF4%)
B ATITIRE 11.5%FE 12.6% (20214 :
11.5%%12.7%) 5& -

BERFARSELEMNTRESREUERER
HE - EREEHEZIRARAZERE 2R
T EERRNEFBREERTHNTERES - §
BEFERRRTISERAF G2 EEEMERZ
BRAITRENREL BN 2 BRRRAE
BER - ERIRIPITERVIGERTAR - 2XBLE
EXHMB R LR NIRm SRR Z 21
TER - HAbETEEAEENEZRREEENR
SEABNZBEREREEBETSEREMN
ERZHERENBERBRZRERARAL
BE - ERERREMELRRZPEFEIER
eI e RecELENNRAERBER
WeEl e 58 - EIE I EE — SRR E -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

During the vear, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill,
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets of each of the CGUs for the next 1 to 5years (2021: 1 to 5 years)
with reference to annual growth rate ranging from -1% to 4% (2021:
-5.7% to 4%) by using the pre-tax discount rate ranging from 11.5% to
12.6% (2021: 11.5% to 12.7%).

The recoverable amount of each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The key factors for
the value in use calculation are discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rate is based on average industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct cost are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Other key assumptions for
the value in use calculations included budgeted sales and gross margins
and their related cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated based on
the CGUs’ historical performance and management’s expectation of
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGUs thus no further
impairment would be recognised.
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21, JERBEWARIA

22.
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21. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEERERTE—F A LET Variable-rate loan receivable in more than one
Bim=F (f3Fa) year but not more than three vears (note a) 18,674 29,664
RATRBEE (fHaEb) Early relocation subsidy (note b) - 56,515
18,674 86,179

Fi

i

(@) BMRERBANGE=T REAMBFA X

(b)

5.5%zT 8 - WH2023F6AEE - ZE=7R—A
SE—FRMERBRBIR - ZFE = M EEZME
RAEP R E R E R IER o BlZE 20224
3AB1A L FE MM E FURE T A F BRI T
37¢

RATIRE i Bh = AN S B gt S A0 B B0 TR
B 2L 3 0 S 2 T A R S P IR T T IR AT A2
WRET  BRRMGAASRENHE - HEREA
AEETE 20194 68 £ 2024 67 M AL F HIR R 4
BEXNEMHSEEER IR TZHRFBRE
Bh - RIBFEEBGHAOERRBLS  FEHEHE
FERATREHE) - 2B TR ERIE 202243
ASIEM—FAKE  AUtEHDBEARBEET
HEADFEWARIE - BE20229F 3A31IAILFE @ i
RSB R ERT L B R A A BN M FE37

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The loan receivable was advanced to a third party and carries interests at
prevailing market rates of 5.5% per annum and is repayable in June 2023.
That third party is a shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group. The third party
has pledged its interest in that subsidiary as a security for the loan receivable.
Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable for the year ended 31
March 2022 is set out in note 37.

Early relocation subsidy represented the compensation offered by the buyer, a
third party, for the early handover of the control of the factory due to the disposal
of certain land and building of industrial complex located in Huizhou, PRC. The
disposal agreement allows the Group to continue to use the factory without
paying any rent for a period of five years from June 2019 to June 2024 with early
handover incentives. Based on the intended removal date estimated by the
management, an early relocation subsidy was expected to be compensated
by the buyer. The subsidy is expected to be received within one year as at 31
March 2022 and hence is reclassified to other receivables under current assets.
Details of impairment assessment of the early relocation subsidy for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is set out in note 37.

rE 22. INVVENTORIES
2022 2021
FET TFHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
=k Raw materials 490,935 342,223
& Work in progress 384,241 344,463
BURK i Finished goods 597,870 505,396
1,473,046 1,192,082
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23 ERERR Y RERANRE 23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2022 2021
FET FiIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEP &2 ERE SR R EWRE Trade and bills receivables from contracts with
customers 1,145,906 1,235,839
o EERKEE Less: Allowance for credit losses (49,973) (26,478)
1,095,933 1,209,361
HAiERERTE - e RFBARIE (i) Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (note) 544,821 387,006
1,640,754 1,596,367
W FERBIES Less: Non-current portion of deposits
BEYE  BERRBAZNZZS Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment (18,480) (27,490)
FmEEeEe Non-current rental deposits (11,372) (11,259)
(29,852) (38,749)
1,610,902 1,557,618

TEBGETEBSEFPEER  —RB=TXZE
—BZtTERAE - BRERRERZIE G0k E
BEERE REZANRRENEE A ZERR
DITWT -

The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021

FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

0-60X& 0-60 days 912,399 923,161
61-90X 61-90 days 130,025 109,992
HBEO0K Over 90 days 53,509 176,208
1,095,933 1,209,361

H2020F4H 10 - BRFANELZ BRER
#$811,066,000# 7T °

M - e RE B REBEMNHERZR - AIRERER -
TART RS2 K — b B T B8 2 R RO 4 35 50 2022F
3R 318 #iE Z 12 Al iR B 4 B 66,089,000/ T
(20215 : 56,515,000/ 7L BIEFE I 2 e AR
HA (fEE21)) -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

As at 1 April 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$811,066,000.

Note: The amount mainly includes advance to suppliers, VAT recoverable, prepaid
expenses and the early relocation subsidy amounting to HK$66,089,000
(2021: HK$56,515,000 included in non-current receivables (Note 21)) as at 31
March 2022.
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23 EWERREMEVRERENRE @

REREPH  AEESREETF ZERE
HAERHERATHEZEEER - EEERKE
BRERREWE R R E YR Z EE &S -

M2022963A 31 » REEREWEREHT
BIEREAE R 129,092,000 7T (20214 :
253,739,000 70) #*# & B E 8 B 60 e W iR
e BT 0 58,724,000/ 7T (2021
F 64,288,000/ 7T) B HI 90K 3L E K i¥
B RIBELEEPHRIFERCHENUBEER
TERERSEL

FEME N Lt FE M SR RO R E RS FHIE A
#37¢

24, URFEFABEZRETA

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continuec)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate credit
limits. The management also closely monitors the credit policy of trade
and other receivables.

As at 31 March 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$129,092,000 (2021:
HK$253,739,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$8,724,000 (2021: HK$64,288,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default based on good
repayment records and the financial background for those customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set
outin note 37.

24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
FET FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBR T2 RAESH Equity securities listed in United States 4,220 7,455
25 1AM A 25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2022 2021
FHERT FHET
HKS$’000 HK$'000
TEeBMEE Derivative financial assets

HNBIRHAS A Foreign currency forward contracts 955 -

TESREE Derivative financial liabilities
SN IRHRE A Foreign currency forward contracts 111 5,979
FEiFHE K Interest rate swap contracts - 843
EmEAED Forward commodity contracts - 300
111 7,122

FAEMIEBRATEH

Amount shown in the consolidated financial statements as:

2022 2021

FExT FiET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REEE Current assets 955 -
mEBaE Current liabilities 111 7,122

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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25. fTE€MI A &

INEEBEH

R2022#3H 314

20229 3A31H  INEEIIE K 2 E 2R
T

AREH FHAE
Maturity

Notional amount

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency forward contracts

At 31 March 2022

Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 March 2022
are as follows:

AR

Exchange rate

& 117,500,000% 1t
Sell USD 17,500,000

R20214F 35 31H
#2021 3A 31H - INEEHI& 82 F E R
T

AREH EE R
Maturity

Notional amount

2022F4H 278 £2022% 125 300
27.04.2022 to 30.12.2022

x5r,/ AR¥%6.36626.5108
USD/RMB6.366 to 6.5108

At 31 March 2021
Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 March 2021
are as follows:

SR

Exchange rate

& 1170,200,000% 7T
Sell USD 70,200,000

UREREBHH 2R REHELN
AEEEFRRTRI A TEMAL  BEET
PRREHBEENE - ST BRITE
RZREREBDRBEERRE - ZELZIETE
FER 1% £ P S0P 8R 1T B 3R 163K — B (B TEl %R £
RITERZ AR - BELNEEZER)

HE2021F 3A3IHEFE - REBERE T
IETTIF BIRITER » Bt - i EehER L
Rt EH#E 4,136,000/ 7T 2 5T A 20214 3A
1A LFE R - M XmHA LR 20225 34
1R FEREIL -

SRR IEERDF —O——E-O=—FFR

202147 12020214 114 30H
12.04.2021 to 30.11.2021

xt,/ AR¥6.50%£6.6190
USD/RMIB6.50 to 6.6190

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with the commercial
bank to minimise its exposure to cash flow changes of its floating-rate
Singapore dollars bank loan by swapping floating interest rates to fixed
interest rates. The terms of this contract were negotiated to match with
those of the hedged bank loan with the same notional amount to principal
amount of bank loan, currency and interest rate index.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group repaid the floating-
rate Singapore dollars bank loan. As a result, the hedge accounting was
discontinued and the accumulated hedging reserve HK$4,136,000
was released to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2021. The
interest rate swap contracts matured during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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25 fTEEMI A @ 25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
DREFREHF 2RREHEH @ Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges (continued)
RREBRARSREL P2 FERBHELHE The major terms of the interest rate swap contracts under cash flow
ZEFAT - hedges at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
R20214 35 31H At 31 March 2021
£HLH ZHA WEGE S SHEE
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
10,200,000%f hd 7t (FFrhndg o)) 2021454 24H N T = @ A 2 B A 2.155%
Singapore dollars (“SGD”)10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
10,200,000% i T 2021454 244 N T = @ A 2 B A 2.270%
SGD 10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
10,200,000% i T 2021454 244 N T = @ A 2 B A 2.110%
SGD 10,200,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR*
¥ AR R R AR *  SOR represents Swap Offer Rate.
EREHEN Forward commodity contracts
AEBFEAEMEPAORERERMBHERE The Group uses commodity forward contracts to manage the risk arising
B RAER o ELEALNEBGEHKAT ¢ from price fluctuation of its raw material. The major terms of these

contracts are as follows:

R202143HF 31H At 31 March 2021
HE (D)

= mm Quantity ZHIA AR ER
Currency Commodity (in metric tonnes) Maturity Commodity forward price
ET 82 40 20215 5A 1H &/AME17,000% 7T
ush Nickel 1.5.2021 USD17,000/metric tonne

26. R17HEF - FRRESE 26. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH
REEBEZRITETE  FRERBEESBERS Bank balances, deposits and cash held by the Group comprising cash and
R =B A AT 580 2 5 BRSR 4T 17 s A 4 I & short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less
0.001%% 1.50%( 20214F : 0.001% % 2.48%) which carry interests ranging from 0.001% to 1.50% (2021: 0.001% to
WELRI &, o 2.48%) per annum.
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27 TEARGFHEEE 27. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

FHET

HK$'000

MR2020%4A 18 At 1 April 2020 43,385

EHRE Currency realignment 14

HE Disposals (22,649

NSRRI Fair value gain 21,464

7K20214F3H31H At 31 March 2021 42,214

BT Currency realignment 1,125

HE Disposals (4349)
H2022% 38 31H

RBEFE  AEBEEEMEEIE=7F 8
Fipas - HEMNPEEMN ((BMIED 25T
T RFERKEYE - ©%R19,555,000/#
TTR I E R E K BRHEE 423,830,000 7T 2 &
THELEFE ([BRME]D - 12020538
31R - ZHEEABE—FATK - EULEHT
EDBARFHERE -

M2020F A ERMELETK - KEBRLE
i S B E R iR iE 2 % Bk E1 81,840,000
BT

BREEMNYEEHNEERRRIOAER - K&
B R EZE 20214 3A31R L FER BHEME T
FE=NFINMOFNEE RS - BBLEHRER
AIHEEMNYE - BHEFEBHEREE2021
FIABIAB—F AT » BZE202243H 31H
LLEE - Hbh—HERBAC TR - S0EMNY
FRBHEMBARHE (HEE36(D)) - HE4E
MIENEERZDAB R B —FRTK T
& o

720224 37 31H K& 20214 3A 318 B iEfE B
MEFNRENEZ ATERERE2EESH
BHKEEREITIHE -

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

At 31 March 2022 42,905

In previous years the Group had entered into sale and purchase
agreements with two separate independent third parties to dispose of
certain land and building and investment properties of HK$19,555,000
located in Huizhou, PRC (the “Huizhou Properties”) and certain of
leasehold land and building with carrying value of HK$23,830,000
located in Ningbo, PRC (the “Ningbo Properties”). As at 31 March 2020,
the disposals were expected to be completed within one year and
accordingly were reclassified as “assets classified as held for sale”.

In June 2020, the disposal of the Ningbo Properties was completed and
the Group received HK$81,840,000 for the disposal of assets held for
sale and settlements of the compensation receivable for relocation.

After the above sales and purchase agreements related to Huizhou
Properties had been cancelled, the Group had entered into two new
sale and purchase agreements with other independent third parties
for the disposal of Huizhou Properties through disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2021. The disposals were expected
to be completed within one year as at 31 March 2021. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, one of the sale and purchase agreements was
completed and the disposal of certain of the Huizhou Properties were
disposed through disposal of subsidiaries (note 35(b)). For the remaining
Huizhou Properties, the sale and purchase agreement is still in force and
the disposal is expected to be completed within one vear.

The fair values of investment properties included in the Huizhou
Properties as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were valued by
management with reference to the agreed price according to the sales
and purchase agreement.
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28 ENREREARGHAR 28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A B TR B B MR SR A B B I
i -

The following is the ageing of creditors presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021
FExT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000

ERER Trade creditors
0-60X 0-60 days 972,962 1,030,043
61-90K 61-90 days 150,998 117,880
HBEI0K Over 90 days 64,987 79,513
1,188,947 1,227,436
EMEMNERERER (1) Other payables and accrued charges (note) 575,876 726,136
1,764,823 1,953,572

BEERMNTHEEMAGCOE120K »

fiF  SRPIZREBRMNLCENY - —XTENER
AHEME RGO - EEAREREME
R -

R2020F 45 18 » 448 E /43,573,000
7TE o

BRNRBEIZRFRTF KA - RARE A
A & M A ERRH 2 %5 851,451,000
7T (20214 : 43,573,000/ 7T) °

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days to 120 days.

Note: The amount mainly includes accrual for operating expenses, receipt in
advance from sales of property of a PRC subsidiary, provision for relocation
expenses and other tax payables.

As at 1 April 2020, contract liabilities amounted to HK$43,573,000.

Contract liabilities are mainly advance payment received from customers.
The amount of revenue recognised in the current reporting period which
relates to brought-forward contract liabilities is HK$51,451,000 (2021:
HK$43,573,000).

AEERZOEMEE BFED R B TEHRE -
HEEEQBRRANEEERNXR2.32%E
5.35%(20215 : 2.40%%7.00%) °

HEEEARNEERBZHEEREEER
IR
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20.fHEEE 29. LEASE LIABILITIES
2022 2021
FET FAExT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ENHEEEE: Lease liabilities payable:
—F A EIH] \Within one year 78,471 72,339
tBiB—F{ETE M Within a period of more than one year but not
more than two years 52,656 51,614
R A W B T8 Within a period of more than two years but not
more than five years 67,327 85,571
iR hF Within a period of more than five years 123,955 78,400
322,409 287,924
B 12 A AR BRI A RE A S Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under current liabilities 78,471 72,339
128 A& B EASIASER B B E Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities 243,938 215,585

No extension options are included in any of the lease agreements entered
by the Group. The incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant
group entities range from 2.32% to 5.35% (2021: 2.40% to 7.00%).

Lease liabilities that are denominated in currencies which are same as the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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30. /ITER - BEFERHEMER

30. BANK LOANS, IMPORT AND OTHER LOANS

2022 2021
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAERIRTT REMER 2 RERE G, Current portion of unsecured bank and other
(f5E31) loans (note 31) 727,641 546,180
EEREHRTERRAEEE Unsecured short-term bank loans and import
(MtsEa) loans (note a) 2,355,304 2,156,215
mHeREH (iiEb) Short-term interest free loan (note b) - 8,107
DT EE R 2 RS Current portion of secured motor vehicle loan
(f5E31) (note 31) 17 202
3,082,962 2,710,704

Ff5E Notes:

a. REEZ EERRBRITERRAEEENE a. The unsecured short-term bank loans and import loans of the Group are
BFIEWEAE - FR - BEREHETE arranged at floating rates. The effective interest rates of unsecured short-
REREECEEZERFNEEHEH1.00%ZE term bank loans and import loans during the year ranged from 1.00% to
5.15%(20214F : 1.18%%6.41%) ° 5.15% (2021: 1.18% to 6.41%) per annum.

b. REZE2021F3A31IB ILFE - BFEERE b. During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain subsidiaries operating in

ENBARREFHERE S (FARET
3)) BERTER  REE202143A31HK
AMERHEFERS,107,0008 T ([FHEREE
ER)  HARESIERESERRELS -
FARRE B R RE BT E SRR
SHENRUEER &0 - Bt - RIEFE
Gz EEOFHEARSIE - WA G
BRRMRITER - KEHERIE  FE
RIS B IR RT A AT R0 P B R #A 2R 16k
HEVER T AR RER - 120224 3H31R -
FEBEHFEREFEETNRLRFCEL
- RITERT,594,000/8 TTEGHE

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

the United States were granted bank loans under the Paycheck Protection
Program (“PPP”), with an aggregate outstanding balance of HK$8,107,000
as at 31 March 2021 (the “PPP Loans”). The PPP Loans are unsecured and
non-interest bearing. The PPP is part of the COVID-19 relief measures
established by the United States government pursuant to which bank
loans were granted to qualifying businesses based on the average monthly
payroll expenses of the qualifying business. Subject to approval by the
relevant authority, the PPP Loans are forgivable to the extent the proceeds
used for eligible purposes and the conditions for forgiveness are met. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s applications for forgiveness
of the PPP Loans were approved and the bank loan of HK$7,594,000 was
waived.
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3L B|ITRAMER 31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

2022 2021
FHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHIRERIT R EME AR THIFER The unsecured bank and other loans are
gEr: repayable™
—&FR \Within one year 727,641 546,180
R A — B T8 R Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 579,291 567,482
BIBREETRREF Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 161,555 480,434
BB EERENR T FENEE" The secured motor vehicle loan is repayable™:
—FR Within one year 17 202
R IR — BT R \Within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years - 17
1,468,504 1,594,315
B —FEREIBI AR A E (iEE30) Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities (note 30) (727,641) (546,180)
BEMTEERE BN (H7E30) Current portion of secured motor
vehicle loan (note 30) (17) (202)
740,846 1,047,933

* ENEBEEARERBETRENETERAL -

RITRAEMER HBEIZRA) BFBERR
8,420,000/ 7t (20214 : 14,187,000%7T) °
AEEZRTEFNBRFN R 2 HE (B %
Rl Z M EIEE) B 1.34% % 5.09% (20214 :
1.57%%5.09%) °

AREENHEZE20229F3A 31H 2 FHEHNE T AT
BRI -

720214 3A31R - EHRATL LN — KB
NAREETRNMR BB ELER @K
BB € /65,713,000 7T) 2 FLB R -
BN R E R E B A RATESH ZE 2021
FIABIALETBFELHRE - AEEREE
20214 3F 310 Z st B HIAME T AT A E M B 75 {5

e
A °
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*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Bank and other loans are net of transaction cost of HK$8,420,000 (2021:
HK$14,187,000) arranged at floating rates. The range of effective interest
rates of bank loans (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on
the Group’s bank and other loans are from 1.34% to 5.09% (2021: 1.57%
to 5.09%) per annum.

The Group complied with all financial covenants for the test period ended
31 March 2022,

As at 31 March 2021, a subsidiary operating in Malaysia was not able to
comply with certain financial covenants committed under certain loans
with aggregate outstanding principal of HK$65,713,000 due to two
financial institutions. The subsidiary had obtained letter of indulgence or
waiver for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 before the end of the
reporting period to waive such non-compliance. The Group complied with
all other financial covenants for the test period ended 31 March 2021.

138



32 IEEBLIR

AEECHARTEHAEENBBRZSHOT

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

Movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the
Group are as follows:

FABEA
BRERNE ZENH
ZTEBE  Withholding
RENE  Accelerated taxon
Investment tax  undistributed HERE Hitr &t
properties  depreciation profits Tax losses Others Total
TAL TAL TAL TAL FAL FATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHEEE Deferred tax assets
202054817 At 1 April 2020 - 10,048 - 1,471 9,348 20,867
qEHE Currency realignment - 1,013 - 164 219 1,396
HEEPEA Credit to profit or loss - 563 - 448 4513 5,524
20215 3R 31A At 31 March 2021 - 11,624 - 2,083 14,080 21,787
BlRE Currency realignment - 174 - 6 149 329
REBEFEA Credit to profit or loss - 370 - 3,552 2,327 6,249
12022E 37318 At 31 March 2022 - 12,168 - 5,641 16,556 34,365
BEHESE Deferred tax liabilities
1 2020%E4A 18 At 1 April 2020 909 4777 20,473 - 14,903 41,062
EEAE Currency realignment - 4 - - 1,244 1,248
REEFMR GIA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1,239 1,720 16,675 - (2,046) 17,588
20215 3A31A At 31 March 2021 2,148 6,501 37,148 - 14,101 59,898
BRAE Currency realignment - (209) - - 753 544
BTN GTA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss - 3% (3,445) - 7,009 3,958
20224 3A 31A At 31 March 2022 2,148 6,686 33,703 - 21,863 64,400

#2022 £ 3 A 31 H X&EHEFHR
1,960,958,000 & o ( 2021 %
1,820,271,000/8 7T) 2 A BHBEEA T
AR Z R - LR IBIERE ERIEERIA
& 7 34,191,000/ 7T (20214 : 12,624,000
L) o B ARR A R EOX TR - 3 M LR
TH &5 18 8 8 1,926,767,000 7% JT ( 20214 -
1,807,647,000% 7T) {EHIRIETIRE E R ©

REPEARLNMBECEMENE - AEEEH
2008 1A 1A B AR P EZ B AR ZEIK
P S AR RE AT 0 B RIS FRINME o AR E IR
BB 2008F 1A 1HRAEERFE 2 ET
BB A B PSR NI B 2 28 HIZE R LR ETRIA
Bl RAEE ARSI S B E R 2 R fE ke
HIZ RGN A RORREE - 72022434 31
H AEERRSEZBE AR ETRPEZ
B8 A A2 R 2 BRI 5 Bl bA 20% K 5% B &
YEIR AR TE B 5 42 88 /2 33,703,0008 7T (2021
% : 37,148,000% 7T) °

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

At 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,960,958,000 (2021: HK$1,820,271,000) available for
offsetting against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$34,191,000 (2021: HK$12,624,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,926,767,000 (2021: HK$1,807,647,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, a withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary difference attributable to profits earned by the Group’s certain
PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31
March 2022, the amount of HK$33,703,000 (2021: HK$37,148,000)
represented the deferred taxation on undistributed profits arising from a
Taiwan associate being recognised at a taxation of 20% and undistributed
profits arising from certain PRC subsidiaries being recognised at a taxation of
5%, respectively.
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33. EAARME 33. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING
2022 2021
FHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

MEHREMDITOT - Analysed for reporting purposes as:

FEREAE Non-current liabilities - 99,810
mEVEE Current liabilities 24,600 -
BHEEE

Provision for
restructuring

FEx

HK$’000

M2020F 44 18 % 20214 37 31H At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 99,810
BB Reversal of provision (75,210)
720224 373 31H At 31 March 2022 24,600

7202148 3A 310 7 SB/EEE R E T BIE N ED
NEBZRBRARES RS —HEE
T2 A - BHEMKAA H£99810,000/E 7T © 5
PRt 2 (2 B B5 18 89,810,000/ 7T M & ik
710,000,000/ 7T -

RBZE 20229 3A31R ILFE - ERERERZA
SEMEBEERBEHEEMNT - BN 202245
ATER - BA%EBE MK R24,600,000% 7T
RRHEAELT - BB THMERZERY - EitE
R EHRE75,210,0008 7T » WHNMERHETA -

34. BA

As at 31 March 2021, the provision for restructuring related to the
estimated cost of relocation of parts of the Group’s operations
from Huizhou, PRC to Thailand and the set up of another factory
in a new location in PRC. The provision for restructuring costs of
HK$99,810,000 were related to estimated compensation to employees
of HK$89,810,000 and relocation cost of HK$ 10,000,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, management had decided to
relocate the related Group’s operations to within Huizhou, PRC. The
relocation was completed in May 2022 and the cost of relocation incurred
was approximately HK$24,600,000. As a result, the over provision for
restructuring cost of HK$ 75,210,000 was reversed, and credited to profit
or loss since the compensation to employees is significantly reduced due
to the relative proximity of the previous and current location.

34. SHARE CAPITAL
RHEE
Number of
shares
F FExT
'000 HK$’000
BEITRAT LR Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:
R 2020F 48 18 & 20214 3A 31H At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 784,693 921,014
R T 2R (P Issue of shares upon rights issue (Note) 130,782 81,085
BT B HEKAR Transaction costs attributable to issue of
new shares - (3,433)
H20224 3A 31H At 31 March 2022 915,475 998,666

Mzt - 2022928 148 - AR A S M AT R A
7 0.628 TR RBERARTRRAG BRI
B RAD HE 3 — R AR AR ME 1T (AR ([HEARD) -
AR B 5 2022F 3A 3LHAIFEA - I AT
130,782,168 B @AM {n - MRS HRIER
#17381,085,000/8 7T - HARFBENARAFR
HIR2022F A 7THMHREIZP IKEE -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Note: On 14 February 2022, the Company announced a rights issue (“Rights
Issue”) on the basis of one rights share for every six existing shares held by
shareholders of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.62 per rights
share. The Rights Issue was completed and 130,782,158 ordinary shares was
issued before 31 March 2022. The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue was
HK$81,085,000. Details of the Rights Issue were disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 7 March 2022.
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35, HEMBEAH

(a) AFEE12PTHR - A20214F8A 31H - A%KH
BREHESIUTERSNEMNE ILIARREH
EHRERRER - S TEESNEMNS

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) As referred toin note 12,0n 31 August 2021, the Group disposed of its
automotive wire harness operations on disposal of GPIM and GPWT.
The net assets of GPIM and GPWT at the date of disposal were as

LR RERE ASHFEENT ¢ follows:
31.8.2021
FiET
HK$'000
EHRRE : Consideration received:
[ Cash received 69,513
KEESIENEEMBEDT Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control
was lost:
Y - BB KRR E Property, plant and equipment 11,736
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14,688
FE Inventories 32,026
FEMBRTE K B 5K IE Trade and other receivables and prepayments 86,066
BITET  FRERE Bank balances and cash 13,177
FETBRIE K EoAth FE AT BRIE Creditors and accrued charges (70,370)
HEAaE Lease liabilities (14,785)
FERITIE Taxation payable (352
EEFE Net assets 72,186
GRS Attributable goodwill 1,579
HEEEFE Net assets disposal of 73,765
L — R A B Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
B RAE Consideration received 69,513
HEAEFE Net assets disposed of (73,765)
HERZFELFBEETHEEER Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve
upon disposal to profit or loss (11,947)
R Transaction costs (497)
HEEE Loss on disposal (16,696)
HEEENFREMA Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
ReRE Cash consideration 69,513
B HERRTETRRS Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of (13,177)
B SR Transaction costs paid (497)
55,839

DINTEE SMEIMN D 1L AR RE A E E A H
FMATHEERRERENTEEM T 12K

= o

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

The impact of GPIM and GPWT on the Group’s results and cash flows

in the current and prior periods is disclosed in note 12.
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35. HEMB AT @ 35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) M2021F 1A31H » AEBEBEFIE= (b) On 31 January 2021, the Group entered into Equity Transfer
FRlukEEZEAR  HE2LUERT Agreement with an independent third party in relation to the dispose
¥ @EM BRAR ([LUE]) HE2BK the entire equity interests in GP Batteries (China) Limited (“GPB
T KRB A AR 90,000,000 (& HH) (China)”) at the consideration of RMB90,000,000 (equivalent
111,429,000 70) - &Il B T BEATF approximately to HK$111,429,000). GPB (China) mainly held
B MHELMEME  BERERE  ZXH inventories, leasehold lands and property, plant and equipment. The
2022 3A 1A T/ © transaction is completed during the year 31 March 2022.

31.8.2021
FiET
HK$'000

BEUHAE Consideration received:

PR E Cash received 111,429

KEEGIRNEEFNEEIN Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

was lost:
FHERE Assets held for sales 434
RITHETT - TR ERE Bank balances and cash 41,976

BEEFE Net assets 42,410

GRS Attributable goodwill 7,088

HEEEFE Net assets disposal of 49,498

HE—RERE AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

BRE Consideration received 111,429
HEAEFE Net assets disposed of (49,498
HERZFELREEN S EEER Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve

upon disposal to profit or loss (14,790)

e Gain on disposal 47,141

HEEEMFEESRA Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

HERE Cash consideration 111,429
A 20214238 318 IFEEWEINET & Less: Deposit received during the year ended

31 March 2021 (111,429

HERRITEFRRS Bank balances and cash disposed of (41,976)

(41,976)
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36. EXEMER

37.

EREE
BEEE
RHEA A
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank loans, import and other loans and bank and other loans disclosed
in notes 30 and 31 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained profits and other reserve as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

$RTE 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ST EER Categories of financial instruments
2022 2021
FHxT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEN AT EC SREE Financial assets at amortised costs
— PR SR A FE W BR TE - Trade and other receivables 1,277,573 1,283,340
— U B - Dividend receivable 28,117 24,826
—iRITETF - FRERE - Bank balances, deposits and cash 1,186,326 1,318,468
— B E RN RIRK - Amounts due from associates 16,927 16,879
— IR B EIERTE - Non-current receivables 18,674 86,179
AAFEFAEMMEERGEARATA Equity instruments at FVTOCI 90,384 60,065
AT ERFABZARATA Equity instruments at F\/TPL 4,220 7,455
TEEBMITA Derivative financial instruments 955 -
2,623,176 2,797,212
LABESER A BR &R B (S Financial liabilities at amortised costs
— FEfTRRIE - Creditors 1,413,279 1,559,358
—RITENR - BEEEREAMER - Bank loans, import and other loans 3,082,962 2,702,597
— R EER - Short-term interest free loan - 8,107
—RITRHEMERK - Bank and other loans 740,846 1,047,933
TEEmMITA Derivative financial instruments 111 7,122
5,237,198 5,325,117

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities, representing trade and other receivables, dividend receivable,
bank balances, deposits and cash, non-current receivables, creditors and
other payables, bank loans, import and other loans and bank and other
loans denominated in currencies other than the respective group entities’
functional currencies at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

EE aE

Assets Liabilities
2022 2021 2022 2021
FHExT FAET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ETT usD 499,624 423,147 337,757 429,105
AR RMB 291,970 287,069 314,404 302,734
T SGD 3,965 84,266 5,256 4,365
BT Euro 31,435 28,462 21,902 20,135
826,994 822,944 679,319 756,339

BEINER BT REBREBREEZEEREA
& - ERESEFERAMINERR - YRV E
B BETEAINERR - o REEFTIAE
HR X EBRAINEERE QAT RINE R
B EFERAAEERELITATRTANKE
PAEKX - F W EETERE T -

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible
by matching assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination.
The management regularly monitors foreign exchange exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise. In addition, the Group enters into short-term cross currency
swaps and foreign currency forward contracts to manage certain foreign
currency exposure. In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s investments
in those derivative financial instruments are insignificant, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is prepared.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2021: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. The analysis excludes
the fluctuation between United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars
because Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars. The
rate mentioned above is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% (2021: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. The
analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% (2021: 5%) strengthening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currency and a negative number below indicates a decrease in
profit before taxation and vice versa. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening
of the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite effect on
the results.

2022 2021
T T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
AREE RMB 1,122 783
AN T SGD 65 (3,995)
BT Euro (477) (416)
VilE Interest rate risk

[2\f

AEBEHRRTHSERTBHAETSNE
WER - RITFR @IEE21%26) ¥ ERITE
o BEEEREMER (FE30) RRITRE
e (E31) BB REN KRS -

ZIREEHTEFRLEEITRARE - BEF
EYERERNERNERE - LRITREFE
(BRITRAZEFRL) o MEREERFEEHAEEH R
EERRNTEARBHEEREENEAERD
FHBHN ARG [FREERE] AT

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities at fixed interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate loan receivable, bank balances and deposits at prevailing
market deposit rates (notes 21 and 26), variable-rate bank loans, import
and other loans (note 30), and bank and other loans (note 31).

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being
undertaken globally, including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of
the impacts on the Group’s risk management strategy arising from the
interest rate benchmark reform and the progress towards implementation
of alternative benchmark interest rates are set out under “interest rate
benchmark reform” in this note.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank
Offered Rate or Prime Rate arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.
The management considers the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loan receivable, bank loans,
import and other loans, and bank and other loans. The analysis is prepared
assuming financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2021: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

If the interest rate on loan receivable, bank loans, import and other loans
and bank and other loans had been 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit before taxation would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$ 19,255,000 (2021: decrease/increase by HK$19,012,000).

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities and unlisted equity securities. The Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments at FV/TPL had been 5% (2021:

5%) higher/lower, the Group’s profit before taxation would increase/
decrease by HK$211,000 (2021: HK$373,000).
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the amount of financial guarantees provided by the Group is
disclosed in note 41. Except for the loan receivable secured by a pledge
of certain interest in a subsidiary (note 21), the Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets and financial guarantee contracts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Company have
delegated the management to be responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and rating attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on a
collective basis.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk
over trade receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers and spread across diverse industries.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
based on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
Credit-impaired debtors with gross carrying amount of trade debt of
HK$13,195,000 (2021: HK$12,461,000) and the trade receivables
due from the Associate of HK$58,178,000 (2021:nil) as at 31 March
2022 were assessed individually. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
base.
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37. ¢@IH @ 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
SREREEBERBER @ Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
EEmEERBEFE @ Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
HEFEAELRELNEL @ Tradle receivables arising from contracts with customer (continued)
BZE202243A31ALLFE : For the year ended 31 March 2022:
W
i=E7¢-L -0 EiEREE L EWER
Gross trade Range of FEEBX Trade
AEBEEFR Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL receivables
FERT FET FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EFERR” Very low risk® 554,621 0.01% - 0.29% 878 553,743
KRR Low risk 128,773 0.30% - 1.00% 1,071 127,702
—R R Average risk 305,198 1.01% - 3.50% 6,313 298,885
RER R Moderate risk 58,880 3.51% - 50.0% 10,427 48,453
1,047,472 18,689 1,028,783
¥ TBIE27,061,000/8 7T 2 EUERE © *  Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$27,061,000.
BZE202153A31ALFE : For the year ended 31 March 2021:
FELL
ERuezE EBREHE TEHA FEUE R
Gross trade Range of EEEX Trade
WNEME BRI Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL receivables
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBERB” Very low risk™ 686,581 0.01%-0.29% 842 685,739
1K= e Low risk 122,170  0.30%-1.00% 930 121,240
—REE Average risk 353,939 1.01%-3.50% 11,735 342,204
FER Moderate risk 30,855 3.51%-50.0% 2,257 28,598
1,193,545 15,764 1,177,781
¥ EHE29,833,0008 T2 FEM K © * Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$29,833,000.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer (continued)
Quiality classification definitions:

“Very low risk”:

“Lowv risk”

“Average risk™

“Moderate risk”:

“High risk”:

The counterparty has a very low risk of default due to
strong financial background and a prompt payment
pattern.

The counterparty has a low risk of default with strong
financial background but occasionally repays after due
dates.

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle in full.

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources.

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

37. £®MIA®w 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

SHEKREEBERBER @

EEE BRI ETE @)
HEFELELRIEREL @)
TREFRBE L AERE KR 2 BTE
EERKZEE -

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

2 HEH
2HITEH EEEBX
FERX (HREE
(EBEERE) )
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- et
impaired) impaired) Total
FHET FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2020F 48 1H As at 1 April 2020 12,712 13,000 25,712
B Currency realignment 1,006 (270) 736
FREBEZER Net impairment loss recognised 2,046 589 2,635
FEEEAR B R IE Amounts written off as uncollectible - (2,605) (2,605)
R2021F3A31H & As at 31 March 2021 and
202164/ 18 as at 1 April 2021 15,764 10,714 26,478
AR Currency realignment 590 (63) 527
HEHTE R A Disposal of subsidiaries (67) - (67)
SERERTE R Net impairment loss recognised 22,520 515 23,035
M202243A31H As at 31 March 2022 38,807 11,166 49,973

HWEERBTRESARNHEEMBRE  AER
B IR EFIRR TR ETS ABERICEA
ERR) - NEESMEEKER - 120215
SAZIRAE ' OEHERREZEEEFARE
732,605,000/ 7T (20224 : TETT) °

JEWZIE 2 AR R E A JEWARTR
BZE20229F 3A 31H - BEEERF & T Rk
% HE AR E SRR R A R YR IH62,571,0008
T BEERA - BB AEBUa RBME
FEHTE I BRI 0 T FEUGL B 2 A R E R E
K ARENEERR - EIEEE D SRR
BB FERRE] - EREDZEMER BB
HEEEBNOTHE  AIEEREMEOET
MEEHER) BBt EREZE 2 AR ER LA
KRB 2 EMERRX - RIZFEER - 5
FEULEZ B & A BB R Bt R IR AR H R0 FE A
BB X5 51/&20,118,000% 7T K 1,519,000
AT e
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The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, eg. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. During the year
31 March 2021, credit-impaired debtors with gross carrying amount of
trade debt of HK$2,605,000 (2022: nil) was written off.

Trade and other receivables due from the Associate

As at 31 March 2022, the management had assessed the ECL of the
trade and other receivables due from the Associate of HK$62,571,000
individually. Management had considered that due to the current
geopolitical situation and sanctions on Russia there was a significant
increase in credit risk in the trade and other receivables due from the
Associate and accordingly management has classified the receivables
as “Moderate Risk”. Management had appointed the Valuer to assist in
the estimation of the ECL provision of the trade and other receivables
from the Associate by determining an appropriate probability of
default rate, forward looking adjustments and the estimated loss given
default rate. Based on the result of the assessment an ECL provision of
HK$20,118,000 and HK$ 1,519,000 were made on the trade receivables
and other receivables due from the Associate respectively.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Bills receivables

In determining the ECL for bills receivables amounting to HK$27,061,000
(2021: HK$29,833,000), the management has considered the bills
received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than one year
and have been individually assessed based on external rating of relevant
banks, and concluded that for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021, the credit inherent in the Group’s outstanding bills receivables is
insignificant.

Loan receivable and early relocation subsidy

The management estimated the loss rates of the loan receivable and the
early relocation subsidy based on financial background and historical
payments records of the debtors, the fair value of the collateral pledged to
the loan receivable and also forward-looking information, as appropriate.
For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the management considers
that the ECL of the Group’s loan receivable and early relocation subsidy is
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables, non-current rental deposits and dividend receivable

In determining the ECL for other receivables, non-current rental deposits
and dividend receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$225,557,000
(2021: HK$184,984,000), the management has made periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of these balances, based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The management has considered
the consistently low historical default rate in connection with relevant
counterparties, and concluded the credit risk inherent in these amounts is
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Amounts due from associates

As at 31 March 2021 and 2022, for purpose of impairment assessment,
the amounts due from associates are considered to have low credit
risk as there has been no significant increase in the risk of default on
the receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of
impairment assessment for the asset, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12m ECL.

In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the financial
position of the associates, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
associates and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the associates operate, in estimating the probability of default as well as
the loss upon default. Management determines the amounts due from
associates is subject to immaterial credit loss and thus no loss allowance
was recognised.

101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

37. £®MIA®w 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

SHEKREEBERBER @

EEE BRI ETE @)

RITIZH R ARTTHS 44

B IRITE R IR TR T A E BRI R AT
ZZMEBRIT  MREREZEERBRBHTRE
B BfEEREREERR -

HBERER
HNMBERALD  ARESBRRAEERE
HESHNERNEADHE -

REEE S Ll & R BE A RTERERITIEH
EREBZEERR ((41) - EBETHES
B2 XA 2 BT AOR K R R R B Z B ISIRR
RiF - AEEA A EERFAREEHRER
[ o

mEBELmEE
REBBEBEARTREMERREANESAE
BECBE  YHRKEHERERENERERR
RO AZRBES - ERETHENERA
SEZESRBUENRRARHRDE BN
BRHEME - 2RAFN2022F3A31EBHE
BRI EREEL & 2,213,000,000% T &
ERAMBERREENE A MESHIERER -
KB ERARAREEE 2 HERBEMBRE 5
% ARBEZRRRDEERERKRERRE

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various banks with
good credit ratings and there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount represents
the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed under the respective
contracts.

The Group is also exposed to the credit risk in respect of guarantees given
to banks relating to banking facilities utilised by associates (note 41). The
management periodically reviews financial position of the associates and
considers that the associates has strong financial position and the Group
has adequate monitoring procedures to reduce the credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations by using a combination of bank and
other loans and equity. Adequate lines of credit are maintained to ensure
necessary liquidity is available when required. The management monitors
the liquidity position of the Group on a periodical basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations. \IVith reference
to the existing unutilised facilities of approximately HK$2,213 million as
at 31 March 2022 and newly obtained facilities up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue and after taking
into account of any possible disposal of investments and re-financing
arrangements, the directors of the Company consider the source of
liquidity and capital for the daily operation are sufficient.
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37. £RMIA @ 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

LRIRBEEBRERBEK @ Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
REELEE Liquidity risk (continuec)

rEEzeRmBEZAOINEB ZFIFIIREN The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for
T o RELGTIHERE - BB AEEAERE AL its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
EREZEZeHBBEZBATZATEARRE undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
et - WRBEFNBRASZRER - I0FE on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
ReRFERHFEFE  EBRES R LU interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are at
WMEEREOFERGTH - floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the

end of the reporting period.

RERES
#ER
ZREE
Il FiE Carrying
il SR ES -%R ZEZ ReRAE amount at
Weighted ~ On demand LER BENE Total the end of
average or within Within More than undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate 1year 2-5years Syears cash flows period
THET THET THET THT THEL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
120224 3R 31A As at 31 March 2022
JEfTERIE Creditors 1,413,279 - - 1,413,279 1,413,279
RITER  BERERE S Bank loans, import and other loans
(FBF|%) (variable rates) 2.93 3,157,851 - - 3,157,851 3,082,962
FITREMER (23F1%) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 3.12 - 775,356 - 775,356 740,846
HEAE Lease liabilities 4.73 91,710 149,951 147,409 389,070 322,409
BIERED (i) Financial guarantee contracts (note) 16,496 - - 16,496 -
4,679,336 925,307 147,409 5,752,052 5,559,496
ITETA-FHE Derivatives - net settlement
W%‘Lﬁﬁ ) Foreign currency forward contracts m - - ihh | ihh |
111 - - 111 111
#2021% 34 310 As at 31 March 2021
JEfTRRIE Creditors 1,559,358 - - 1,559,358 1,559,358
RITET  BEEEREMER  Bankloans,import and other loans
(FBF|%) (variable rates) 2.82 2,738,275 - - 2,738,275 2,702,597
REER (&8) Short-term loan (interest free) - 8,107 - - 8,107 8,107
FITREMER (FEF%) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 2.77 - 1,153,168 - 1,153,168 1,047,933
HEazg Lease liabilities 4.61 84,157 162,185 86,025 332,367 287,924
B ERAY) (D) Financial guarantee contracts (note) 16,377 - - 16,377 -
4,406,274 1,315,353 86,025 5,807,652 5,605,919
ITETA-FEE Derivatives - net settlement
INERIEL) Foreign currency forward contracts 5,979 - - 5,979 5,979
MxREHaH0 Interest rate swap contracts 843 - - 843 843
BmEHaN Forward commodity contracts 300 - - 300 300
7122 - - 7122 7122
fis : EilBI B BRANFERERNEEAHERER Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
ZRBERZHEHTIAFEERAREZZH maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
?T"f% KB RASE  c RBEHLEER - $‘§l arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
RABRKAEERRIBER LB HE KA the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
%ﬁ'ﬁ : ElﬁfﬁEJrZ*’Eﬂ:%HXEREGﬁﬁ?MEZ%ﬁEW reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that no
BERREEZ EEBAMBIREREEZ T4 amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
1 o subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty which
suffers credit losses on the financial receivables and claims under the

guarantee.
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37. £®MIA®w 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in notes 30 and 31, several of the Group’s floating rate bank loans
will or may be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
is closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to new
benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by the relevant
IBOR regulators.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all LIBOR settings
will either cease to be provided by any administrator or no longer be
representative:

immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of all sterling, euro,
Swiss franc and Japanese yen settings, and the 1-week and 2-month
US dollar settings; and

immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the remaining US dollar
settings.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA") has
been identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue
HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been adopted in Hong Kong,
whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the relevant alternative
benchmark rates and without detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral
negotiations with the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded before the cessation of LIBOR, there are significant
uncertainties with regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives
rise to additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the various
alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward looking term rates
published for a period (eg. 3 months) at the beginning of that period and
include an inter-bank credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates
are typically risk-free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will result in
additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest payments
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (continuec)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which are typically
published on overnight basis will require additional liquidity management.
The Group’s liquidity risk management policy has been updated to ensure
sufficient liquid resources to accommodate unexpected increases in
overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate benchmark
reform on contracts which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates (e.g. arising from differing interpretation
of existing fallback terms), there is a risk of prolonged disputes with
counterparties which could give rise to additional legal and other costs.
The Group is working closely with all counterparties to avoid this from
occurring.

Interest rate basis risk

Interest rate basis risk may arise if a non-derivative instrument and
the derivative instrument held to manage the interest risk on the non-
derivative instrument transition to alternative benchmark rates at
different times. This risk may also arise where back-to-back derivatives
transition at different times. The Group will monitor this risk against its
risk management policy which has been updated to allow for temporary
mismatches of up to 12 months and transact additional basis interest rate
swaps if required.

Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates
As part of the Group’s risk management for transition, new contracts
entered into by the Group are linked to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates or interest rates which are not subject to reform to the extent
feasible. Otherwise, the Group ensured the relevant contracts include
detailed fallback clauses clearly referencing the alternative benchmark
rate and the specific triggering event on which the clause is activated.

During the vear, the Group’s LIBOR bank loans with carrying amount
of HK$46,981,000 as at 31 March 2022 have been transferred to
the relevant alternative benchmarks rates. The Group is planning to
transition the majority of its remaining IBOR-linked contracts with amount
of HK$784,587,000 as at 31 March 2022 through introduction of, or
amendments to, fallback clauses into the contracts which will change
the basis for determining the interest cash flows from IBOR to alternative
reference rate at an agreed point in time.

In addition, for floating rate loans that is linked to HIBOR, the Group
had confirmed with the relevant counterparty the loans amounting to
HK$1,419,928,000 that HIBOR will continue to maturity and the loans
amounting to HK$ 198,881,000 will be transferred to HONIA.
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37. ¢@MITAE® 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
SRIANFETE Fair value measurement of financial instruments
PR EEINEE S ESREAERESR This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
BEZATFERHER - values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.
FEZEATFHEITEZFEFZtHEEREHME Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
&2 2 FE are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
TEBTMNEREERSRIBEDNRSREDNE Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
HAMATENE - TREBREHRZSCREE at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
kemaEATEMABEENER CCEARMA gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and
HERMNT R AZR) - financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)

and inputs used).

EENHATEER FURERARES

SREE/ NVEHE/HERTR BAgE DYEZEE
SRER AVEER FERAFECER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AYE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s) input(s) to fair value

2022 2021

TR TATL

HK$'000  HK$'000

1 PEARNATEHAEEL E-R RABENATEDRXEROBSR MR TER TEA
RATAMN FHRAES BERBEMEE -
Listed equity securities classified 4,220 745 Level 1 The fair value of the equity securities N/A N/A
as equity instruments at FVTPL is estimated by the price quotation
available on the New York Stock
Exchange in United States.
2. DEAITESBIEAMIME 4E B 2-f HBRRSRE TEf TEA
EHEH 955 5,979
af FRRSRENERAREB SR RIER
111 (REBRNTEZIEFEENERE R
B RAMEHES  NERMERFGHZ
EERR HRERRMMb o
Foreign currency forward Assets  Liabilities  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
contracts classified as derivative 955 5,979
financial instruments Liabilities Future cash flows are estimated based on
111 closing forward exchange rates (from

observable forward exchange rate at
the end of the reporting period) and
contracted forward rates, discounted
at arate that reflects the crediit risk of
various counterparties.
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37. £RMIA @ 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SRTIAEAFETE ® Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
FERATFHEITEZFEBZLHEERLHE Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
&2 2 FE are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

EZNTARE FUBEBARER

SREE/ AVEH B/ HERIR BAHE NTEZER
SRR ATEER TR AHEZER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AYE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
2022 2021
TR TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000
3 AEATESEIANFE & a8 224 HRREN - TEA A
EHal 843

ARHERDEREANE (HREHR2T
BRUGRZMARN) RETONE - 128
RMARER BN RAEE R
RER (RER)) it -

Interest rate swap contracts il Liabilities  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative 843
financial instruments Future cash flows are estimated based on

forward interest rates (from observable
yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at an applicable discount
rate taking into account the credlit risk of
the counter-parties and of the Group as

appropriate.
4 HEATESBIAMAERES & BE E=f HRRER - TEA A
AH) 300
ARB RS HRBUEESE (BREHR
LUBREHEESBER) NRRDE
1 URBER FEFEERBMMST LR
Bt -
Forward commodity contracts il Liabilities  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative 300
financial instruments Future cash flows are estimated based on

closing price (from observable forward
price of related metals at the end of the
reporting period) and contracted forward
price, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credlit risk of various counterparties.
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SMIAEQAFETE ®
BEENFEITBZAEBZHBEERZHE
&2 A FHE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

. * _ EEHTTRE FTBREABESR
SREE/ NPEGE/HERTR BARE NTEZER
LREE ATEESR TZHABEZER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AYE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fairvalueasat hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s) input(s) fair value
2022 2021
FEr  TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000
5 WATEFAEMEZEKRZ E=R &t BYRREER - 02022 FTARNTSHERER -
BATE £3A317 5K ATHERIES
BERANATESREELERAARANT  MER RATSER
BEEER BRAAMAESETIRES  WALAME  YHE
ERHBEHEERRMEARN A TEE ﬂ’ﬂgﬁ&ﬁ‘rﬁl I%UI% (i
7% IRERE  BER
i BEBRE) §
JF7H47 476AE%¢
48,867\R% (EE
58,613 1£60,331
B0 (2015 ; BF
F%48,100\REZE
49,234\RHE (ER
57,038%71£58,372
#ET)) °
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 51,378 48,704 Level 3 Asset-based approach. Price per square meter.  The higher the price
Using market direct per square meter, the
The fair value of the target company comparable and higher the fair value.
was determined by the asset-based taking into account
approach using the adjusted net asset of location and other
value. Net asset value of the target individual factors
company was adjusted through fair such as size, building
value adjustments held by the target facilities, levels,
company primarily by the direct age of building, etc,
comparison approach. which is ranged
from RMB4/,476
to RIVIB48,867
(equivalent to
HK$58,613 to
HK$60,331 (2021:
RMB48,109
to RMB49,234
(equivalent to
HK$57,038 1o
HK$58,372)) per
square meter as at 31
March 2022,
6. MUATEFAEMZENE E=R TG o BISRBTIIRE Bemanatnnes
zﬂﬂl o \ o THENBRATMLE .  ATERIME -
RRMSE  EREE A XBLEBECURD ix )
ATELE e BELE (CEEE BBLEES  ATEAE
SAMBAE BB TERRETkE 5
= pEEEEFIRH R
. WRE) BYYEHEETEE 15
B mERBIEMTIUEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 31,367 8,109 Level 3 Market approach. The discount of lack The higher the discount
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of marketability and
The market approach was used to applied multiples.
determine the valuation by the average
estimated values using the following
multiples: enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ratio, enterprise value to
earnings hefore interest, taxes ratio
and price to earning ratio of selected
comparable listed companies in a similar
business and similar business model and
adjusted for the lack of marketability.

fair value.

of lack of marketability,
the lower the fair value.

The higher the applied
multiples, the higher the
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continuec)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

- ‘ EZHTTRR FIREHABSE
SREE/ NVEE/HERITR BABE DYEZEE
LHAE NTEESR TZEABECER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AYE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fairvalueasat  hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s) input(s) fair value
2022 2021
FEn  TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000
7 DATEHAEMRERG F=R AHEREEANTRE - RZTERBLIRE  RZTHRBILINGES
RAIE o o FAELBATNGLE.  ATENEE -
REERL ERESLRERZ THREL . )
ﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ%ﬂ’\]ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬂﬂﬂm BB EER  ATEE
T FRADSE  RBREERLAASE e
A TARMATENRZREBRFANE
EL@@ ° %ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ!ﬁi&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&%
BEBIMTELE AR EBLE
(CEEERAELE CEEERAE
@%ﬂ%}%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ?&tb%) ETIhE - Uithe
mis At m TIARE -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 7,639 3,252 Level 3 Combination of asset-based approachand ~ The discount of lack The higher the discount

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

market approach.

The fair value of the target company
was determined by the asset-based
approach using the adjusted net asset
value with adjustments for the lack of
marketability. Net asset value of the
target company was adjusted through
fair value adjustments of each sub-entity
held by the target company primarily by
the market approach using enterprise
value to sales ratio or enterprise value
to earnings before interest, taxes ratio of
selected comparable listed companies
in a similar business and similar business
model and adjusted for the lack of
marketability.

of marketability and
applied multiples.

of lack of marketability,
the lower the fair value.

The higher the applied

multiples, the higher the
fair value.
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37. £®MIA®w 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

SRIANFETE ® Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

TAEEZEIMRA - FELHEK Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets
RAFEETA
Hib2mEkz
ZBRATE
Equity instruments
at FVTOCI
FHET
HK$'000
H20209F 448 18 At 1 April 2020 52,531
B AR Currency realignment 3,784
FEAH M 2 E 2 M Fair value gain in OCI 3,750
20214 3H 31H At 31 March 2021 60,065
B AR Currency realignment 2,013
FPAE A 2 E s 2 Mas Fair value gain in OCI 28,306
20225 3H31H At 31 March 2022 90,384

Hip 2w AR ER A RS AR AN
NPEFAZERERATAZIEEHRAES
B2 AT ERE28,306,000% T (20214 :
3,750,000 st z) - AR IIIFREE
R

REZE 2022 R 2021F3A31H IEFE » AF
BEESzEBEEE -

FEEET 2R IANARNFEFTEEUBIRER
%o BEREREATAMEENABEGERITR
T2HAHIE -

BLERTAFE - AREF RS HER 2T
BER - BRAEIRRE2ENBWAEE - K
SEEFSERIIMNELEMETERLE - €12
BREERIMNEEEMITLSEMETERE
X ERETHAEF RS HESRIAERES
HEZBHZRA -

FEF I MR REE TR TEZ 2 BEER
Tl B EZ A FE

Hit SRAEEMSRAEN A HEDRBEERR
BRENESMN—ROBEBELETE - £
RAEFERALETHEELR SR A ENEEHENK
Ok Z R AR EREL o
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Included in OCI is an amount of HK$28,306,000 gain (2021:
HK$3,750,000 gain) relating to unlisted equity securities classified
as equity instruments at FVTOCI reported as changes of investment
revaluation reserve.

There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The management of the Company is
responsible to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. \Where Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the valuation to the directors of the Company
regularly to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with general accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost approximate their fair values.
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Under the MPF scheme, both the employer and its employees
are required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 effective from June 2014 for the MIPF scheme. In addition, the
employer and its employees may make voluntary contributions at their
discretions.

For the MIPF scheme, all mandatory contributions made by the employers
are fully vested with the employees, while any unvested benefits of
employees arising from voluntary contributions would be forfeited and
reverted to the employers.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the
respective municipal government in various places in the PRC where the
Group operates. The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as
a percentage of the monthly payroll costs and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the Group. The Group has no other
obligations for the payment of pension and other post-retirement benefits
of employees other than the above contribution payments.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong and
the PRC participate in central provident fund schemes established by
the relevant authority in their respective countries which are defined
contribution plans.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$53,172,000 (2021:

HK$43,199,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes during the year
ended 31 March 2022.
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30 MEEEZBBEHER 39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

AEBEREESCABEH ZFHBNRET
BRRENIFRE 7B - REELNAER/E
BeERBIARRETNAEEGRBLRERD
BRBEMELZRESMAIEAR -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BITER
BERER
HipfERR EMFE ERRE
RITRHAMER (BfEEEM (BfEEEf
Bank loans, EMRA) ERZR)
e import and Interest Dividend
af other loans payable payable
Lease  and bank and (included in (included in &gt
liabilities otherloans other payables) other payables) Total
TEL THEL FHEL FET FHEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2020 4F 18 At 1 April 2020 156,371 3,436,903 12,877 2,618 3,608,669
BERERE Financing cash flows (81,798 220,530 (129,189 (86,768) (77,225)
HERE Rent concession (4,406) - - - (4,406)
MEE/THERE New lease entered/lease modified 194,030 - - - 194,030
sk Currency realignment 12,227 92,825 4,617 - 109,669
ERRE Dividend declared - - - 85,938 85,938
%N Finance costs 11,500 - 125,482 - 136,982
BITER—NEFEE Front-end fee amortisation of
2 bank loans - 8,379 (8,379) - -
#2021%3A31H At 31 March 2021 287,924 3,758,637 5,408 1,688 4,063,657
BRERERE Financing cash flows (91,4798 33,639 (116,425) (5,524) (179,788)
HERE Rent concession (521) - - - (521)
MEE/TERE New lease entered/lease modified 117,812 - - - 117,812
WEREERTER Bank loan waived - (7,594) - - (7,594)
EHAE Currency realignment 7,621 31,337 342 - 39,300
BN ) Dividend declared - - - 5,036 5,036
BBRA Finance costs 15,836 - 122,428 - 138,264
BITER—RUEFEE Front-end fee amortisation of
Pt 5 bank loans - 7,789 (7,789 - -
HE—FEHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary (14,785) - - - (14,785)
#2022F3A31H At 31 March 2022 322,409 3,823,808 3,964 1,200 4,151,381
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40.EEHRERS

MEZE2022F3A31H IEFE - AEERERE
ERE  BRERBEZBIALRP—F2
THE (20215 | —F=+F) WHEERH -
HEEMME - AEE#ZR 120,511,000/ T
(20214 : 194,535,000 7T) B FAEEE N
117,812,000 7t (20214 : 194,030,000%
7T WEERE -

40. MIAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into new
lease arrangements for the use of leasehold buildings, machinery and
equipment and motor vehicles for 1 year to 15 years (2021: 1 year to 10
years). On the lease commencement or lease modification, the Group
recognised HK$120,511,000 (2021: HK$194,535,000) of right-of-use
assets and HK$117,812,000 (2021: HK$194,030,000) lease liabilities.

41. FREaE 41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2022 2021
FExT FiEIT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FECE R BIRITERER Guarantees given to banks in respect of
banking facilities to associates 16,496 16,377
Hith Others 12,885 12,476
42, EiE 42. COMMITMENTS
2022 2021
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERNBRESRE MBS REREE Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
BAREEYE  BEAREZ property, plant and equipment contracted for
B A EIE but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 55,640 19,258
43 EXHE 43. OPERATING LEASE
fERHAEE As lessor

FRN - REYHEESWAB22,000% T (2021
% : 813,000 7T) °

HEz&ERKESMT :

Rental income from investment properties, classified as held for sale,
earned during the year was HK$822,000 (2021: HK$813,000).

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2022 2021

FET FiET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FN Within one year 167 844
F-FER In the second year - 844
F=FR In the third year - 844
EUFA In the fourth year - 246
167 2,778

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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e BHmRNTE

44 BEAER S R

(a) BHEBERXS
BZE2022F3ABIRIEFE - AEEETH

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(a) Continuing connected transactions
The Group entered into the following continuing connected

BEBEI ST : transactions during the year ended 31 March 2022
FER
HK$’000
MTEAERENE Sales to Light Engine Group 1,167
MTELEREEE Purchases from Light Engine Group 794
BEBEX BRI 5 Aggregate amount of continuing connected transactions 1,961

(b) HbEABEAMLRS

REEEAREE 7 BERPHETATEAR

(b) Other related party transactions
The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its

UK associates of the Group:
2022 2021
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEBE AT Purchases from associates 411,173 470,209
HE TS AR Sales to associates 148,249 140,134
BEERRIZ BIEBWA Management fee income received from
associates 4,196 3,067

RREPEER - AEERAQREEE R
BB LA T ARAR DI 8 B 3R I EoAth FE U B
BERFENTOR - MENERERERR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
balances with its associates included under trade and other
receivables and prepayments and creditors and accrued charges:

2022 2021

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

JRE LB N R) E 3K Trade receivables due from associates 41,700 61,283
HoAth e U B 2 2 B FRIE Other receivables due from associates 5,624 8,969
FEREE R RIER Trade payables due to associates 84,778 102,532
EAbERTEEE R E) 2 5K Other payables due to associates 994 995

FEMRES S A TR A OB RIS B A
HEAFBHUE - 28 -
SfEE -

Hitp
EIERARE

THEE R BRITE BRI 4L

ZEREEREARRES
B2 R SSE

7 H 5 B

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Other receivables due from associates and other payables due
to associates are non-trade nature, interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand.

Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking facilities to
associates is disclosed in note 41.

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the
Company and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 9.
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45, AR R 2 MR *

AR FR 20224 20214 3A 31H 2 B S & &l

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and 2021

W as follows:
2022 2021
FEr FHEL
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREEE Non-current assets
W - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 4,002 3,856
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15,283 27,181
Fr{hii B A mliEss Interests in subsidiaries 1,434,742 1,434,741
FEMEIRE Non-current deposits 5,046 5,008
1,459,073 1,470,786
REBEE Current assets
H b fE W BR TR K TR 50 IE Other receivables and prepayments 6,133 6,811
L SYESNGIDSE N Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,855 2,235
BITET  GERERS Bank balances, deposits and cash 96,482 12,836
107,470 21,882
REBEE Current liabilities
FERERERER Creditors and accrued charges 18,816 55,152
HEAE Lease liabilities 13,274 11,765
OIENETES Amounts due to subsidiaries 110 302
BITER Bank loans 411,153 336,323
443,353 403,542
RBEEFE Net current liabilities (335,883) (381,660)
HEERERBEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,123,190 1,089,126
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BITRHEMER Bank and other loans 163,068 180,641
HEAE Lease liabilities 2,691 16,225
165,759 196,866
EEFE Net assets 957,431 892,260
EXREE Capital and reserves
AR (PF5E34) Share capital (note 34) 998,666 921,014
& (FE) Reserves (note) (41,235) (28,754)
REEEE Total equity 957,431 892,260
MR202266A29HMEE=RAE - WHIATES Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June
REEA 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
B TR Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung

2 EE Director Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

45 RAT 2B HEMRRE @ 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Bt EE - Note:

R @

(&518)

Retained

profits (loss)

FET

HK$'000

M202064H 1H At 1 April 2020 4,833
2HEBE Loss for the year (33,587)
R2021%3A31H At 31 March 2021 (28,754)
2FBE Loss for the year (12,481)
M202243A31H At 31 March 2022 (41,23b)
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46. T EMIE L= 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) MELQRIK—RER
RARIN2022F & 2021F3A 1A 2 £ 2

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 and

B ABIFHENT ¢ 2021 are as follows:
B/ R AEEREBRTREZ
Place of BT/ EMBARE BERELE
incorporation/ Nominal value of Effective equity
MWELRERE registration/ issued share/ interest attributable B
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
E7E
Electronics division
BEEEERAA B HK$496,000,000 85.59% 85.55% EkiEE
Bowden Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
CIH Limited N S$1,473,666 85.59% 85.55% EREE
Singapore Investment holding
Famingo Pte Ltd. N S$2  85.59%  85.55% EMIEE
Singapore Investment holding
GP Acoustics Limited RBHMREE US$57,000,000 85.59% 85.65% ERRIRE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
GP Acoustics (HK) Limited B HK$20,000,000 85.59% 85.55% HE TERAHEEEER
Hong Kong EfEm
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics International Limited ~ &% HK$148,000,000  85.59%  85.55% E TERHEEEER
Hong Kong EFEM
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
BESILEEERAR G NT$1,500,000 85.59% 85.55% HERHIEHERREFER
GP Acoustics (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Marketing and distribution
of acoustics and electronic
products
GP Acoustics (UK) Limited HE £12,500,000  85.59% 85.55% IEMRIEE - BE - HER
United Kingdom HERBRKETERD
Investment holding, design,
marketing and trading of
acoustic and electronic
products
GP Electronics and Acoustics Co, %= TBH220,000,000 43.65% 43.63% EGEELETESR
Ltd. Thailand Manufacturing of acoustic

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

46. T EMBAT @)

(a) MBARN—RER &=

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

[ERgsLiVE S5 b AEBEERTREZ
Place of BT/ EMBAE BREDE
incorporation/ Nominal value of Effective equity
HEAREHE registration/ issued share/  interestattributable ~TE7#%
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
Er¥ @
Electronics division (continued)
SNEF (FE) BRAA B HK$39,964,622 85.59% 85.55% EMRIRE
GP Electronics (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
RETF BEE) BRRA B HK$50,000,000 85.59% 85.55% HERBEEZE
GP Electronics (HK) Limited Hong Kong Marketing and tradlng of
audio products
EMm2ILEFARAR FE HK$170,000,000 85.59% 80.55% ENBGERRETER
GP Electronics (Huizhou) PRC Manufacturing of acoustic
Co, Ltd” and electronic products
GP Global Marketing Corporation ~ FE#& US$1,501,060 85.59% 85.55% HHAEBE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
GP Global Marketing Limited B HK$23,500,000 85.59% 85.55% TMiHHE
Hong Kong Marketing
GPT %~ IR $$286,306,915 85.59% 85.55% {ERIE
GP Ind» Singapore Investment holding
RUTEESERRA EB HK$21,000,000 - 85.55% HEERHEESETHHR
GP Industries Marketing Ltd Hong Kong BHERREEED
Marketing and trading
of quality parts and
components and hygienic
and health care products
SIHEFERERAA B HK$1,000,000 85.59% 85.55% {ERIRE
GPE Intemanonal Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
EMeLERBIRARRF H US$4,093,000 - 85.55% EZABEL - #FER
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Ltd" PRC BVl
Manufacturing of automotive
wire harness, transformers
and switching mode power
supply
KEF Celestion Corporation EEYES US$400,000  85.59%  85.55% IHAMIE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
KEF Japan, Inc. AR JPY50,000,000  85.59%  85.55% HESZER
Japan Trading of acoustic products

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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46. TEMBLT @

(a) MIBARHN—RER @

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuec)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

B/ i, R AEERERTREZ
Place of BT/ EMBAE B¥EAE
incorporation/ Nominal value of Effective equity
MWELRERE registration/ issued share/ interest attributable B
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
i
Batteries division
2ILED R ins $$251,312,000 85.59% 85.65% EHRIRE
GP Batteries Singapore Investment holding
REBBREMEROF) F HK$109,000,000 85.59% 80.55% EZEM
Dongguan Chao Ba Batteries PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Co Ltd"
GP Batteries (Americas) Inc. %H US$105,800 85.59% 85.55% HERHEEM
United States of Marketing and trading in
America batteries
SIENRTE EM) BRAE i US$4,400,000 - 85.55% EZEM
GP Batteries (China) Limited" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd BREE RM 70,000,000 85.59% 85.55% EZEM
Malaysia Manufacturing of batteries
A LEBERAR F HK$110,000,000 85.59% 85.55% EZEM
GP Batteries (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (UK) Limited ] £2,191,011 85.59% 85.55% HERHEEM
United Kingdom Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Batteries (Vietnam) Limited i \IND275,624,000,000 81.31% 81.28% EXEM
Liability Company Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
BHEMERAF BB HK$2 85.59% 85.55% HERHEEM
GP Battery Marketing (HK) Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Korea) B ¥ 150,000,000 85.59% 85.55% HERHEEM
Limited South Korea Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Malaysia) ~ 57kfge RM100,000  85.59%  85.55% HEREEEL
Sdn Bhd Malaysia Marketing and trading in

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

46. X EMBLT @ 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) MBARN—RER &= (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
R/ i, s AEBEERTREAZ
Place of BT/ EMBAE BRENE
incorporation/ Nominal value Effective equity
HEARERE registration/ ofissued share/ interestattributable FE£¥K
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
@
Batteries dlivision (continued)
GP Battery Marketing (Singapore) ~ #10% $$800,000  85.59% 85.55% HERHEEEM
Pte Ltd Singapore Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery (Poland) Sp.z0o0. it PLN23,022,405  85.59%  85.55% HERBESM
Poland Marketing and trading in
batteries
ST E BB BROA B HK$2 85.59% 85.55% {EiRIRE
GP Battery Technology (HK) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
GP Energy Tech Limited MEMS US$1  85.59% - PEREE
Cayman Islands Investment holding
GP Energy Tech International Pte.  #7i13% S$1 85.59% - ERREREE
Limited Singapore Investment holding and
trading
GP Energy Tech (Malaysia) Sdn. BRET RM1 85.59% - EZEM
Bhd. Malaysia Manufacturing of batteries
GPIEIBRERA A B HK$120,000,000 85.59% 85.55% HERHEEEM
GPI International Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GPPD Pte. Ltd. IR USD15,000,000 59.91% 59.88% EikIRE
Singapore Investment holding
GPPD Energy Company Limited i USD15,000,073  59.91%  59.88% EZLHEEM
Vietnam Manufacturing and trading of
batteries
EMBEREERERAA H RMB32,067,000 77.03% 76.9% EERHEEEH
Huizhou Chao Ba Batteries Co Ltd® PRC Marketing and trading in
batteries
EMBEREBERRF F US$9,400,000 85.59% 85.55% EHEM
Huizhou Modern Battery Limited”  PRC Manufacturing of batteries
EREABHERATC H RMB30,000,000 61.62% 61.60% EHEM
Ningbo Fubang Battery Co Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
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46. T EME DR @) 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuec)

(a) MBARMN—RER @ (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
B/ i, R AEEEERTREAZ
Place of 81T/ EMRAE BERELR
incorporation/ Nominal value of Effective equity
MELARERE registration/ issued share/ interest attributable B
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
@
Batteries division (continued)
ZRBFELRERATe F US$24,600,000 77.03% 76.9% EZEM®
Ningbo GP Energy Co, Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
FElE (HED) AIRAR ) HK$2 85.59% 85.65% ERRIRE
Sylva Industries (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
HEEXERAR ) HK$1,200,000 85.59% 85.65% EHEM
Sylva Industries Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing of batteries
GP Technology & Innovation B HK$38,441,393  85.59%  85.55% #HAMHER
Limited Hong Kong Holding of intellectual
properties
BIELIEBRAA BB HK$2  85.59%  85.55% HERRIEE RiTHMRL R
\Whitehill Electrochemical Hong Kong Investment holding and
Company Limited provision

of logistic support

HiR (BR) EHAERARR FE US$35,000,000 59.91% 59.88% EREML
Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co.Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
BtRE
Other investments
Asset Link Asia Limited” EBBERARES US$100 100% - PRIRE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Makinen Properties Limited” HEGEREE us$1 100% 100% #ERRE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
@ WEARANFBUAGI T EME Lz FINE & @ These companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures registered
1= under the PRC law.
b EARARPRBUAGI T Mz 2INE " These companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises
B registered under the PRC law.
S WERARRRDREERE - FTEEMHER 4 These companies are directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries
AIAAARIMEES - are indirectly held by the Company.
MR BRI R S MR 2 A RIS - R Except for the companies established in the PRC with registered
A AL ERRIFEIT 2 RN B EBR capital, the classes of shares held by the Company in the above
7 e companies are ordinary shares issued by these companies.
ERHFINRRABZHMB AT - EFRAZXEF The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
RAFEFEAFE I XESBRNAIEERE opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or
E—REZHM - EFRAEINEMHBEL constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
Bl FFIBE LB BURIE LR © details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

MREBTEI  ERFE AR ERFLER Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
BB A BN | B E S o outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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e BHmRNTE

46. X EMBLT @ 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) MBARZEAEESRED

(b) Change in ownership in subsidiaries

REZE2022F3A31IHILFE - ARFZ E
M B A RN TS AR 2 R (E653,000% T
(20215 « TE7D) BERD - FEEE - 2
R EB653,000/8 7T (20214 : T 7T) &
IR 2 FEER R 1,067,000/ 7T (2021
F T ) 2 ZF414,0008 7T (20214 -
TR CEENEARETER -

REZE 20224 3A31HIEFE - GPTEWH
E2ERENBATNS LTEES  BMe
SR RSB AR E845,0008 7
B & (1 27,535,000% 7t 2 #A (R 8 i
7 -

REZE2021F 3A 1B IEFE - AEEYEE
GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Ltd. 10%
2 FIMER - B A 348,000/ 7T © FERE
B BATRIE348,000/%8 T eaas 5% 7 JEE
[ig #& %5 367,000/% 7. [ 2 2= %8 19,000/ 7T
HERERFHEPHER -

REE2021F3A31IHIEFE - GPLERN
2ENBAR LSS BEOERA TN
it - EARFEE 2,453,000 i AR &
7 -

(c) FRERFEHERNFZENBLT ZF

&
AEEHEEEAFERERNFRENBER
AZFBEIRNT

[oAve: 95
TEEEMS
Place of

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the listed subsidiary of
the Company repurchased its shares from the market at cash
consideration of HK$653,000 (2021: nil). As a result of the repurchase,
the difference of HK$414,000 (2021: nil) between the consideration
paid of HK$653,000 (2021: nil) and the amount of non-controlling
interests adjusted of HK$ 1,067,000 (2021: nil) was directly
recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, GPIM, GPWT and GPB(China),
wholly owned subsidiaries of GP Ind, were disposed and the legal
reserve of HK$845,000 and capital reserve of HK$27,535,000 were
transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group acquired
additional interest of 10% in GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Ltd.
for a consideration of HK$348,000. As a result of the acquisition,
the difference of HK$19,000 between the consideration paid of
HK$348,000 and the amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of
HK$367,000 was directly recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 Shanghai Biba Batteries Co.

Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary of GP Ind, was deregistered and the
capital reserve of HK$2,453,000 was transferred to retained profits.

(c

~

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

FEREBHAN
ERRERTRELLA

Proportion of

incorporation and ownership interests AETFFERESRR Rt FERES
MEAREHE principal place and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
TR TET  FER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
GPI¥ CimIlIY
GP Ind Singapore 14.41% 14.45% 29,623 26,269 396,573 359,086
FiIR (ER) BHERAR PHE
Zhongyin (Ningho)
Battery Co, Ltd. PRC 30.00% 30.00% 40,385 56,249 408,870 376,173
Hith A A A
Others N/A N/A N/A (5,087) 3,676 170,208 160,134
64,921 86,194 975,651 885,393

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

172



46. TEMBLT @

(c) FREARFEHERNFZEMBLARZF

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuec)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

18 @) controlling interests (continued)
GPI# GP Ind
2022 2021
FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
MENVE B Current assets 4,270,207 4,194,720
FEMBNEE Non-current assets 4,567,293 4,474,816
mEALE Current liabilities 4,670,615 4,497,738
SEREEE Non-current liabilities 881,570 1,224,692
GPIXMEB ARz IHERER Non-controlling interests of GP Ind’s subsidiaries 579,078 526,307
GPIZE 7 IR Non-controlling interests of GP Ind 396,573 359,086
BENARAREA AR Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,309,664 2,061,713
B Revenue 7,061,620 6,706,177
T EEA & EE Expenses, other gains and losses 6,822,683 6,466,301
2R Profit for the year 238,937 239,876
FENAREREE AZ R Profit attributable to owners of the Company 174,016 153,682
BN GP IR IFT i 2 it Al Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests
of GP Ind 29,623 26,269
FE N GP I M E A A e R = Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests
iy of GP Ind’s subsidiaries 35,298 59,925
2R Profit for the year 238,937 239,876
FENANEIEE AZE M Other comprehensive income attributable
2EE to owners of the Company 96,463 29,773
FENGPIEIERER Other comprehensive income attributable to
Eph 2wl the non-controlling interests of GP Ind 15,940 4,720
SRERGPT 2B ARIHEREZ >  Other comprehensive income attributable to
Hib2mEas the non-controlling interests of GP Ind’s
subsidiaries 16,119 9,690
2EHMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 128,522 44,183
SERAARMAEAZZHEWZEEEE  Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company 270,479 183,455
SFENGPIEIFERERz2mWz  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
#azh non-controlling interests of GP Ind 45,563 30,989
FENGPIT EMBARIIHERMEZR 2  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
2 E =B non-controlling interests of GP Ind’s subsidiaries 51,417 69,615
2HE2EKERTE Total comprehensive income for the year 367,459 284,059
B IEIE R a2 AR R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (5,036) (85,939
LEER (Rl EEZ RS FE Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities (112,120) 70,097
WEXEBERA 2R FH Net cash used in investing activities (40,363) (160,810)
MEEE (A EECReFHE Net cash (used in) inflow from financing activities (126,916) 112,259
Be (Rd) RAFRE Net cash (outflow) inflow (279,399) 21,546

MIEER BN ER K E SR 5P -
Bl GPTRFMPRE -

The details of the financial information were disclosed in GP Ind’s
annual report which is available on the website of the Singapore Stock
Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

46. X EMBLT @ 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

(c) BEERFEHERNFZEMBLRZF

18 ¢
4R (ER) B ERNE

controlling interests (continued)
Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co., Ltd.

2022 2021
FBT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
MBEE Current assets 1,599,178 1,406,136
EMENEE Non-current assets 1,468,728 1,447,249
mEAaE Current liabilities 1,703,455 1,598,827
EREAE Non-current liabilities 1,557 641
PR e Non-controlling interests 408,870 376,173
SRR (BK) EnERAR Equity attributable to owners of Zhongyin
HEEAZ = (Ningbo) Battery Co, Ltd 954,024 877,744
EET Revenue 2,872,082 2,886,899
T EfEF R EE Expenses, other gains and losses 2,737,462 2,699,397
2E T Profit for the year 134,620 187,502
SEBRARREA A ZEF Profit attributable to owners of the Company 80,649 112,287
FENGP I IHERE R 2 @ A Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests
of GP Ind 13,586 18,966
FEAFIR (EK) ESHERAR Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests
FEiEAR R 2 A of Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co,, Ltd. 40,385 56,249
2E T Profit for the year 134,620 187,502
BERANATHBAZEMEE Other comprehensive income (expense)
W (ZH) attributable to owners of the Company 12,089 (16,880)
RIBRGPT ¥R v EMb2m  Other comprehensive income (expense)
Was () attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 2,036 (2,851)
BERPIR (R ENERAR Other comprehensive income (expense)
PR 2 Bt 2 E GZHH) attributable to the non-controlling interests of
Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co,, Ltd. 5,967 (7,125)
2FHMmEEmEE Git) Other comprehensive income (expense) for
the year 20,092 (26,856)
RERANARBAAZ2ENRZEET  Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company 92,738 95,407
RIBIGPT #3eiiEs 2 2EIWNE  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
k) non-controlling interests of GP Ind 15,622 16,115
FEBENPIR (EK) SHERAR Total comprehensive income attributable to the
AR R 2 2 R B RE non-controlling interests of Zhongyin (Ningbo)
Battery Co, Ltd. 46,352 49,124
2EPERSBTE Total comprehensive income for the year 154,712 160,646
B IR i A 2 AR S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (85,938)
KEEBEE 2R FE Net cash inflow from operating activities 230,563 64,968
WEER (FR) EXZ RS FHE Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities (59,606) 70,715
B EEEACIRE T Net cash used in financing activities (107,107) (117,076)
WEMAFRE Net cash inflow 63,850 18,607

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022
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47. TEBE QT

REE R 20224 [ 202146 3A 31H 2 = £t &

ARFEOT -

BE AR BB
Name of associate

47. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

B

Place of
incorporation/

registration

FEBEGRITRE
ZEXERE
Effective equity interest
attributable to the Group

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

TEEH
Principal activities

EFH
Electronics division

Julong Technology Limited
BEMEIBRAR FIEELETEARAR)

XIC Innovation Limited (formerly known as
Linkz Industries Limited)

EEIERNMHERAF
Meiloon Industrial Co, Ltd.

BERRERAR
Wisefull Technology Limited

HEREARRE
Youjia Technology Limited

it
Batteries division

AZ Limited
EMNEFEESHARAF
Changzhou Lithium Batteries Ltd

SXTEARRE
Gold Yi Industries Company Limited

GP Battery Marketing (Germany)
GmbH

GP Battery Marketing (Middle East) Limited
(FZC)
GP Battery Marketing (Thailand) Co Ltd

GWA Energy, Inc

Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company

SRR TEARRAR] —O——E-O=-=_FF%K

REEBRES
British Virgin Islands

e
Hong Kong

A=

Taiwan

EE
Hong Kong

EBERRHS
British Virgin Islands

REEH

Russia

R
PRC

5
Hong Kong

=
Germany

FaBEf 8
United Arab Emirates

RE
Thailand

438
=/E

Taiwan

jidf=)
Vietnam

2022

25.68%

32.63%

17.35%

25.68%

25.68%

34.23%

34.23%

35.52%

42.79%

42.79%

41.94%

35.09%

41.94%

2021

25.66%

32.62%

17.34%

25.66%

25.66%

34.22%

34.22%

35.50%

42.77%

42.77%

41.92%

35.08%

41.92%

PRIRE

Investment holding

BERIEE  EHEERER

Investment holding and
manufacturing of electronic cables
and wires

A BEREEHEER
FEEM

Development, manufacturing and
marketing of acoustic and
audio-visual equipment

ERREREBREMES
Investment holding and trading of
metallic products

BRI E
Investment holding

HENHESH
Marketing and trading in batteries

ERE

Manufacturing of batteries

EERHESH
Marketing and trading in batteries

HERHEED
Marketing and trading in batteries

HENHESH
Marketing and trading in batteries

HERHESH
Marketing and trading in batteries

EERHESH
Marketing and trading in batteries

ENEH
Manufacturing of batteries
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conro
e BHmRNTE

47. TEBENT @) 47. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

R/ St REEEERTRAR
Place of ZERBENRE

BENRER incorporation/ Effective equity interest FE%%
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group  Principal activities
2022 2021

)

Batteries division (continued)

FBEERERAE BE 41.94% 41.92% HEEREERAER

Lichton International Ltd Hong Kong Marketing and trading in lighting
products

ERLREDERAR e 27.3% 27.38% HEERREES M

Ningbo Fengyin Battery Co. Ltd PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
materials

RN RERR O BRAR] =0 | 25.06% 25.43% EHEHAELENER

STL Technology Co, Ltd Taiwan Manufacturing of battery packs
and products

RILEDTE (FE) BRAA FE 36.37% 36.36% EZEM

TG. Battery Co.(China) Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries

RILEHIE (BH) ARLE B 42.7%% 4R2.77% FRIRE RREDIRE

TG. Battery Co. (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of

logistic support

BERNBERRESERZARITEEATES -

VA EFRB R 2 B AR R AR R RERSA -
FrEmE ARz ¥BEERES B 2K i
77 o LB RAREEMAEREMFERT -

RIABBERRZRE  RADZHEERTE
KEEEH -

ERFONAEE 2L RR] EFRREAZE
RABBRVENMAERREEZERFE Y
EEIBRAERFEE—EZEHD - EFR
RGBSR R 2 FE RS BURRILE

BIE202293AB1IH LS E - iR HRHRMET
BATHR o BTG - NEERIE DR
BORFAR LE 7] 58 22 25.06%( 20214F :25.43%) ©

Gold Peak Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021-2022

Significant influence is exercised through representative on board of
directors of all the above associates.

All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company. All
associates operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/
registration. All of the above companies are limited liability companies.

The investments in associates are solely for shares of results and no
strategic purpose is involved.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, the Group exercised significant influence and principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, STL issued new shares to

employees. As a result of the share issuance, the shareholding of the
Group is diluted to 25.06% (2021: 25.43%).
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48 HEMERBE 48.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

R 2022447 68 £ 2022467 6H Hifs - A& During the period from 6 April 2022 to 6 June 2022, the Group conducted
BRATISEE D ERNEEBE RARIR IR E a series of on-market transactions to dispose of approximately 24.98%
I HE 2 £ 24.98% -+ #2K{E #) 140,468,000% equity interest in STL, an associate of the Group, for an aggregate
JC ° consideration of approximately HK$140,468,000.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
GP IEABRAAHMBEE

mEBEk CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HESASIRILFE Year ended 31 March
2022 2022 2021 2021
FH T FB* FHMHIT FET*
S$’000 HK$’000* S$'000 HK$'000"
BEREER Continuing operations
= Revenue 1,222,749 7,061,620 1,148,508 6,515,601
BRF A1 g A Profit before taxation 51,161 295,466 54,703 310,336
I Taxation (6,738) (38,913) (13,668) (77,540)
BB EERRBIE SR Profit after taxation from continuing
operations 44,423 256,553 41,035 232,796
BRIHEEEB 2 2FHREE  (Loss) Profit after taxation from
(&518) a7 discontinued operations (3,050) (17,614) 1,248 7,080
BREE 18 A Profit after taxation 41,373 238,939 42,283 239,876
FEE R Non-controlling interests (6,112) (35,298) (10,563) (59,925)
2ERF Profit for the year 35,261 203,641 31,720 179,951
FETHMRRE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MR3HA31AH At 31 March
2022 2022 2021 2021
FE N T FHET FHMHIT FE*
S$°000 HK$’000* S$'000 HK$'000"
Y%~ BB K& Property, plant and equipment 411,572 2,382,179 386,321 2,230,770
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 47,749 276,371 44,206 255,263
B AR R Interest in associates 298,892 1,729,987 304,316 1,757,242
AAFEFARMEE Equity instruments at fair value
W2 AT A through other comprehensive income 6,739 39,005 1,968 11,364
MBI E AR IE Non-current receivables 3,226 18,672 14,924 86,177
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 5,937 34,363 4,812 27,786
e RIERHRIE Deposits and prepayments 4,286 24,807 5,843 33,740
mpAE Intangible assets 10,696 61,908 12,561 72,474
MENVE E Current assets 737,769 4,270,206 726,434 4,194,720
WEE Total assets 1,526,866 8,837,498 1,501,375 8,609,536
SEREEE Non-current liabilities 152,310 881,571 212,090 1,224,692
mEaE Current liabilities 806,948 4,670,615 778,910 4,497,738
BaEE Total liabilities 959,258 5,552,186 991,000 5,722,430
FEE Net assets 567,608 3,285,312 510,375 2,947,106
SBEBRARME AEDR Equity attributable to owners
of the company 467,560 2,706,234 419,230 2,420,799
FEIZERR A A Non-controlling interests 100,048 579,078 91,145 526,307
567,608 3,285,312 510,375 2,947,106
HiE MARKET CAPITALISATION 295,145 1,708,297 273,486 1,579,220

YRR B AR B TEEIRAREAB 2 HBE®R  * The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are
converted at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.

s
& o
>
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9/F, Building 12\\V, 12 Science Park \West Avenue,

Hong Kong Science Park, N.T., Hong Kong

Tel: +852 24271133 Fax: +852 2489 1879

E-mail: gp@goldpeak.com

\Website: www.goldpeak.com

BETAREREZENKRAER1255912

B | +852 24271133 {&H : +852 2489 1879 T YIRS
B : gp@goldpeak.com apsrifiom

responsible sources
Ew!sscocrg FSC™ C017167

#3k : www.goldpeak.com
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